
1 

 

Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
Folsom City Hall | City Council Chambers, First Floor 

50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA  95630 

May 14, 2024, 6:30 PM 

 

Welcome to Your City Council Meeting 

We welcome your interest and involvement in the city’s legislative process. This agenda includes 

information about topics coming before the City Council and the action recommended by city staff. You 

can read about each topic in the staff reports, which are available on the city website and in the Office 

of the City Clerk. The City Clerk is also available to answer any questions you have about City Council 

meeting procedures. 

Participation 

If you would like to provide comments to the City Council, please: 

 Fill out a blue speaker request form, located at the back table. 

 Submit the form to the City Clerk before the item begins. 

 When it’s your turn, the City Clerk will call your name and invite you to the podium. 

 Speakers generally have three minutes, unless the presiding officer (usually the mayor) 

changes that time. 

Reasonable Accommodations 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

How to Watch 

The City of Folsom provides three ways to watch a City Council meeting: 

In Person Online On TV 

 

  
City Council meetings take place at 

City Hall, 50 Natoma Street 
Watch the livestream and replay past 

meetings on the city website, 
www.folsom.ca.us 

Watch live and replays of meetings on 
Sac Metro Cable TV, Channel 14 

 
More information about City Council meetings is available at the end of this agenda 

 
 

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/Downloads/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us
http://www.folsom.ca.us/


2 

 

 

 

 

City Council Regular Meeting 
Folsom City Hall | City Council Chambers, First Floor  

50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA  95630 
 www.folsom.ca.us   

Tuesday, May 14, 2024 6:30 PM 
 

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor 

 

Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember 
Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember Anna Rohrbough, Councilmember 

 
AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilmembers:     Aquino, Chalamcherla, Rodriguez, Rohrbough, Kozlowski 

The City Council has adopted a policy that no new item will begin after 10:30 p.m.  Therefore, if you are 
here for an item that has not been heard by 10:30 p.m., you may leave, as the item will be continued to 
a future Council meeting. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 

Members of the public are entitled to address the City Council concerning any item within the Folsom 
City Council's subject matter jurisdiction.  Public comments are generally limited to no more than three 
minutes.  Except for certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

AGENDA UPDATE 

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS: 

1. Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming May 2024 as National Water Safety 
and Drowning Prevention Month 

2. Folsom Plan Area Semi-Annual Report 

3. Central Business District Master Plan Citizens Advisory Committee Report Out 

4. Report-Back on April 11, 2024 Community Listening Session on Homelessness and Direction to 
Staff 

Page 2

http://www.folsom.ca.us/


3 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one motion. 
Councilmembers may pull an item for discussion. 

5. Resolution No. 11189 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with NV5 Consultants, Inc. for Owner’s Representative Services for the Development of an 
Energy Savings Conservation Project and Performance Contract and Appropriation of Funds 

6. Resolution No. 11190 - A Resolution Accepting a Grant from the Sacramento Area Council of 
Governments and Appropriation of Funds for the Roundabout Policy and Feasibility Study, 
Project No. PW2403, Federal Project No. 5288(054) 

7. Resolution No. 11191 – A Resolution Adopting a List of Projects for Fiscal Year 2024-25 to be 
Funded by Senate Bill 1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act 

8. Resolution No. 11192– A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Grant Deed 
Transfer of a Portion of Lot 16 Located in Russell Ranch Phase 1 from the City of Folsom to the 
Russell Ranch Community Association 

9. Resolution No. 11193 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Appropriate Funds for the 
Local Early Action Planning Grant for Additional Permit Center Expenditures 

10. Resolution No. 11194 – A Resolution Accepting the California Automated Permit Processing 
Grant and Appropriation of Funds 

11. Resolution No. 11195 – A Resolution Accepting the Award of American Rescue Plan Act Funds 
from the County of Sacramento for the HVAC Replacement and Upgrade Projects at the Folsom 
Community Center and the Folsom Senior and Arts Center and Appropriation of Funds 

12. Resolution No. 11196 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Purchase 
Agreement with BSN Sports for Replacement Bleachers at Lembi Softball Complex, and the 
Sports Fields at Mann and Rodeo Parks, and the Appropriation of Contingency Funds 

13. Resolution No. 11197 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Construction 
Agreement with All-American Construction, Inc. for the Blue Ravine Road Pavement 
Rehabilitation Phase II Fiscal Year 2023-24 Project 8017 and Appropriation of Funds 

14. Resolution No. 11198 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 
1 to the Agreement with Capra Environmental Services Corp for Managed Grazing Services 
within the City of Folsom 

15. Resolution No. 11199 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Purchase of a 
Chimney Exhaust Fan with Knorr Systems Inc for the Instructional Pool Heater at the Steve 
Miklos Aquatics Center and Appropriation of Contingency Funds 

16. Resolution No. 11200 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Site One Landscape Supply for the Purchase and Installation of Centralized Irrigation 
Controllers in Lighting and Landscaping Districts and Community Facilities Districts 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

17. Resolution No. 11186 – A Resolution to Adopt an Amended User Fee Schedule for Community 
Development Engineering and Building Services (Continued from 04/23/2024; to be Continued to 
05/28/2024) 

 

 

 

Page 3



4 

NEW BUSINESS: 

18. Ordinance No. 1344 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Sections 3.50.020, 
3.50.040 and 3.50.050 and Repealing Section 3.50.060 of the Folsom Municipal Code 
(Introduction and First Reading Continued from 04/23/2024) and Determination that the Project 
is Exempt from CEQA 

19. Ordinance No. 1345 - An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Folsom Amending Sections 
3.20.020, 3.20.063, and 8.32.140(A)(2) of the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Billing for 
Municipal Utility Services (Introduction and First Reading) 

COUNCIL REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

NOTICE:  Members of the public are entitled to directly address the City Council concerning any item 

that is described in the notice of this meeting, before or during consideration of that item.  If you wish to 

address Council on an issue, which is on this agenda, please complete a blue speaker request card, and 

deliver it to a staff member at the table on the left side of the Council Chambers prior to discussion of the 

item.  When your name is called, stand to be recognized by the Mayor and then proceed to the podium.  If 

you wish to address the City Council on any other item of interest to the public, when the Mayor asks if 

there is any “Business from the Floor,” follow the same procedure described above.  Please limit your 

comments to three minutes or less. 

 

NOTICE REGARDING CHALLENGES TO DECISIONS:   Pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, 

including without limitation, California Government Code Section 65009 and or California Public 

Resources Code Section 21177, if you wish to challenge in court any of the above decisions (regarding 

planning, zoning and/or environmental decisions), you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 

someone else raised at the public hearing(s) described in this notice/agenda, or in written 

correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to remove 

or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally 

abusive while addressing said Council, and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

PERSONS INTERESTED IN PROPOSING AN ITEM FOR THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SHOULD 

CONTACT A MEMBER OF THE CITY COUNCIL. 

The meeting of the Folsom City Council is being telecast on Metro Cable TV, Channel 14, the 

Government Affairs Channel, and will be shown in its entirety on the Friday and Saturday following the 

meeting, both at 9 a.m.  The City does not control scheduling of this telecast and persons interested in 

watching the televised meeting should confirm this schedule with Metro Cable TV, Channel 14. The City 

of Folsom provides live and archived webcasts of regular City Council meetings.  The webcasts can be 

found on the online services page of the City's website www.folsom.ca.us. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

Page 4

http://www.folsom.ca.us/
https://municode.sharepoint.com/sites/WebMeetingsTeam/Shared%20Documents/_Customers/California/Folsom%20California/Meetings%20Project/Templates/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us


5 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 

will be made available at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, 

California and at the Folsom Public Library located at 411 Stafford Street, Folsom, California during 

normal business hours. 

  

Page 5



6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally left blank  

to facilitate double-sided printing  

and minimize paper use.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6



PROCLAMATION

OF THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF'FOLSOM
PROCLAIMING M.AY 2024

AS

NATIONAL WATER SAFETY AND DROWNING PREVENTION MONTH

WHEREAS, parks and Reqeation encourages physical activities by providing safe spaces for

popular water activities and learn to swim programs at the Steve Miklos Aquatics

Center; and

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

wHEREAS,

the Folsom Parks and Recreation Department provides lifeguard services for all

public swimming pool usage with certified and licensed lifeguards from Jeff Ellis &
Associates Intemational Lifeguard Training with the Steve Miklos Aquatics Center

staffreceiving Exceeds and Meets criteria in all categories during annual third-party

audits with more than 47,000 guests in attendance during the summer season; and

eac,} year, drowning incidents result in hundreds of emergency room visits,

including hospital stays and potential life-altering and permanent disabilities of
residents and visitors; and

the Califomia Department of Public Health reports that between 2016-2021,2,559

Califomia residents died from drowning, and 1,168 were hospitaiized and 5,854 were

freated in an emergency departrnent for non-fatal water events; and

the City of Folsom recommends that parents and those with backyard swimming

pools iake a CPR and First Aid course with skills and knowledge that can save

lives; and

the Folsom Parks and Recreation Departrnent provides more than I,770 ndividuals

swim lessons conducting more than 390 classes fromthe Sea Squad Swim School leam

to swim program for kids, teens, and adults to proactively educate and make individuals

water smart and safe to prevent drownings; and

the Folsom Fire Deparfinent responds to emergencies in our rivers, lakes, and open water

environmentr ar *"ll as residential and community swimming poois annually and urges

residents to educate themselves on home water safety, boater safety and personal

watercraft safety to prevent injwies and drownings and to always wear a life jacket; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that, I Michael D. Kozlowski, Mayor of the City of

Folsom, do hereby proclaim May 2024 as National Water Safety and Drowning Prevention

Month.

PROCLAIMED this 14ft daY of MaY 2024

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 7

05/14/2024 Item No.1.



This poge is intentionally Ieft blank
to facilitote double - side d printing

qnd minimize poper ttse.

CITY OF

DISTINCTIVE BY NATURE
FOLSOl\{

Page 8

05/14/2024 Item No.1.



ffi
g"rd-|fl"fc{3S*"
{'r !ltrett{i *{ *r+lii8a

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

MEETING DATE: slt412024

AGENDA SECTION: S cheduled Presentations

SUBJECT: Folsom Plan Area Semi-Annual Report

FROM: Community Development Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

No action is requested of the City Council at this time.

BACKGROI IND / ISSIIE

Community Development staff will provide an update on the planning, engineering and

building activity in the Folsom Plan Area south of Highway 50 during the six-month period

from October 1,2023 through March 31,2024.

Submitted,

Pam Johns, Community Development Director

1

Page 9

05/14/2024 Item No.2.



This page is intentionolly Ieft blank
to facilitate double - sided printing

snd minimize paper use.

CITY OF

OISTINCT'VE EY NATURE
FOLSON{

Page 10

05/14/2024 Item No.2.



tr"{-}il,Ftt}.ng
*1il.:a

Oi l!tr1;?r'6t hi tr4tli'!a

Folsom City Council
Staff rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

No action is requested of the City Council at this time.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Central Business District Master Plan Project Manager and Citizens Advisory Committee
will provide an update on the committee and consultant work to date. They will also outline
the project plan moving forward for the Central Business District Master Plan document
preparation, review, and adoption by the end of the 2024 calendar year.

Submitted,

Pam Johns, Community Development Director

MEETING DATE: 51t412024

AGENDA SECTION: Scheduled Presentations

SUBJECT: Central Business District Master Plan Citizens Advisory
Committee Report Out

FROM: Community Development Department

I

Page 11

05/14/2024 Item No.3.



This page is intentionally left blqnk
to facilitqte double - side d printing

and minimize paper ttse.

CITY OF

FOLSON{

Page 12

05/14/2024 Item No.3.



l,'43il."ltTtt,$.*
fri.6i.ratrr!. L F4irltt

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

sn412024MEETING DATE:

S cheduled PresentationsAGENDA SECTION:

Report-Back on APril 71,2024 Community Listening Session on

Homelessness and Direction to Staff
SUBJECT

City Manager's OfficeFROM:

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Mayor requests that the City Council receive a report-back from the Mayor and Vice

Mayor on the April I 1,2024 Community Listening Session on Homelessness and provide

direction to staff.

Submitted,

Elaine Andersen
City Manager

I
Page 13

05/14/2024 Item No.4.



This page is intentiono"Ily left blqnk
to facilitate double - side d printing

qnd minimize poper use.

CITY OF

DISTINCTIVE BY NATURE
FOLSOl\{

Page 14

05/14/2024 Item No.4.



r !r.i.:.r-{ ,1 i.'j.rr r:

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

MEETING DATE: 51t412024

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 11189 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with NV5 Consultants, Inc. for
Owner's Representative Services for the Development of an

Energy Savings Conservation Project and Performance Contract
and Appropriation of Funds

X'ROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and

adopt Resolution No. 11189 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with NV5 Consultants, Inc. for Owner's Representative Services for the Development

of an Energy Savings Conservation Project and Performance Contract andAppropriation of Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On March 28,2023, the Folsom City Council approved Resolution No. 11015 adopting the City
of Folsom Strategic Plan, FY 2023-24 through Fiscal Year 2027-28. Prior to the adoption of the

Strategic Plan, the Environmental and Water Resources Department (EWR) began evaluating

potential energy conservation measures that would reduce electrical usage and improve energy

efficiency related to water and wastewater operations. As part of this initial evaluation, EWR
discussed the potential for City-wide energy conservation savings with other City Departments.

Several Energy Service Contractors (ESCOs) directly contacted EWR, Public Works (PW) and

Parks and Recreation (P&R) staff over the last year to discuss the potential for energy conservation

savings within these respective departments. City staff from each of these Departments discussed

options for moving forward with a City-wide project to deliver energy conservation savings. EWR
previously worked on an energy service procurement document but did not release this due to a
legislative law passed in2023 that would go into effect in2024. We delayed the release of the

procurement because this law had some potential to impact the procurement methodology of

1

Page 15

05/14/2024 Item No.5.



ESCOs for the purposes of energy savings projects. Once the new law was in place, EWR
developed a Request for Proposal (RFP) for third party consulting to assist in the development of
an Energy Services Performance Contract for the City'

Typically, an energy savings project includes necessary improvements or upgrade to City facilities

or infrastructure with the intent to reduce utility consumption, reduce operating costs, find
additional funding opportunities, address deferred capital needs, gain effrciencies in operations,

and achieve Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reductions. These savings are identified in a City wide

energy assessment and Investment Grade Audit (IGA). An IGA is a comprehensive analysis of
energy improvements with a focus on actionable and financially feasible projects. The IGA
typicatly includes detailed descriptions of improvements recommended for the energy saving

project, the guaranteed maximum costs of the improvements, and the guaranteed energy,

operations and maintenance cost savings projected as a result of the recommended improvements.

The intent ofthe Energy Service Performance Contract (ESPC) project is to maximize cost savings

that will pay for facility upgrades and energy services. It is likely that projects will be completely

financed through guaranteed reduction in utility costs, operational costs, and the procurement of
utility incentives andlor grants such as the Federal Investment Tax Credit (ITC) Direct Pay

incentive that was made available through the Inflation Reduction Act (IRA).

The RFP requested the following services to assist EWR in developing an ESPL.
o Assist the City in drafting and finalizing the scope and evaluation criteria for the

procurement needed to solicit proposals from Energy Service Contractors (ESCOs)

o Assist the City in review and ranking of ESCO proposals

o Assist the City in the development of an energy services performance contract with the

selected ESCO
o Provide technical support in the development of an Investment Grade Audit by the selected

ESCO
o Review draft project development documents submitted by the selected ESCO to verifu

potential energy savings and financial payback
o Assist the City in the development of an Energy Services Agreement with the selected

ESCO if the City Council approves the implementation of energy savings projects

o Assist in the development of financing or operations and maintenance agreements if the

City Council approves the implementation of energy savings projects

o Additional optional services include oversight of the design, implementation,

commissioning, and on-going measurement & verification of the project after the upgrades

are installed.

This resolution authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with NV5 Consultants, Inc.

(NV5) for Owner's Representative Services for the Development of an Energy Savings

Conservation Project and Performance Contract and the appropriation of funds in the amount of
$85,750.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 of the Folsom Municipal Code. supplies, equipment, services,

and construction with a value of $73,209 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

2 Page 16

05/14/2024 Item No.5.



City of Folsom Strategic Plan, Goal B - Environmental Sustainability.

City of Folsom 2035 General Plan, Appendix A - Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reduction Strategl,t

ANALYSIS

On March 1,2024, the Environmental and Water Resources Department issued a Request for
Proposals (RFP) for Engineering Owner's Representative for Energy Services Projects. The third-
party consulting services will assist the City in developing an Energy Services Performance

Contract across the City's facilities. The State of California, Department of General Services

(DGS) utilized the Federal General Services Administration multiple award schedule to develop a

list of companies that can perform certain services that have been competitively assessed. For

energy conservation related services, DGS has approved ten firms that can provide the necessary

third party consulting services requested in the City's RFP.

EWR sent the RFP to the ten consulting firms approved by DGS and also spoke with three different

energy service companies about the RFP that reached out to City staff over the past year. Only one

company, NV5, submitted a response. While the RFP was in circulation, several of the approved

firms indicated that their preference would be to provide the services related to the IGA and ESPC.

In short, these companies would prefer to identify the potential energy savings projects, and if
approved by City Council, implement the various conservation projects. NV5 on the other hand

specifically works with public agencies to serve as third-party consultants for the overall

implementation of the energy savings projects, from start to finish.

In addition to contacting DGS and the thirteen energy service companies, EWR also contacted the

cities of Turlock, Fairfield, Buena Park and Fullerton to understand their respective process for
implementing and delivering an ESPC. DGS and the City of Buena Park are both using third-party

consultant oversight for their respective projects. EWR staff does not have the formal training or

background education necessary to deliver an energy savings performance contract from start to

finish and requests that City Council approve the resolution for the use of third-party consulting to

deliver this project. Based on reference checks and previously approved agreements with DGS,

the City of Beuna Park, and the Los Angeles County Sanitation District, NV5 is regarded as a

highly professional, qualified, and knowledgeable company to support the services requested by

the City. Their project team offers more than 230 years of experience related to energy savings

projects and several significant projects within the State of California, which is important because

these types of projects have to follow specific government code requirements for implementation.

In addition to their local experience, NV5 serves Federal, State, and Local Government agencies

all over the country and some international agencies as a third-party ESPC Consultant.

Typical energy service performance contracts consist of five phases. This includes planning the

project, procuring the ESCO partner, developing the project, implementing the project and

monitoring the project. EWR is requesting approval of the first three phases under two task orders.

Task Order A will cover the planning of the project and procuring the ESCO partner. Task Order

B includes the development ofthe project and is based on an assumed one-percent ofthe estimated

project size. Task Order B would only be used if the City Council approves an agreement with the

J Page 17

05/14/2024 Item No.5.



selected ESCO to perform the IGA. Below is the scope of work for each the first three phases

within task orders A and B

Task Order A (Phases I & 2) - $29.500
o Identiff key staff from the City that should be included in the project team

o Implement a comprehensive needs assessment to identiff data needs, delivery dates, and

points of contact for each department
o Conduct interviews with the project team to estimate the potential costs, savings and energy

conservation measures that may be included in the project
o Develop an estimated timeline and project plan for the ESPC

o Develop a procurement strategy and prepare solicitation documents for the ESPC

o Prepare a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for the ESPC

o Assist with answering technical and financial questions during the RFQ process

o Develop an RFQ review template for the project team
o Review the RFQ and provide a sunmary of findings
o Participate in interviews if needed
o Support the City in contract negotiations with the selected ESCO

o In coordination with the City Attorney's Office, develop the ESPC

Estimated
o Conduct site visits with the selected ESCO
o Review 30Vq60yo,90%o, and draft project development documents
o Evaluate simple payback and applicability of the ESCO's project scope

o Evaluate the ESCO's measurement and verification methodology
o Evaluate risks and costs of project specific plans developed by the ESCO

o Review the ESCO's project cost build-up for accuracy and compliance with previous

commitments during the procurement process.

o Review key economic and cash flow assumptions used by the ESCO

o Review the ESCO's final Investment Grade Audit
o Assist the City in negotiating and executing the Energy Services Agreement and the O&M

agreement, and financing agreements, as applicable'
o Seek project approval from each City Department

EWR is seeking approval for both Task A and Task B under this resolution. Task Order A will
allow EWR to develop the project, prepare the RFQ for ESCOs to respond to, and provide for an

evaluation of the RFQ to select the ESCO. If City Council, at a future date, approves the

procurement of the ESCO, Task Order B will allow EWR to move forward with the Investment

Grade Audit with assistance and oversight from NV5. Task Order B will only be used if City
Council approves the procurement of the ESCO.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

This project was not included in the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Operating Budget. Staff is requesting

an appropriation of $42,875 in the Sewer Operating Fund (Fund 530) and 542,875 in the Water

Operating Fund (Fund 520) for a total not to exceed fee of $85,750. Sufficient funds are available

4 Page 18

05/14/2024 Item No.5.



in the Sewer Operating Fund (Fund 530) and Water Operating Fund (Fund 520) for this

appropriation. Task Order A will be for $29,500 and will begin upon execution of the agreement.

Task Order B for $56,250 or approximately one percent of estimated project cost will only be

authorized if City Council approves an Energy Savings Performance Contract with the selected

Energy Service Contractor. The approval of the ESCO and any updates to NV5's fee amount for
Task Order B will come before City Council at a later date.

REVIEW

This project is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act, Section15262 "Feasibility and Planning Studies".

A

Resolution No. 11189 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement

with NV5 Consultants, Inc. for Owner's Representative Services for the Development of an

Energy Savings Conservation Project and Performance Contract and Appropriation of Funds.

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

5 Page 19

05/14/2024 Item No.5.



RESOLUTION NO. 11189

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN

AGREEMENT WrTH NVs CONSULTANTS,INC. FOR OWNER'S REPRESENTATM
SERVICES FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF AN ENERGY SAVINGS CONSERVATION

PROJECT AND PERFORMANCE CONTRACT AND APPROPRIATION OF'FUNDS

WHEREAS' the City would like to reduce energy consumption and improve energy

efficiency; and

WHEREAS, energy savings projects include necessary improvements or upgrades to

City facilities or infrastructure with the intent to reduce utility consumption, reduce operating

costs, find additional funding opportunities, and gain efficiencies in operations; and

WHEREAS, the project is categorically exempt from environmental review under the

California Environmental Quality Act; and

WHEREAS, the City issued a Request for Proposals on March 1,2024 for third-party

consulting to assist the City in the development of an Energy Services Performance Contract;

and

WHEREAS, NV5 Consultants, Inc. was the only firm to submit a proposal for third-
party consulting service; and

WHEREAS, the NV5 Consultants, Inc. was competitively assessed and included on a

pre-approved list for the State of California's Department of General Services to perform this

service; and

WHEREAS, NV5 Consultants, Inc. is currently performing similar work, or has

performed similar work, for the Department of General Services, the City of Buena Park, and the

Los Angeles County Sanitation District; and

WHEREAS, NV5 Consultants, Inc. has the experience and qualifications to perform this

work; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREF'ORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with NV5 Consultants, Inc. for Owner's

Representative Services for the Development of an Energy Savings Conservation Project and

Performance Contract and Appropriation of Funds for $85,750; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is authorized to appropriate

$85,750 for this agreement. The appropriation will be from the Sewer Operating Fund (Fund

530) fund balance in the amount of $42,875 and from the Water Operating Fund (Fund 520) fund

Resolution No. 11189
Page I of2 Page 20

05/14/2024 Item No.5.



balance inthe amount of $42,875.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14m day of May 2024,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Counoilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 11189
Page2 of2 Page 21

05/14/2024 Item No.5.



This page is intenttonolly left blqnk
to facilitste double - side d printing

qnd minimize paper ttse.

CITY OF

DISTINCTIVE BY NATURE
FOLSOl\{

Page 22

05/14/2024 Item No.5.



:r l: iir: :

Folsom Crty Council
Staff rt

MEETING DATE: 5n412024

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT Resolution No. 11190 - A Resolution Accepting a Grant from

the Sacramento Area Council of Governments and Appropriation

of Funds for the Roundabout Policy and Feasibility Study,

Project No. PW2403, Federal Project No. 5288(054)

FROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution

No. 11190 - A Resolution Accepting a Grant from the Sacramento Area Council of
Governments and Appropriation of Funds for the Roundabout Policy and Feasibility Study,

Project No. PW2403, Federal Project No. 5288(054).

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

During the December 13, 2022,City Council meeting, Public Works staff made apresentation

titled ;Report on Traffrc Roundabout Fact-Finding Mission and Direction to Staff Regarding

Future Consideration of a Traffic Roundabout Policy." Information was presented regarding

their experiences visiting Carmel and Whitestown, Indiana, Stapleton, Golden, and Loveland,

Colorado. Additionally, staff presented the benefits of vehicle and driver safety, traffic

operations and capacity, right of way requirements, and maintenance needs versus traditional

traffic signal control at intersections. After the presentation, City Council unanimously directed

staff to develop a Roundabout First policy.

At the same meeting, City Council adopted Resolution No. 10961 - A Resolution Authorizing

Staff to Submit Grant Applications to the Sacramento Area Council of Governments for the

2022-23 Funding Round. One of the projects submitted to receive funding through the non-

competitive Community Design category was the Roundabout Policy and Feasibility Study

Project.

1

Page 23

05/14/2024 Item No.6.



Subsequently, City Council adopted Resolution No. 1 llTl - A Resolution Authorizing the

City Manager to Execute a Design and Consulting Services Contract with Kimley-Horn and

Associates, Inc. for the Roundabout Policy and Feasibility Study, Project No. PW2403, Federal

project No. 5288(054). The attached resolution allows the city to enter into an agreement with

the selected consultant to perform the reimbursable work.

POLICY / RULE

The City Council Adopted Resolution No. 7332 Financial Policies of the City of Folsom on

May 2i, 2004. Section D - Intergovernmental Revenues, Paragraph C - Grant Project

Resolutions states, "A11 grants received from the Federal or State government for operating or

capital pu{poses shall be recognized in separate grant project resolutions. A balanced grant

project resolution must be adopted prior to beginning the project."

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The Sacramento Area Council of Governments awarded the City grant funding in the amount

of $400,000, with a local match requirement of $51,825 for the Roundabout Policy and

Feasibility Study Project (Project No. PW2403). Sufficient funds are budgeted and available

for the project in the Measure A Fund (Fund 276). If accepted the grant award would increase

,.r,,"ru" estimates and appropriations by $400,000 in the Measure A Fund (Fund 276).

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This item is exempt from environmental review

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 11190 - A Resolution Accepting a Grant from Sacramento Area Council of
Governments and Appropriation of Funds for the Roundabout Policy and Feasibility Study,

Preject No. PW2403, Federal Project No. 5288(054)

Submitted,

Mark Rackovan, Public Works Director

2 Page 24

05/14/2024 Item No.6.



RESOLUTION NO. 11190

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GRANT FROM SACRAMENTO AREA COUNCIL
OF'GOVERNMENTS AND APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS FOR THE ROUNDABOUT
poLICy AND FEASIBILTTY STUDY, PROJECT NO. PW2403o FEDERAL PROJECT

NO. s288(0s4)

WHEREAS' in November 2019, the Sacramento Area Council of Governments released

a call for grant applications for the 2022-2023 Funding Round; and

WHEREAS, at the December 13,2022 City Council meeting the City Council adopted

Resolution No. 10961 - A Resolution Authorizing Staff to Submit Grant Applications to the

Sacramento Area Council of Governments for the 2022-23 Funding Round; and

WHEREAS, the Roundabout Policy and Feasibility Study was selected to receive

funding through the non-competitive Community Design category; and

WHEREAS, funding in the amount of $400,000 was awarded to the City, with a local

match requirement of $51,825, resulting in a total project cost of $451,825; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are budgeted and available for the project (Project No.

PW2403) in the Measure A Fund (Fund 276) for the local match requirement; and

WHEREAS' the grant funding will be used to prepare the Roundabout Policy and

Feasibility Study for the City of Folsom; and

WHEREAS, City Council adopted Resolution No. lllTl on February 27,2024,
authorizing the City Manager to execute a Design and Consulting Services Contract with

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. for the Roundabout Policy and Feasibility Study; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

hereby:

l. Approves the acceptance of a grant from Sacramento Area Council of Governments for

the Roundabout Policy and Feasibility Study in the amount of $400,000; and

2. Appoints the Public Works Director as agent of the City of Folsom to conduct all

negotiations, execute and submit all documents including, but not limited to, applications,

agreements, amendments, and payment requests which may be necessary for the

completion of the Project; and

3. Authorizes the Chief Financial Officer to increase revenue estimates and appropriations

by $400,000, the grant award, to the Measure A Fund (Ftxtd276).

pASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May,2024,by the following roll-call vote:

Resolution No. 11190
Page I of2 Page 25

05/14/2024 Item No.6.



AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 11190
Page2 of2 Page 26

05/14/2024 Item No.6.



]: : \. : ].

'./ Jr,i I n, , 1l

ri ,,i:rr ?:,r !. ; .i {;

Folsom City Council
Staff rt

MEETING DATE: str412024

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 1 1 191 - A Resolution Adopting a List of Projects

for Fiscal Year2024-25 tobe Funded by Senate Bill 1: The

Road Repair and Accountability Act

F'ROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution

No. 1 1191 - A Resolution Adopting a List of Projects for Fiscal Year 2024-25 to be Funded

by Senate Bill 1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On April 28,2077, Califomia Governor Brown signed into law Senate Bill 1 (SB-1), which

establishes the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) to address deferred

maintenance on the state highway and local street and road systems. The Bill states that funds

shall be used for projects that include, but are not limited to, the following:

o Road maintenance and rehabilitation
o Safety projects
o Railroad grade separations
o Complete street components, including active transportation purposes, pedestrian and

bicycle safety projects, transit facilities, and drainage and stormwater capture projects

. Traffic control devices
o Match for state/federal funds for eligible projects

The City of Folsom is estimated to receive approximately $2.2 million of RMRA funds for

Fiscal Year2024-25.

I

Page 27

05/14/2024 Item No.7.



The Fiscal Year 2024-25 SB-1 funds will be utilized for the Citywide ADA & Sidewalk Rehab

Project, the Street Overlay/Pavement Management Project, and the On-Call Concrete &
Rsptralt Repair Project. The City of Folsom currently has an overall Pavement Condition Index

(PaD value of 69, which is described as 'oGood," accotding to StreetSaver, the software

program that the Public Works Department utilizes to manage the City's Pavement

Mattuge-"nt Program. Future projections show that at the pre-SB-l funding level, this PCI

value would degrade to 42 (Poor) by the year 2037 and value to 32 (Very Poor) by 2045. Due

to this rapid, yet expected, degradation of the pavement system, this SB-1 funding source is

valuable 1n helping to maintain the City of Folsom's overall pavement network. It's worth

noting, however, that even with these SB-l funds, the PCI continues to trend downward.

To receive SB-1 funds, local agencies are required by the California Transportation

Commission (CTC) to annually submit a list of projects that may be constructed and funded

with RMRA funds, and the list must be part of an approved Resolution. The list of projects

allows the City to scope the Capital Improvements to meet the available funding.

The Public Works Capital Improvement Projects identified to utilize SB-l funding are as

follows:

Proiect
o Citywide ADA and Sidewalk Rehab Project
o Street Overlay/Pavement Management FY

2024-25
o East Bidwell Street (Riley Street to

Blue Ravine Road)
o Willow Creek Estates East
o Briggs Ranch
o Rancho Diablo

o On-Call Concrete & Asphalt Repair FY
2024-25

Project
Completion

June2025
Iune2025

June2025

Estimated Useful Life
50 year life
25 year life

50 year life

POLICY / RULE

The California Transportation Commission (CTC) requires any agency that will receive

funding from SB-l to submit a list of projects that is part of an adopted Resolution.

ANALYSIS

Staff has reviewed the most recent SB-1 reporting and spending requirements and found them

to be reasonable and realistic to achieve.

2 Page 28

05/14/2024 Item No.7.



FINAN IMPACT

RMRA revenue for Fiscal Year 2024-25 is estimated to be $2.2 million. Adopting this list of
eligible projects authorizes staff to use the Fiscal Year 2024-25 funding for the projects on the

list.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the Califomia Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA).

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 11191 - A Resolution Adopting a List of Projects for Fiscal Yeat 2024-25 to

be Funded by Senate Bill 1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act

Submitted,

Mark Rackovan, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

J Page 29

05/14/2024 Item No.7.



RESOLUTION NO. 11191

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024.25T0
BE FUNDED BY SENATE BILL 1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY

ACT

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017

(Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017), was passed by the Legislature and signed into law by Califomia

Governor Brown in April 2017 in order to address the significant multi-modal transportation

funding shortfalls statewide; and

WHEREAS, SB 1 includes accountability and transparency provisions that will ensure

that Folsom residents are aware of the projects proposed for funding in their community, and which

projects have been completed each Fiscal Year; and

WHEREAS, the City must pass a resolution adopting a list of eligible projects proposed

to receive funding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA), created by

SB 1, which musl include a description and the location of each proposed project, a proposed

schedule for the project's completion, and the estimated useful life of the improvement; and

WHEREAS, the list of projects will include projects that may not be completed in the

fiscal year allotted due to available funding; and

WHEREAS, the City will receive an estimated$2.2 million in RMRA funding from SB 1

in Fiscal Year 2024-25; and

WHEREAS, this is the eighth year in which the City is receiving SB 1 funding that will
enable the City to continue essential pavement resurfacing and concrete projects that would not

have otherwise been possible without SB 1; and

WHEREAS, the City used a combination of the Pavement Management System and

known priorities to develop the SB I project list to ensure revenues are being used on the most

high-pri,ority and cost-effective pavement resurfacing projects that also meet Folsom's priorities

for transportation investment; and

WHEREAS, the SB 1 project list and overall investment in Folsom's local streets and

roads infrastructure - with a focus on basic maintenance and safety, investing in the complete

streets infrastructure, and using cutting edge technology, materials, and practices - will have

significant positive co-benefits citywide :

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

approves this Resolution adopting the below list of projects to be funded in FY 2024-25 by Senate

Bill 1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act.

ResolutionNo. 11191

Page I of2 Page 30

05/14/2024 Item No.7.



Proiect
o Citywide ADA and Sidewalk Rehab Project
o Street Overlay/Pavement Management FY

2024-25
o East Bidwell Street (Riley Street to

Blue Ravine Road)
o Willow Creek Estates East
o Briggs Ranch
o Rancho Diablo

o On-Call Concrete & Asphalt Repair FY
2024-25

Project
Completion

Jwrc 2025
June2025

Jrne2025

Estimated Useful Life
50 year life
25 year life

50 year life

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

pASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May 2024by the following roll-call vote:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 11191

Page2 of2 Page 31

05/14/2024 Item No.7.



This pqge is intentionally Ieft blank
to facilitote double - side d printtng

and minimize paper ttse.

CITY OF

DISTINCTIVE BY NATURE
FOLSOl\{

Page 32

05/14/2024 Item No.7.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RE TION / CITY COUN ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council move to adopt

Resolution No. 1 lI92 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Grant Deed

Transfer of a Portion of Lot 16 Located in Russell Ranch Phase 1 from the City of Folsom to the

Russell Ranch Community Association.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE
Following approval by the City Council at their regularly scheduled meeting held on September

12,2017, the Russell Ranch Large Lot Final Map was recorded on September 21,2017 and

includes Lot 16, which is located directly adjacent to the Russell Ranch Community Association
(HOA) Clubhouse property. In the final map, instructions stated this lot, 'oshall be deeded in fee

to the City of Folsom for open space pulposes by separate document". Both the Vesting Tentative

Map and Final Map refer to this lot as open space'

In January of 2021, Mackay & Somps prepared the Grant Deed that was recorded on March 11,

2}2l,transferring Lot 16 ownership from TNHC Russell Ranch, LLC (The New Home Company)

to the City of Folsom. Please see the image on the following page for reference.

1

MEETING DATE: 5ll4l24

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 1 II92 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Grant Deed Transfer of a Portion of Lot 16

Located in Russell Ranch Phase I from the City of Folsom to the

Russell Ranch Community Association

F'ROM: Community Development Department

Page 33

05/14/2024 Item No.8.



{rta
t4

{f

:I{

;rJr+6>-{
f:
*cb
E:+:g*
('.J

tt(rt

l

&J

---*FE{:-

l7

d

t€

Fc
U,{n

f,OA.D

RUSSELL RAHCH

FHASE 1 \4L!.i'GE ,.4

"{

5

{

c
{,l{
n
F

RUSSELL RANCH

411 B.hl. 5

PHASE 1 WLLAGE 4
412 B,lr- 4

D>
'ts" t-
+H
--2lFc-<7

arl

*

: LARGE r-OT RHAL h4AP

i 4oo B,H, I
I
I

TOLSCII HEIGHTS

(p

Frr

FJ

p

JF

I

fJTF
F

N
lrJ

t\JF

-oEv,
rn
5.

g

d:v)z,m
=q;u3:F.C:=rJ)gwttg -ro tr-F^F Fg -E5a*r.'! xd;tHE'l 

=tErE*F g
#..=Ya 1

3gF-FE q
gn4;
ms; m
ni E o
nF-lBF
z.
F

xEg
iED
lilE

itHif;t'l l'rE-E-EI
Etll
=<-

=:tE;fil'D

t4

n

E
H

ft
F

,f

x

c
u

L

tr
g
i

qr

F
tu

I

e
ltl

,rF
u

U'n
m

I
I
I
I

I
I
I
,i

i

I
i
I

I

I

(1g

= 
(rJ

4:'

arl

hl
(fl=1

-Fd6
E-
dg
og
i".il

-i f)s'

(o

=
F-E
Ef,<E
lrr i''

F

E

=mP

t!
ru R'E'-
i;td]-gr H'O-+>-{>t:
d.{

- 
tr:rl!Eb

Itt G
{{I}* tlt

E
rll \ \i
ltt \ \'*
rll \ \-_--,-
Itl
lrl

I

-a
--.i_

!\t
t\t
EJ
llts
3:

I

q
E
l!
EI

tt{

0t&
F
FG

t,

*
Lq

-E#8
Hx

::
fi
-l

!/tT
z.
a

= tE(* ri{ii ;v,
tr JH
- 

1f
- 6b
- -'lfn
. rG]*a-B

N

b

(f frJ
-m
=mqm
@{
qfi
t4r}
H=
E!rn

D
ns
FF
FI
c:
--lI

?

u,
:E
tn
[nI
3fl

fi}EE
ilstr ETFET<t
46
SE

in
'r{gh
E:
EF
clE
fiE
Ei
-E
?t
tptlr
fitr.
#->
FE<t!

F

I
=6
F

s
u
l\>
itr
tJr

N)

Page 34

05/14/2024 Item No.8.



However, since that time, the New Home Company has constructed the adjacent phase, including

the HOA owned and maintained clubhouse property. The clubhouse parcel includes formal

landscaping, an event lawn, irrigation, a shade structure, and electrical panel, all of which the HOA

currently owns and maintains. Throughout the design and construction of Lot 16 and the

clubhouse, it appears the grading plan and landscaping plan for Lot 16, as well as its proximity to

the adjacent clubhouse parcel, was not available at the time or not fully considered when the grant

deed was executed and transferred to the City in March of 2021. Subsequently, the clubhouse

plans were approved by the City of Folsom and a portion of the clubhouse's landscaping and

irrigation resides on the portion of Lot 16 that is the subject matter of this agenda item.

The New Home Company submitted a request to the City to consider transfering the sloped

portion of Lot 16 to the Russell Ranch Community Association (HOA) that includes that certain

portion of the existing clubhouse landscaping and irrigation on the City's property. Transferring

ihis portion of Lot 16 to the HOA will allow it to be maintained with the clubhouse parcel while

reducing liability to the City for ongoing maintenance. The portion of Lot 16 proposed to be

deeded will retain use as an open space parcel in compliance with the original entitlements and

conditions. The remainder of Lot 16 will still be owned in fee by the City to allow for access and

maintenance of adjacent Alder Creek Parkway. Should this item not be approved, the existing

clubhouse inigation and landscaping in the portion of Lot 16 to be deeded would need to be

significantly amended in the field at considerable expense.

City staff has reviewed the request and are in support of this action to transfer a portion of Lot 16

to the Russell Ranch Community Association as shown in Attachment2to stafls report.

POLICY / RIII,E,

The Subdivision Map Act of the State of California and the Folsom Municipal Code require that

City Council approve land transfers unless previously authorized under prior approvals.

ANALYSIS

The proposed grant deed of a portion of Lot 16 has been reviewed and approved by the Community

nevelopment Department and other City Departments. The proposed use has been found to be in
substantial ro*piiatrc" with the approved large lot final map and all conditions pertaining to the

map remain satisfied.

Attached is the proposed grant deed document for reference. The proposed transfer will allow the

property to retain its current use and designation as open space. The HOA is not seeking any

hnancial obligations from the City and proposes to accept all costs and liabilities of owning this

portion of Lot 16.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The City has determined that this proposed transfer of a portion of Lot 16 is entirely consistent

with the Folsom Area Specific Plan (FPASP) and zoning and therefore, does not result in any

new or more sever. .rrlrirorr*ental effects that are peculiar to the project or the parcels as

a
J

Page 35

05/14/2024 Item No.8.



previously arnlyzed.in the FPASP EIR/EIS and is eligible for exemption from review under the

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) under the provisions set forth in Govemment

Code Secti on 65457 and CEQA Guidelines 15182. No further environmental review is required

for this proposed grant deed transfer.

A NTS

1. ResolutionNo. 11192 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute a Grant

Deed Transfer of a Portion of Lot 16 Located in Russell Ranch Phase I from the City of
Folsom to the Russell Ranch Community Association

2. Proposed Grant Deed of Portion of Lot 16

Submitted,

PAM JOHNS
Community Development Director

4

Page 36

05/14/2024 Item No.8.



ATTACHMENT 1

Resolution No. tll92 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a

Grant Deed Transfer of a Portion of Lot 16 Located in Russell Ranch Phase 1 from

the City of Folsom to the Russell Ranch Community Association

Page 37

05/14/2024 Item No.8.



RESOLUTION NO. III92

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A GRANT
DEED TRANSF'ER OF A PORTION OF LOT 16 LOCATED IN RUSSELL RANCH

PHASE 1 FROM THE CITY OF'FOLSOM TO THE RUSSELL RANCH COMMUNITY
{SSOCIATION

WHEREAS, the Russell Ranch Large Lot Final Map was recorded on September 2I,2017
following City Council approval at their regularly scheduled meeting held on September 12,2017;
and

WHEREAS, a grant deed was prepared and recorded that transferred ownership of Lot 16

as created by the Russell Ranch Large Lot Final Map from TNHC Russell Ranch, LLC to the City

of Folsom on March II,202I; and

WHEREAS, portion of Lot 16 was landscaped and inigated as part of the improvements

with the Russell Ranch Community Association Clubhouse located just to the north of LotI6; and

WHEREAS, The New Home Company has submitted a request to the City to transfer a

portion of Lot 16 from the City to the Russell Ranch Community Association to own in fee,

including all associated costs and liabilities at no cost to the City; and

WHEREAS, the grant deed is in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the City Manager to execute a grant deed transfer of a portion of Lot 16 located in
Russell Ranch Phase 1 from the City to the Russell Ranch Community Association.

pASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May,2024, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 11192
Page 1 of I Page 38

05/14/2024 Item No.8.



ATTACHMENT 2

Russell Ranch Lot 16 Grant Deed

Page 39

05/14/2024 Item No.8.



NO FEE, For the benefit of the City ofFolsorr pursuant to
Governrnent Code 6103

RECORDING REQUESTED BY:

City of Folsotn

And When Recorded Mail This Deed and, Unless Otherwise

Shown Belorv, Mail Tax Statements To:

NAME

STREET
ADDRESS

Russell Raneh Comtnunity Assoeiation
C/O The New Home ComPanY
15231 Languna Canyon Rd., Suite 250
Irvine, Ca 92618
Attn: LoriMiehael

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FORRECORDERS USE

CITY
STATE
ztP

DOCUMENTARY TRANSFER TAX

COMPUTED ON FULL VALUE OF PROPERTY CONVEYED,
ND COMPUTED ON FULL VALUE LESS LIENS AND
ENCUMBRANCES REMAINING AT THE TIMD OF SALE'

Sisnatn,'e of Declatatr! ot Aaent Delerniuins Tart Finn Nautc

MAIL TAX STATEMENTS TO PARTY SHOWN ON FOLLO\VING LINE: IF NO PARTY SO SHOWN. MAIL AS DIRECTED ABOVE

GRANT DEED
(PORTTON OF LOT 16 - 3e8 BM 1)

FOR A VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,

CITY OF FOLSOM. a rnunicinal cor?olation

Her.eby GRANT(S) to RUSSELL RANCH COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, a California mutual benefit

corpo;ation, the following desclibed real propefty in the City of Folsom, County Sacrartento, State of California,

described as follows:

See the Attached Exhibits "A" and "B"

AssessoL's Parcel Numbers: Portion of. 072'3430'016

CITY OF FOLSOM
a rnunicipal corpoation

By:

Narne:Elaine Andersen
Title; City of Folsorn, City Manager

Date:

Narne Street Address City & StatePage 40

05/14/2024 Item No.8.



CALIFORNI A ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

A Notary public or other officer cornpleting this ccrliltcate verifies only the idcntity of
the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, acctlracy! or

the individual who signed

validity of that document.

State of Califomia
County of Sacramento

On before me, ^N Prrhlic.

personnlly appeared

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidsnce to be the person(s) who$e name(s) is/are

subssribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same

in hislhor/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/theit signahu'e(s) on.the instrument

the porson(s), or the entity up-on behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY oF PERJURY under the laws of State of California that the folegoing

paragraph is true and cot'rect,

WITNESS rny hand and official seal.

SrcNRru
PLACE NOTARY SEAI, ABOVE

)

Though the infonnation below is not required by law, it may plove- 
and could prevent fi'audulent retnoval and reattaoltment

valuable to persons lelying on the document
of this form to another document.

Description of attached document

Title or type of documentl

Document Date: umber of Pages:

Signer'(s) Other than Named

Page 41

05/14/2024 Item No.8.



27107.000
04t25t2M4

PJ

EXHIBIT 6OA''

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY
(PORTTON OF LOT 16 - 39S BM 1)

All that real properly situated in the City of Folsom, County of Sacramento, State of California located

within Seetions i5, township 9 North, Range 8 East, Mount Diablo Meridian, being a portion of the Lot

16 as shown and depicted on that certain final map titled "Final Map (PNl6-122) Rudsell Ranch Large Lof'
filed for record on Soptember 2I,2017 in Book 398 of Maps, At Page l, Sacramento County Records, and

more partioularly described as follows:

Beginning at the most northerly cofner of said Lot t6; thence from the POINT OF BEGII\INING the

following sixtesn (16) ooursos:

L Along the northeasterly line of said Lot I 6, South 49o 18'04" East a distance of 67 .7 6 feet to a point

of curvature;
Z. 16.56 feet along tho arc ofa tangent 73.00 foot radius curve to the left thtough a central angle of

13o00'04"1
3. Leaving said northeasterly line of Lot 16, South I lo14'48u West a distance of 76.08 feet;

4. South 82o48'55" West a distance of 14'64 feet;
5. South 84"19'31" West a distance of 38,14 feet;

6. South 79o08'1 1 " West a distance of 40.60 feet;

7. South 76o20'21" West a distance of 46.91 feet;

8. South 70o38'37" West a distance of 19,84 feet;

L South 36o56'03" West a distance of 9,1 1 feet;

10. South 72"12'42" West a distance of 6.95 feet
I l, South 17o35'00" West a distance of 57,83 feet;

12. South 21"59'52" West a distance of 3.52 feet;

13. North 52o05'27" West a distance of 33'16 feet;

14. North 40o10'56" Wost a distance of 27,32feet;
i5. North 40032'08" West a distance of 19,74 feet to the northwesterly line of said Lot 16;

16, Alongsaidnorthwesterlylineoflot l6,North 48"40'22u Eastadistanceof25S,2T feettothePolnt
of Beglnnlng,

Containing 221095 square feot of land, more or less.

See Exhlbtt "8", plat to accompany descrtption, attached hereto an'd nrade a part hereoJ,

This logal description was prepared by me or under my supervision pursuant to Section 8729 (2) of the

Professional Land Surveyors Act.

P'* (r+;
Pedro Jarquin, PLS 8268
Lisense Expiration Datet l2l3 | 12025

1/zqlu
Description prePared by:

MACKAY & SOMPS CIVIL ENGINEERS, INC.
1025 Creekside Ridge Drive, Suite 150, Roseville, CA 95678

P:\271 07\-OA\SR\AMappin g\Desc\LOT 1 6\desc-LOT 1 6.docx

Page 1 of 1

LAND

tz/3t 125
No, 8268Date:

Page 42

05/14/2024 Item No.8.



=
G

EXHIBIT "B'

CIW FEE TITLE GRANT
PORTION OF LOT 16 - 398 BM 1

sEcTloN 15, T,9 N., R,8 E., M.D.M,

CITY OF FOLSOM
COUNTY OF SACMMENTO STATE OF CALIFORNIA

mACilAY&$0mPS
ENOINEERS PI-ANNERS SURVEYORS
1026 Cro€$lde Rldlo Drlve, Sulle 160, Rossulle, CA 95678 (016) 713.1189

PJ 1"= 100' 04t2512024 27107.1EN

ORAWN BY SCAI E DATE JOB NO.

Line Table

Line # Bearlng Length

L1 s82048'55uW 14,64'

L2 sg401g'31"W 39.14'

L3 s79"08'11uW 40.60'

L4 s76'20'21"W 46.91'

RUSSELL RANCH

COMMUNIry ASSOCIATION
DOCUMENT NO. 202306080387

O DIMENSION POINT
BM BOOKOFMAPS
LE LANDSCAPE EA$EMENT

PAE PEDESTRIANACCESS EASEMENT
POB POINT OF BEGINNING
PUE PUIBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT
(1) 3e8 BM 1

IF A DISCREPANCY EXISTS BETWEEN THIS EXHIBIT AND THE ASSOCIATED DESCRIPTION,

THE DESCRIPIION HOLD$. TI.IIS EXHIEIT IS FOR GRAPIIIC PURPOSES ONLY.

/V
7611) n=fg.oo,(r)

leqle+

10F1

LOT 14(1)

s49'18'04"E

Line Table

Llne # Bearlng Length

L5 s70038'37uW 19.84'

L6 936056'03"W 9,11'

L7 s72"12',42uW 6,95'

L8 s17'35'00'w 57,83'

Line Table

Line # Bearlng Length

L9 s21059'52'W 3.52'

110 N52005'21"W 33,16'

111 N40"10',56"W 27.32',

L12 N40"32'08"W 19.74'

No. 8268

JA

zSLI, I

tAND

* t

\tOF CAL

{'

I
N
s

N(\t
I

O)
N
I

'rt

Page 43

05/14/2024 Item No.8.



This poge is intentionally Ieft blank
to focilitqt e double - side d printing

and minimize poper ttse.

CITY OF

DISTINCTIVE BY NATURE
FOLSON{

Page 44

05/14/2024 Item No.8.



'irt r :r
., ! --: , .'': l

i 1;.:.r'ra t! t;:i !l

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

MEETING DATE: 511412024

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 1 II93 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Appropriate Funds for the Local Early Action
Planning Grant for Additional Permit Center Expenditures

FROM: Community Development D epartment

RECOMMENDATION / COUNCIL ACTION

Move to adopt Resolution No. 1 1193 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Appropriate
Funds for the Local Early Action Planning Grant for Additional Permit Center Expenditures

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

ln20l7 , Governor Brown signed a 15-bill housing package aimed at addressing the state's housing

shortage and high housing costs. Specifically, it included the Building Homes and Jobs Act (SB 2,

2017), which establishes a $75 recording fee on real estate documents to increase the supply of
affordable homes in California. The first year, those collected revenues were used equally to create

State-administered Planning Grants Program. ln20l9, Folsom received $310,000 in SB 2 Planning

Grants Program (PGP) Funds for physical construction of a state-of-the-art permit counter,

including technology for streamlined processes and access to information, as well as physical

improvements to the Community Development Department Permit Center.

Planned Permit Center improvements were put on pause during the pandemic, but some of the

grant funds were utilized to support and enhance electronic permitting and plan check. The original
design was modified to reflect changes to our permit and plan check systems, customer behaviors,

and desire for safety glass to improve security and airbome viruses. In2022, construction drawings

were prepared for the post-pandemic design and put out to bid but all bids were well over budget

and bids were rejected by City Council resolution. Staff worked on modifications to further reduce

costs and identified additional grant award funding for this qualifuing project.

1

Page 45

05/14/2024 Item No.9.



That additional grant, Local Early Action Planning (LEAP) Grants Program, had the same SB2

funding source for purposes of technical assistance, preparation and adoption of planning

documents, and process improvements to accelerate housing production and facilitate compliance

to implement the sixth cycle of the regional housing needs assessment. Folsom received LEAP
grant funding of $300,000 in 2020 for several distinct projects and tasks with consultant expertise

and technology enhancements to serve the Folsom community and to advance program housing

goals. While many of the projects were completed using grant funds during the pandemic, some

of the projects were delayed, cancelled, or converted to alternative funding sources. With the grant

e*pendit ye deadline of September 30, 2023 for both PGP and LEAP grants, staff requested and

reieived approval from the State to convert approximately $150,000 in LEAP grant funds for
purposes of completing the PGP funded Permit Center project.

With additional funding identified, the Permit Center project was rebid and City Council approved

Resolution 11052 on June 13, 2023 authorizing the City Manager to execute a construction

agreement with RBH Construction for the Permit Center project with appropriation of funds

(8367,549). That appropriation of funds for construction and contingency included the remainder

of PGP grant funds, a portion of the re-allocated LEAP grant funds, and approximately $30,000 in
general fund dollars for the safety glass at the permit counter. The permit counter project was

completed earlier this year within budget including the contingency. However, additional expenses

totaling $52,824 were paid out of the Community Development DepartmentFY23-24 operational

budget for equipment and furnishings that qualifu for additional re-allocated LEAP grant

reimbursement. Since those additional LEAP grant funds were not previously appropriated with
the construction contract, this request is to appropriate those funds so that the Community

Development Department operational budget can be made whole with grant reimbursement paid

to the general fund.

POLICY / RI]I,E

The City Council Adopted Resolution No. 7332 Financial Policies of the City of Folsom on May

25,2004. Section D - Intergovemmental Revenues, Paragraph C - Grant Project Resolutions states,

" All grants received from the Federal or State government for operating or capital purposes shall

be recognizedin separate grant project resolutions. A balanced grant project resolution must be

adopted prior to beginning the project."

ANALYSIS

In2023,the State Housing and Community Development Department approved a re-allocation of
approximately $150,000 of Folsom's LEAP grant funding award of $300,000 for qualifring

"ip"nres 
associated with the Community Development Department Permit Center project. A

portion of those re-allocated funds were previously appropriated as part of the City Council

Resolution 11052 approving the construction contract with RBH Construction for the Permit

Center. However, the Community Development Department incurred additional expenses totaling

$52,823.97 for LEAP grant qualified expenses that were paid out of the department operational

budget in this current fiscal year. City Council appropriation of funds is required to move the grant

reimbursement from the general fund to the department's operational budget.

2
Page 46

05/14/2024 Item No.9.



Vendor/Contractor Description Anount
PWC Architects Contractor bid reviews $2.88s.00
Jamesville Office Furniture Staff cubicles $16.477.80
Geo Con $2442.s0
Bell Hardware $6,0s6.4s
Home Depot $283.38
Wayfair Lobby/Conf Room Furniture $3,9s0.98
Wayfair Lobby/Conf Room Furniture $9ss.28
Ashley LobbyiConf Room Fumiture $447.85

Hanger Frames Frames for artwork $180.00
IKEA Frames for artwork $316.00
Amazon $278.94
Ultralink $6,356.67
Dell $11.899.37
VNYX Printing Photo/Rendering Prints $293.7s

Total $s2.823.97

A summary of qualifring expenses paid from Community Development operational budgets inthe
current fiscal year are listed below.

The reimbursement requests have been submitted to the State for the total amount and those funds

will be deposited in the general fund. Community Development Department operational funds are

needed for annual and one-time hardware, software, and departmental supplies to be within
allocated budget amounts.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The Local Early Action Planning (LEAP) Grants Program award total was $300,000 and does not
require a financial match. All grant funds were required to be fully expended by September 30,

2024. An additional appropriation of $52,823.97 is required to utilize the LEAP Program grant

funds for the additional expenses incurred for the Permit Center improvements.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

Implementation of the grant does not meet the CEQA definition of a project and as a result, no

further environmental analysis would be required.

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. I 1 193 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Appropriate Funds for the

Local Early Action Planning Grant for Additional Permit Center Expenditures

J Page 47

05/14/2024 Item No.9.



Submitted,

Pam Johns, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR

4 Page 48

05/14/2024 Item No.9.



RESOLUTION NO. I.1193

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS

FOR THE LOCAL EARLY ACTION PLANNING GRANT FOR ADDITIONAL
PERMIT CENTER EXPENDITURES

WHEREAS, the City applied for and received grant funding for a comprehensive update

the Community Development Department Permit Center; and

WHEREAS, in 2019, Folsom received $310,000 in SB 2 Planning Grants Program (PGP)

funds for physical construction of a state-of-the-art permit counter, including technology for

streamlined processes and access to information, as well as physical improvements to the

Community Development Department Permit Center; and

WHEREAS' in 2020, Folsom received $300,000 in SB2 Local Early Action Planning

(LEAP) funds for several distinct projects and tasks with consultant expertise and technology

enhancements to serve the Folsom community and to advance program housing goals.; and

WHEREAS, planned Permit Center improvements were put on pause during the COVID-
19 pandemic and redesigned or repu{posed in response to changed conditions; and

WHEREAS, State Housing and Community Development Department approved

reallocation of approximately $150,000 of the $300,000 LEAP grant funds for the Permit Center

construction and improvements; and

WHEREAS, City Council approved Resolution 11052 authorizing the City Manager to

execute a construction agreement with RBH Construction for the Permit Center project with
appropriation of funds totaling $367,549 for construction and contingency; and

WHEREAS, the Community Development Department incurred additional expenses

totaling $52,824 from the department'sFY23-24 operational budget for equipment and furnishings

that qualiff for reimbursement from the re-allocated LEAP grant funds; and

WHEREAS, the remaining LEAP grant funds available for reimbursement have not been

appropriated in the general fund for the qualifuing expenses totaling $52,823.97; and

WHEREAS, the Permit Center project is complete, and the final LEAP grant

reimbursement request has been submitted for deposit; and

WHEREAS, the PGP and LEAP grant and reimbursement agreements were executed in
form acceptable to the City Attorney:

Resolution No. 11193

Page I of2 Page 49

05/14/2024 Item No.9.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the Finance Director to increase revenue estimates and appropriations by $52,823.97 in
the General Fund (Fund 010) for the Local Early Action Planning Grant for additional Permit

Center expenditures.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May,2024, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 1l193
Page2 of2 Page 50

05/14/2024 Item No.9.



r I :i : .:- -; i :,r'r.J
;. i.tr r:i!

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Move to approve ResolutionNo. 11194 - A Resolution Accepting the California Automated

Permit Processing Grant and Appropriation of Funds

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

ln2022the California legislature enacted SB 379 (Solar Access Act) requiring cities with more

than 50,000 residents to implement an online, automated permitting platform capable of
veriffing code compliance and issuing permits in real time for residential photovoltaic (PV)

storage systems. The law is intended to reduce costs and delays of permitting. The federal

Department of Energy's National Renewable Energy Laboratory developed automated

p"r-itting software (SolarApp+) capable of processing solar systems. Communities can adopt

SolarAPP+ or a functional equivalent and must submit annual reports demonstrating compliance

over the next ten year period.

To help jurisdictions defray the cost of compliance, the State appropriated $20 million for the

California Automated Permit Processing Program (CalAPP) grant program. Folsom applied for

and received a $60,000 grant to purchase Symbium software and pay for the integration of that

software into our existing permitting system. Because the grant amount is within the City
Manager's contract signing authority and no matching funds are required, this action accepts and

appropriates the grant funds to implement an online automated permitting platform for solar

panels consistent with new requirements of SB379'

I

MEETING DATE: str4l2024

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 1 ll94 - A Resolution Accepting the California
Automated Permit Processing Grant and Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Community Development Department

Page 51

05/14/2024 Item No.10.



POLICY / RULE

The City Council Adopted ResolutionNo. 7332 Financial Policies of the City of Folsom on May
25,2004. Section D - Intergovernmental Revenues, Paragraph C - Grant Project Resolutions

states, " All grants received from the Federal or State government for operating or capital

pu{poses shall be recognized in separate grant project resolutions. A balanced grant project

resolution mrist be adopted prior to beginning the project."

ANALYSIS

Staff researched and selected Symbium software as the preferred online, automated solar

permitting platform to integrate with our current permitting system software. Grant funds would

be used for the soflware, integration, as well as staff training and system maintenance over the

next three- to six-month period.

Symbium permitting platform will perform an automated plan review for residential solar energy

systems that complete automatic code compliance checks based on user inputs to enable or

otherwise issue permits instantly when a project is confirmed as code compliant. There is no

need for human review in this system. Online fee payment is supported with automatic permit

fee generation. Once fees are paid for an application deemed compliant, an applicant can print a
permit job card for the job site and records accordingly.

Folsom received the maximum grant allowance of $60,000 under the CapAPP program for a

jurisdiction of our size to implement a permitting platform for solar systems in compliance with
s8379.

F'INANCIAL IMPACT

The California Automated Permit Processing Program (CalAPP) grant program award total is

$60,000 and does not require a financial match. All grant funds are required to be fully expended

and reimbursed by August 30,2024. Grant funds will cover Symbium software purchase,

integration with the current permitting system, staff training, and maintenance. If accepted the

grant award would increase revenue estimates and appropriations by $60,000 in the General

Fund (Fund 010). Costs would be funded initially through the General Fund and reimbursed by

the CaIAPP funds over two fiscal year periods; Fiscal Year 2023-2024 and Fiscal Year 2024-

2025.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

Grant acceptance is not considered a project under the California Environment Quality Act
(CEQA) in accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(bX3). As a result, these actions

are exempt from environmental review.

2 Page 52

05/14/2024 Item No.10.



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. I ll94 - A Resolution Accepting the Califomia Automated Permit Processing
Grant and Appropriation of Funds

Submitted,

Pam Johns,
Community Development Director

a
J Page 53

05/14/2024 Item No.10.



RESOLUTION NO. III94

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE CALIFORNIA AUTOMATED PERMIT
PROCESSING GRANT AND APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

WHEREAS, the State appropriated $20 million for the California Automated Permit

Processing Program (CalAPP) grant program to help jurisdictions defray the cost of compliance

with SB 379 (Solar Access Act) requiring cities to implement an online, automated permitting
platform capable of veri$ing code compliance and issuing permits in real time for residential
photovoltaic (PV) storage systems; and

WHEREAS, the City applied for and received grant approval of $60,000 to purchase

qualifring software (Symbium), integration with the current permitting system, staff training, and

system maintenance with no matching fund requirement; and

WHEREAS, grant acceptance is not considered a project under the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and

WHEREAS, suffrcient funds are available in the City's General Fund and will be fully
reimbursed by the CaIAPP funds over two fiscal year periods Fiscal Year 2023-2024 and Fiscal

Year 2024-2025.

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

hereby approves the acceptance of the grant award from the California Automated Permit
Processing Program grant program in the amount of $60,000 and authorizes the Chief Financial

Officer to increase revenue estimates and expenditure appropriations by $60,000 in the City's
General Fund (Fund 010).

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May,2024, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES;
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 11194
Page 1 ofl Page 54

05/14/2024 Item No.10.



i( a.i i ilr'1i

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

MEETING DATE: 51t412024

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 11 195 - A Resolution Accepting the Award of
American Rescue Plan Act Funds from the County of Sacramento

for the HVAC Replacement and Upgrade Projects at the Folsom

Community Center and the Folsom Senior and Arts Center and

Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department

RECOMMENDATION / COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends the City Council approve Resolution No. 1l 195 - A Resolution Accepting the

Award of American Rescue Plan Act Funds from the County of Sacramento for the HVAC
Replacement and Upgrade Projects at the Folsom Community Center and the Folsom Senior and

Arts Center and Appropriation of Funds.

BACKGROTTND / ISSIIE

The American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) enacted on March 11,2021, established the Coronavirus

State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund to provide support to state, local, and tribal governments.

These funds are specifically designated to address the impact of COVID-19 on communities,

residents, and businesses, while also aiding in the containment efforts.

Within the County of Sacramento, each of the five supervisorial districts received $10M in
district allocations. Supervisor Sue Frost of District 4, reached out to the Folsom Parks &
Recreation Department to identifu impactful uses for a $200,000 allocation from ARPA funds.

Following thorough discussions and project evaluations, it was determined that directing these

funds toward enhancing the HVAC system at the Folsom Senior and Arts Center would
significantly mitigate the effects of COVID-19 within a vulnerable population.

Once it was confirmed that the HVAC upgrade project aligned with the guidelines for ARPA
funds usage, the County of Sacramento extended its partnership with the Folsom Parks &

I

Page 55

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Recreation Department to explore additional parks and recreation projects that would qualifu for
ARPA funding. Subsequently, the city requested funding ranging from $1,000,000-$1,500,000 to

replace the HVAC system at the Folsom Community Center. Replacing this HVAC would

significantly mitigate the effects of COVID-19 on a vulnerable population including those who

attend Fun Factory Preschool, as well as community groups, businesses, orgarizrtions, and

individuals who rent the facility

POLICY / RULE

Per sections 602(c)(1) and 603(c)(1) of the ARPA, tunds may be used:

1. Respond to the COVID-19 emergency or its negative economic impacts, including

assistance to households, small businesses, and nonprofits or aid to impacted industries

such as tourism, travel, and hospitality;
2. Provide premium pay to essential workers or provide grants to employers of essential

workers during the COVID-l9 emergency;
3. Provide government services to the extent of the reduction in revenue of such state,

territory, or tribal govemment due to the COVID-19 emergency; or
4. Make necessary investments in water, sewsr, or broadband infrastructure.

Additionally, as part of the project entry process, Sacramento County required applicants to meet

the project demographic distribution, and certain expenditure categories outlined in Attachment

J.

ANALYSIS

The examination of expenditure categories, and prior endeavors to secure funding for park

renovation projects, prompted staff to explore altemative projects prioritizing public health,

specifically focusing on COVID-I9 prevention in congregate settings (i.e. nursing homes,

prisons/jails, dense work sites, schools, and childcare facilities).

At the Folsom Senior Center and Folsom Community Center, the HVAC systems date back to

the buildings' original constructioninlgg4. The Senior Center's units are in dire need of repair,

highlighted by a furnace blower motor catching fire in 2023. With an average of 1,500 seniors

served monthly, many highly susceptible to COVID-19, and addressing these issues is essential.

Likewise, at the Community Center, two of the six units have been neglected for several years,

leading to a doubling in service calls for the remaining four units over the past two years. Given

the Community Center's status as a heavily utilized facility catering to a diverse population and

housing Fun Factory Preschool, addressing these HVAC concerns is imperative.

The proposed replacements for these HVAC systems not only promise improved system

efficiency but also offer significant benefits in filtering airborne contaminants, including viruses.

By enhancing filtration capabilities, these units become primary defense mechanisms against

airborne pathogens, while increased air changes per hour contribute to better ventilation. These

improvements in ventilation and filtration align closely with the objectives of ARPA in

2 Page 56

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



combating the spread of COVID-l9, underscoring their importance in safeguarding public
health.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

With approval from the City Council, revenue estimates and appropriations in the General Fund
(Fund 010) would be increased by $1,200,000 for the improvement of the HVAC projects. The

entire $1,200,000 allocation must be obligated by December 31, 2024, and fully spent by
December 31,2026.

ENVIRONMENTAL RXVIEW

Environmental review is not required pursuant to section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines (related

to Existing Facilities) and section 15303 of the CEQA Guidelines (related to new construction or
conversion of small structures). Based on the stafPs analysis, none of the exceptions in Section

15300.2 of the CEQA Guidelines apply to the use of the categorical exemptions in this case.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. I I195 - A Resolution Accepting the Award of Additional ARPA Funds

from the County of Sacramento for the HVAC Projects at the'Folsom Community Center

and the Folsom Senior and Arts Center and Appropriation of Funds.

2. Draft Sacramento County ARPA Subrecipient Agreement
3. Project Demographic Distribution and Expenditure Categories

Submitted,

Kelly Gorualez, Parks & Recreation Director

J Page 57

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 1

Resolution No. 11195 - A Resolution Accepting the Award of Additional ARPA Funds from the
County of Sacramento for the HVAC Projects atthe Folsom Community Center and the Folsom

Senior and Arts Center and Appropriation of Funds.

4 Page 58

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



RESOLUTION NO. I,11.95

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE AWARD OF AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT
FUNDS FROM THE COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO FOR THE HVAC REPLACEMENT

AND UPGRADE PROJECTS AT THE F'OLSOM COMMUNITY CENTER AND THE
F'OLSOM SENIOR AND ARTS CENTER AND APPROPRIATION OF' FUNDS

WHEREAS, since the first case of coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-l9) was discovered
in the United States in January 2020, cities have been called on to respond to the needs of
their communities through prevention, treatment, and vaccination of COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, Congress adopted the American Rescue Plan Act in March 2021 ("ARPA"),
which included $65 billion in recovery funds for cities across the country; and

WHEREAS, ARPA funds are intended to provide support to state, local, and tribal
governments in responding to the impact of COVID-l9 and in their efforts to contain
COVID-l9 in their communities, residents, and businesses; and

WHEREAS, within the County of Sacramento, each of the five supervisorial districts
received $10,000,000 in District Allocations; and

WHEREAS, the County of Sacramento engaged with Folsom Parks and Recreation to
assess potential projects for subrecipient designation of ARPA funding; and

WHEREAS' the Folsom Parks and Recreation Department submitted two project
proposals aimed at enhancing the HVAC system at the Folsom Senior and Arts Center, and

replacing the HVAC system at the Folsom Community Center; and

WHEREAS' these projects were specifically proposed to address the exigencies posed by
the COVID-l9 emergency; and

WHEREAS' these projects align with the expenditure category: COVID-I9 Mitigation
and Prevention in Congregate Settings; and

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2024, the County of Sacramento approved the proposed
projects; and

WHEREAS, the County of Sacramento, will distribute $1,200,000 in ARPA funds to
Folsom Parks and Recreation Department dedicated to the HVAC upgrade at the Folsom
Senior and Arts Center and replacement at the Folsom Community Center; and

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
hereby Approves the acceptance of American Rescue Plan Act funds from the County of
Sacramento in the amount of $1,200,000 and authorizes the Chief Financial Officer to
increase revenue estimates and expenditure appropriations by $1,200,000 in the City's
General Fund (Fund 010).

Resolution No. 11195
Page I of2 Page 59

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14 day of May,2024, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 11195
Page2 of2 Page 60

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 2

Draft Sacramento County ARPA Subrecipient Agreement

5
Page 61

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

SACRAMENTO COUNTY

AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT OF 2021 FEDERAL SUBAWARD AGREEMENT
FOR THE PROJECT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this: ,, day of 2022,
by and between the COUNry OF SACRAMENTO, q. political subdivision of the State of
California, hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY" or l'County", and the (SUBRECIPIENT
NAME), (type of agencylorganization), hereinafterreferred to ?s "SUBRECIPIENT" or
"Subrecipient".

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the negative impacts of the COVID-19 pgndemic continue to adversely
affect Sacramento County residen.tg,and businessss..prolonging the downturn in the
local, regional and national economiesi:creating a situation where local small
businesses are continuing to financially stiuggle and residents continue to need

assistance to better connect with the hgalth bare,:mental health, educational, and other
local support systems:ih.oiderto addreSs:the impacts of this crisis; and

'

WHEREAS, the Ameri-can Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA), signed into law on March

11,2021, established the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds under
sections 602 and Q03 of the,social,security AcJ:to help states and localities address the
economicrand health consequences of the pandemic; and

WHEREAS, Sacramento:Gounty will receive approximately $301.4 million from the
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds in two installments, with 50% ($150

million) provided in May 2021: and the balance delivered approximately 12 months later;

and

WHEREAS, the SUBRECIP-IENT has certain, specialized experience in providing

[Subrecipient's specialized skills/experience] and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY desires to engage the SUBRECIPIENT to provide [County's
reason for issuing subaward to Subrecipient]; services to individuals and small
businesses during and post the COVID-19 crisis; and

WHEREAS, the services to be performed by SUBRECIPIENT pursuant to this contract
will serve to provide direct services to [how funds will be used], and related COVID-19
support services to benefit Sacramento County and its residents; and

WHEREAS, the SUBRECIPIENT has proposed to provide the requested services for
the compensation described herein; and

Page | '1Page 62

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

WHEREAS, the services to be provided by SUBRECIPIENT are not services provided

by County employees and; therefore, not subject to the requirements of Sacramento
County Charter Section 71-J; and

WHEREAS, the services to be provided by SUBRECIPIENT are authorized by
Government Code Section 31000; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. XXXX-XXXX, under
which, and on behalf of the County of Sacramento, the Director or designee,
is authorized to execute an agreement for the services to be provided by

SUBRECIPIENT; and

WHEREAS, COUNry AND SUBRECIPIENT desire to enter into this Agreement on the

terms and conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises hereinafter set forth,
COUNTY and SUBRECIPIENT agree as follows:

SCOPE OF SERVICES

SUBRECIPIENT shall provide services in the amount, type and manner
described in Exhibits A, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

II. TERM

ilt.

This Agreement shall be effective and commence as of the date first written
above and shall end on XXXX

NOTIGE

Any notice, demand, request, consent, or approval that either party hereto may

or is required to give the other pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and

shall be either personally delivered or sent by mail, addressed as follows:

TO COUNTY TO SUBRECIPIENT

Director (SUBRECIPIENT NAME AND ADDRESS)
Department

Either party may change the address to which subsequent notice and/or other
communications can be sent by giving written notice designating a change of
address to the other party, which shall be effective upon receipt.

IV. COMPL WITH LAWS

SUBRECIPIENT shall observe and comply with all applicable Federal, State, and

County laws, regulations and ordinances; including, but not limited to, the
additional Federal Provisions set forth in Exhibits D and E, and any other

Page | 2Page 63

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



VI

A.

Agreement Number:

applicable American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 Coronavirus State and Local

Fiscal Recovery Fund provisions.

V. GOVERN LAWS AND JURI SDICTION

This Agreement shall be deemed to have been executed and to be performed

within the State of California and shall be construed and governed by the internal
laws of the State of California. Any legal proceedings arising out of or relating to
this Agreement shall be brought in Sacramento County, California.

LICENSES . PERMITS AND CO AL GOOD ANDING

SUBRECIPIENT shall possess and maintain all,necessary licenses, permits,

certificates and credentials required by the laws of the United States, the State of
California, County of Sacramento and all other appropriate governmental

agencies, including any certification and credentials required by COUNTY
Failure to maintain the licenses, permitS, certificates, and credentials shall be

deemed a breach of this Agreement an.d constitutes grounds for the termination
of this Agreement by COUNTY.

SUBRECIPIENT further certifies to COUNTY that it and its principals are not

debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for, participation in

federal, State or county government contracts. SUBRECIPIENT certifies that it
shall not contract with a subcontractor that is so debarred or suspended.

VII. PERF

SUBRECIPIENT shall perform its services under this Agreement in accordance
with the industry and/o[ professional standards applicable to SUBRECIPIENT'S
services.

VIII. OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT

Alltechnical data, evaluations, plans, specifications, reports, documents, or other
work products developed by SUBRECIPIENT hereunder shall be the exclusive
property of COUNTY and shall be delivered to COUNry upon completion of the
services authorized hereunder. SUBRECIPIENT may retain copies thereof for its
files and internal use.,'Publication of the information directly derived from work
performed or data obtained in connection with services rendered under this
Agreement must first be approved in writing by COUNTY. COUNTY recognizes
that all technical data, evaluations, plans, specifications, reports, and other work
products are instruments of SUBRECIPIENT'S services and are not designed for
use other than what is intended by this Agreement.

STATUS OF SU BRECIPIENT

It is understood and agreed that SUBRECIPIENT (including SUBRECIPIENT's
employees) is an independent SUBRECIPIENT and that no relationship of
employer-employee exists between the parties hereto. SUBRECI PIENT's

Page | 3

B

R

lx.

A.

Page 64

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



B

Agreement Number:

assigned personnel shall not be entitled to any benefits payable to employees of
County. County is not required to make any deductions or withholdings from the
compensation payable to SUBRECIPIENT under the provisions of this
agreement; and as an independent SUBRECIPIENT, SUBRECIPIENT hereby
indemnifies and holds County harmless from any and all claims that may be

made against County based upon any contention by any third party that an

employer-employee relationship exists by reason of this agreement.

It is further understood and agreed by the parties hereto that SUBRECIPIENT in

the performance of its obligation hereunder is subject to the control or direction of
County as to the designation of tasks to be performed, the results to be
accomplished by the services hereunder agreed to be rendered and performed,

and not the means, methods, or sequence used by SUBRECIPIENT for
accomplishing the results.

lf, in the performance of this agreement, any third persons are employed by

SUBRECIPIENT, such person shall be entirely and exclusively under the
direction, supervision, and control of SUBRECIPIENT. All terms of employment,
including hours, wages, working conditions, discipline, hiring, and discharging, or
any other terms of employment or requirements of law, shall be determined by
SUBRECIPIENT, and the Coqnty shall have no right or authority over such
persons or the terms of such employment.

It is further understood and agreed that as an independent SUBRECIPIENT and

not an employee of County, neither the SUBRECIPIENT nor SUBRECIPIENT's
assigned personnel shall.have any entitlement as a County employee, right to act
on behalf of Cgunty in any capacity whatsoever as agent, nor to bind County to
any obligation whatso€v€r. SUBRECIPIENT shall not be covered by worker's
compensation; nor shall SUBRECIPIENT be entitled to compensated sick leave,

vacation leave, retirement entitlement, participation in group health, dental, life
and other insurance programs, or entitled to other fringe benefits payable by the
County to employees of the CountY.

It is further understood and agreed that SUBRECIPIENT must issue W-2 and

941 Forms for income,and employment tax purposes, for all of SUBRECIPIENTS
assigned personnel under the terms and conditions of this agreement.

X. SUBREC IPIENT IDENTI TION

SUBRECIPIENT shall provide the COUNry with the following information for the
purpose of compliance with California Unemployment lnsurance Code section
1088.8 and Sacramento County Code Chapter 2.160 SUBRECIPIENT'S name,

address, telephone number, social security number, and whether dependent
health insurance coverage is available to SUBRECIPIENT.

XI. COMPLIA E WITH CHILD. F

c

D

E

REPORTING LIGATIONS
ILY AND SPOUSAL SUPPORT

Page | 4Page 65

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number

SUBRECIPIENT's failure to comply with state and federal child, family and

spousal support reporting requirements regarding a SUBRECIPIENT's
employees or failure to implement lawfully served wage and earnings assignment
orders or notices of assignment relating to child, family and spousal support
obligations shall constitute a default under this Agreement'

SUBRECIPIENT's failure to cure such default within 90 days of notice by

COUNTY shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement'

SUBRECIPIENT shall complete and return SUBRECIPIENT Certification of
Compliance forms at the same time SUBRECIPIENT returns the executed copies

of this Agreement.

XII. BENEFIT WAIVER

B

C

A.

xlll

lf SUBRECIPIENT is unincorporated, SIJBRECIPIENT acknowledges and
agrees that SUBRECIPIENT is not entitled to receive the following benefits
aid/or^ compensation from COUNTY: medical, dental, vision and retirement
benefits, life and disability insurance, sick leave, bereavement leave, jury duty
leave, parental leave, or any other similar benefits or compensation othenruise

provided to permanent civil service employees pursuant to the County Charter,
the County Code, the Civil Service Rule, the Sacramento County Employees'
Retirement System and/or any and all'memoranda of understanding between
COUNTY and its employee organizations. Should SUBRECIPIENT or any
employee or agent of SUBRECIPIENT seek to obtain such benefits from
COUNry, SUBRECIPIENT agrees to.,indemnifyiand hold harmless COUNTY
from any and all claims that may be made against COUNTY for such benefits.

RETI REMENT BENEFITS/STATUS

SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that COUNTY has not made any
representations regarding entitlement, eligibility for and/or right to receive
ongoing Sacramento County Employee Retirement System (SCERS) retirement
benefits during the term of this Agreement. By entering into this Agreement,
SUBRECIPIENT assumes sole and exclusive responsibility for any
consequences, impacts or action relating to such retirement benefits that is or will

be occasioned as a result of the services provided by SUBRECIPIENT under this

Agreement. SUBRECIPIENT waives any rights to proceed against COUNry
should SCERS modify or terminate retirement benefits based on

SUBRECIPIENT's provision of services under this Agreement.

CONFLICT INTEREST

SUBRECIPIENT and SUBRECIPIENT's officers and employees shall not have a

financial interest, or acquire any financial interest, direct or indirect, in any
business, property or source of income which could be financially affected by or
othenryise conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services
required under this Agreement.

Page | 5

XIV

Page 66

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



XV

A

B

Agreement Number:

LOBBYING AND UNION ORGANIZATION ACTIVITIES

SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with all certification and disclosure requirements
prescribed by Section 319, Public Law 101-121(31 U.S.C. S 1352) and any
implementing reg ulations.

lf services under this Agreement are funded with state funds granted to
COUNTY, SUBRECIPIENT shall not utilize any such funds to assist, promote or
deter union organization by employees performing work under this Agreement
and shall comply with the provisions of Government Code Sections 16645
through 16649.

GOOD NEIGHBOR POLICY 
,

..':.,
SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with COUNTY's GoodrNeighbor Policy.
SUBRECIPIENT shall establish good neighbor practices for its facilities that
include, but are not limited to, the foltQwing:

lmplementation of litter control services;

Removal of graffiti within seventy-two hours;

XVI.

A.

1

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8

Maintenancq of facility grounds, including landscaping, in a manner that is
consistent with the neighborhood in which the facility is located;

Participation in area crime prevention and nuisance abatement efforts;
and

B

g. Undertake such other good neighbor practices as determined appropriate
by COUNTY, based on COUNTY's individualized assessment of
SUBRECIPIENT's facility, services and actual impacts on the
neighborhood in which such facility is located.

SUBRECIPIENT shall identify, either by sign or other method as approved by the
DIRECTOR, a named representative who shall be responsible for responding to
any complaints relating to SUBRECIPIENT's compliance with the required good

neighbor practices specified in this Section. SUBRECIPIENT shall post the
name and telephone number of such contact person on the outside of the facility,
unless othenryise advised by DIRECTOR.

Page | 6Page 67

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



A.

Agreement Number

C. SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with all applicable public nuisance ordinances.

D. SUBRECIPIENT shall establish an ongoing relationship with the surrounding
businesses, law enforcement and neighborhood groups and shall be an active
member of the neighborhood in which SUBRECIPIENT's site is located.

E. lf COUNry finds that SUBRECIPIENT has failed to comply with the Good
Neighbor Policy, COUNry shall notify SUBRECIPIENT in writing that corrective

action must be taken by SUBRECIPIENT within a specified time frame. lf
SUBRECIPIENT fails to take such corrective action, COUNTY shall take such

actions as are necessary to implement the necessary corrective action. COUNry
shall deduct any actual costs incurred by COUNTY when implementing such

corrective action from any amounts payable to SUBRECIPIENT under this
Agreement.

F. SUBRECIPIENT's continued non-compliance with the Good Neighbor Policy

shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement and may also result in

ineligibility for additional or future contracts with COUNTY. ':

XVII. NONDISC MINATION IN EM . SERVICES. BE EF|TS AND
FACILITIES

SUBRECIPIENT agrees and assures COUNTY that SUBRECIPIENT and any

SUBCONTRACTORs shall cornply with all applicable federal, state, and local

Anti-discrimination laws, regulations, and ordinances and to not unlawfully
discriminate, harass, or allow harassment against any employee, applicant for
employment, employee or agent of COUNTY, or recipient of services
contemplated to be provided or provided under this Agreement, because of race,

ancestry, marital status, color; religious c!'eed, political belief, national origin,

ethnic group identification, sex, sexUal orientation, age (over 40), medical
condition (including HIV and AIDS),:or physical or mental disability.
SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of its employees
and applicants for employment, the treatment of COUNTY employees and

agents, and recipients of services are free from such discrimination and
harassment.

SUBRECIPIENT represents that it is in compliance with and agrees that it will

continue to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. S

12101et seq.), the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code $$
12900 et seq.), and regulations and guidelines issued pursuant thereto.

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to compile data, maintain records and submit reports to
permit effective enforcement of all applicable antidiscrimination laws and this
provision.

SUBRECIPIENT shall include this nondiscrimination provision in all subcontracts
related to this Agreement.

B

c

D

XVIII. INDEMNIFICATION
Page | 7Page 68

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number

To the fullest extent permitted by law, for work or services (including professional

services), provided under this Agreement, SUBRECIPIENT shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless COUNTY, its governing Board, officers, directors,
officials, employees, and authorized volunteers and agents, (individually an
"lndemnified Party" and collectively "lndemnified Parties"), from and against any
and all claims, demands, actions, losses, liabilities, damages, and all expenses
and costs incidental thereto (collectively "Claims"), including cost of defense,
settlement, arbitration, expert fees, and reasonable attorneys'fees, resulting from

injuries to or death of any person, including employees of either party hereto, and

damage to or destruction of any property, or loss of use or reduction in value
thereof, including the property of either party hereto, and recovery of monetary
losses incurred by COUNTY directly attributable to the performance of
SUBRECIPIENT, arising out of, pertaining to, or resulting from the negligent acts,

errors, omissions, recklessness, or willful misconduct of SUBRECIPIENT, its
employees, or SUBRECIPIENT's subconsultants or subcontractors at any tier,

or anyother party for which SUBRECIPIENT is legally liable under law.

The right to defense and indemnity under this indemnity obligation arises upon

occurrence of an event giving rise to a Claim and, thereafter, upon tender in
writing to SUBRECIPIENT. Upon receipt of tender, SUBRECIPIENT shall provide
prompt written response that:it accepts tender. Failure to accept tender may be
grounds for termination of the Agreement. SUBRECIPIENT shall control the

defense of lndemnified Parties; subject to using counsel reasonably acceptable
to COUNW Both parties agree to cooperate in the defense of a Claim.

This indemnity;obligation shall not be limited by the types and amounts of
insurance or self-insurance maintained by SUBRECIPIENT or SUBRECIPIENT'S
SUBCONTRACTORs at any tier'.

Nothing in this indemnity obligation shall be construed to create any duty to, any
standard of care with reference to, or any liability or obligation, contractual or
otherwise, to any third party.

XIX. INSURANCE

Without limiting SUBRECI Pl ENT'S indemnification, SUBRECIPI ENT shall
maintain in force at all times during the term of this Agreement and any
extensions or modifications thereto, insurance as specified in Exhibit B. lt is the
responsibility of SUBRECIPIENT to notify its insurance advisor or insurance
carrier(s) regarding coverage, limits, forms and other insurance requirements
specified in Exhibit B. lt is understood and agreed that COUNry shall not pay

any sum to SUBRECIPIENT under this Agreement unless and until COUNTY is

satisfied that all insurance required by this Agreement is in force at the time
services hereunder are rendered. Failure to maintain insurance as required in

this agreement may be grounds for material breach of contract.

XX. INFORMATIONTECHNOLOGYASSURANCES

Page | 8Page 69

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number

SUBRECIPIENT shall take all reasonable precautions to ensure that any
hardware, software, and/or embedded chip devices used by SUBRECIPIENT in

the performance of services under this Agreement, other than those owned or
provided by COUNTY, shall be free from viruses. Nothing in this provision shall
be construed to limit any rights or remedies othenruise available to COUNTY
under this Agreement.

XXI. WEB ACG SSIBILITY

SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that allweb sites and web applications provided by

SUBRECIPIENT pursuant to this Agreement shall comply with COUNW's Web
Accessibility Policy adopted by the Board of Supervisors on February 18, 2003
as well as any approved amendment thereto.

xxil. coMP TION AND PAYME OF INVOICES ITATIONS

Compensation under this Agreement shall be limited to the Maximum Total
Payment Amount set forth in Exhibit C, or Exhibit C as modified by COUNTY in

accordance with express provisions in this Agreement, and as identified in

Attachment A, Federal Funding ldentification and Schedule.

SUBRECIPIENT shall submit an invoice on the forms and in accordance with the
procedures prescribed by COUNry on a monthly basis for services performed

during the previous month. lnvoices shall be submitted to COUNTY no later than

the fifteenth (1sth) day of the month following the invoice period, and COUNTY
shall pay SUBRECIPIENT within thirty (30) days after receipt of an appropriate
and coriect invoice. The payment shall only occur after the COUNTY reviews the

GRANTEES's reimbursement request :to ensure that expenditures detailed
therein qualify for reimbursement in accordance with all published federal, state,

and local guidance regarding the use of funds as specified by the US

TREASURY. All payments from the COUNTY to the SUBRECIPIENT are subject
tO all applicable federal, state, and local laws regarding the governance of ARPA
funds.

COUNTY operates on a July through June fiscal year. lnvoices for services
provided in any fiscal year must be submitted no later than July 31, one month
after the end of the fiscal year. lnvoices submitted after July 31 for the prior fiscal
year shall not be honored by COUNW unless SUBRECIPIENT has obtained
prior written COUNTY approval to the contrary.

The COUNTY may request additional information from the SUBRECIPIENT, as
needed, to meet any additional guidelines regarding the use of ARPA funds that
may be established by the US TREASURY during the term of this Agreement.

SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain for five years following termination of this
Agreement full and complete documentation of all services and expenditures
associated with the use of funds covered under this Agreement.

A

B

c

D

E

Page | 9Page 70

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



F

Agreement Number:

ln the event SUBRECIPIENT fails to comply with any provisions of this
Agreement, COUNry may withhold payment until such non-compliance has

been corrected.

XXIII. LEGAL TRAINING INFORMATION

lf under this Agreement SUBRECIPIENT is to provide training of County
personnel on legal issues, then SUBRECIPIENT shall submit all training and

program materialfor prior review and written approval by County Counsel. Only

those materials approved by County Counsel shall be utilized to provide such

training.

XXIV. SUBCONTRACT S. ASS NMENT

A. SUBRECIPIENT shall obtain prior written approval from COUNTY before

subcontracting any of the services delivered under this Agreement.
SUBRECIPIENT remains legally responsible for the performance of all contract

terms including work performed by third parties under subcontracts. Any
subcontracting will be subject to all applicable pfovisions of this Agreement
including any and all insurance requirements.. SUBRECIPIENT shall be held

responsible by COUNTY for the performance'of any subcontractor whether
approved by COUNTY or not'

SUBRECIPIENT shall attach and apply all terms and conditions in Exhibits D and

E, as applicable, to all subcontracts, and shall require that all subcontractors of
all leveis comply with and attach and apply these terms and conditions to their
subcontracts, if any, as aPPlicable

This Agreement is not qsstgngble by SUBRECIPIENT in whole or in part, without
the:prior written conS6nt of COUNTY.

Aueruomerur eup WnlvFB

Except as provided herein, no alteration, amendment, variation, or waiver of the

terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by both

parties. Waivei by either party of any default, breach or condition precedent shall

not be construed as a waiver of any other default, breach or condition precedent,

or any other right hereunder. No interpretation of any provision of this

Agreement shall be binding upon COUNTY unless agreed in writing by

DIRECTOR and counsel for COUNTY.

XXVI. SUCCESSORS

This Agreement shall bind the successors of COUNTY and SUBRECIPIENT in

the same manner as if they were expressly named.

XXVII. TIME

Time is of the essence of this Agreement

XXV

Page | 10Page 71

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number

XXVIII. I NTERPRETATION

This Agreement shall be deemed to have been prepared equally by both of the
parties, and the Agreement and its individual provisions shall not be construed or
interpreted more favorably for one party on the basis that the other party
prepared it.

XXIX. DIRECTOR

As used in this Agreement, "DIRECTOR" shall mean the Director of XXXXXXX,
or his/her designee.

XXX. DISPUTES

ln the event of any dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the parties

shall attempt, in good faith, to promptly resolve the dispute mutually between
themselves. Pending resolution of any such dispute, SUBRECIPIENT shall

continue without delay to carry out all its;responsib,ilities under this Agreement
unless the Agreement is othenruise terminated in,accordance with the
Termination provisions herein,. COUNTY shall not be required to make payments

for any services that are the subject of this disbute resolution process until such

dispute has been mutually resolved by the parties:. lf the dispute cannot be

resolved within 15 calendar days of initiating such hegotiations or such other time
period as may be mutually agreed to by the parties in writing, either party may
pursue its available legal:and equitable remedies,:pursuant to the laws of the
State of Califor:nia. Nothing in this Agreement or provision shall constitute a

waiver of any of the government claim,filing requirements set forth in Title 1,

Division 3.6, of the Galifornia Government Code or as otherwise set forth in local,

state and federal law.

XXXI. TERMI TION

COUNTY may terminate this A$reement without cause upon thirty (30) days
written notice to the other party. Notice shall be deemed served on the date of
mailing. lf notice of termination for cause is given by COUNTY to
SUBRECIPIENT and it is later determined that SUBRECIPIENT was not in

default or the default was excusable, then the notice of termination shall be

deemed to have been given without cause pursuant to this paragraph (A).

COUNry may terminate this Agreement for cause immediately upon giving

written notice to SUBRECIPIENT should SUBRECIPIENT materially fail to
perform any of the covenants contained in this Agreement in the time and/or
manner specified. ln the event of such termination, COUNTY may proceed with

the work in any manner deemed proper by COUNTY. lf notice of termination for
cause is given by COUNTY to SUBRECIPIENT and it is later determined that
SUBRECIPIENT was not in default or the default was excusable, then the notice

of termination shall be deemed to have been given without cause pursuant to
paragraph (A) above.

Page | 11

A

B

Page 72

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



c

Agreement Number:

COUNTY may terminate or amend this Agreement immediately upon giving

written notice to SUBRECIPIENT that funds are not available because: 1)

Sufficient funds are not appropriated in COUNTY's Adopted or Adjusted Budget;

2) the COUNTY is advised the funds are not available from external sources for
this Agreement or any portion thereof, including if distribution of such funds to the

COUNry is suspended or delayed; 3) if funds for the services and/or programs

provided pursuant to this Agreement are not appropriated by the State; 4) funds

that were previously available for this Agreement are reduced, eliminated, and/or

reallocated by COUNTY as a result of budget or revenue reductions during the

fiscal year.

lf this Agreement is terminated under paragraph A or C above, SUBRECIPIENT
shall oniy be paid for any services completed and provided prior to notice of
termination. ln the event of termination under paragraph A or C above,
SUBRECIPIENT shall be paid an amountrwhich bears the same ratio to the total

compensation authorized by the Agreement as the services actually performed

bear to the total services of SUBRECIPIENT covered by this Agreement, less

payments of compensation previously ma.de ln no event, how€ver, shall
COUNry pay SUBRECIPIENT an amount which exceeds a pro rata portion of
the Agreement total based,on the portion of the Agreement term that has elapsed

on the effective date of the termination

SUBRECIPIENT shall not incur any eipenses under this Agreement after notice

of termination and shall cancel any outstanding.expenses obligations to a third
party that SUBRECIPIENT can legally,cancel.

XXXII. REPORTS

SUBRECIPIENT shall, without additional compensation therefor, make fiscal,
program evaluation, progress, and such other reports aS may be reasonably
iequired by DIRECTOR concerning SUBRECIPIENT's activities as they affect

the contract duties and purposes herein. COUNTY shall explain procedures for
reporting the required information.

SUBRECIPIENT agrees that, pursuant to Government Code section 7522.56,
SUBRECIPIENT shallrmake best efforts to determine if any of its employees or

new hires providing direct services to the county are members of the Sacramento
County Employees' Retirement System (SCERS)'

SUBRECIPIENT further agrees that it shall make a report bi-annually (due no

later than January 31st and July 31st) to the COUNW with a list of its employees

that are members of SCERS along with the total number of hours worked during

the previous 6 months. This report shall be fonryarded to where Notice is sent
pursuant to Roman numeral lll of this Agreement.

D

E

A.

B

Page | 12Page 73

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

XXXIII. AUDITS AND RECORDS

A. COUNTY or its designee shall have the right at reasonable times and
intervals to audit, at SUBRECIPIENT premises, SUBRECIPIENT'S financial
and program records as necessary to determine SUBRECIPIENT'S
compliance with legal and grant agreement requirements and the correctness
of ctaims submitted by SUBRECIPIENT. SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain such
records for a period of at least five years following the expenditure of all funds
by the County or after December 31 , 2026, and shall make them promptly

available for copying upon COUNffS request. COUNTY shall have the right

to withhold any payment under this Agreement until SUBRECIPIENT has
provided access to its financial and program records related to this
Agreement. 

. ,

B. lf SUBRECIPIENT expends seven hundred fifty thousand dollars ($750,000)

or more in federal awards during its fiscal year, the SUBRECIPIENT must
have a single audit completed and conducted in accordance with 2 CFR S

200.514, unless SUBRECIPIENT elects to have a program-specific audit in

accordance with 2 CFR S 200.501(c); and SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with
all of the federal auditing requirements found in 2 CFR Subpart:F.

C. In addition to the OMB requitements of paragraph B of this section,
COUNTY requires SUBRECIPIENT to provide an annualAudited or Reviewed
financial statement as follows:

1. Annual Audited finaneial statements and accompanying Auditor's
report and notes is required from SUBRECIPIENT'when COUNTY has awarded
contracts totaling $150,000 or more for any twelve-month period. The Audited
financial statement shall be prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) and the Audit shall be performed by an

independent Certified Public Accountant in accordance with Generally Accepted
Auditing Standards (GAAS).

.

2. Annual Reviewed financial statements are required from
SUBRECIPIENT when COUNry has awarded contracts totaling less than

$150,000, but more than $50,000 for any twelve-month period. The Reviewed
financial statement shall be prepared by an independent Certified Public
Accountant in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and

Review Services issued by the AICPA. Audited financial statements may be

substituted for Reviewed financial statements.

3. Should any audit findings be noted in the Audit or Review
SUBRECIPIENT must submit a Corrective Action Plan with the Audit or Review
detailing how the audit findings will be addressed.

4. lf management letters are issued by a Certified Public Accountant
separate from the audit, SUBRECIPIENT is required to provide copies to
COUNTY, and submit corrective action plans to address findings or
recommendations noted in the management letters.

Page | 13Page 74

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number

S. The annualAudited or Reviewed financial statement shall include a

Summary of Auditor's Results.

D. Term of the Audit or Review
The Audit(s) or Review(s) shall cover the entire term of the contract. lf
SUBRECIPIENT'S fiscal year is different than the contract term, multiple Audits

or Reviews shall be required, in order to cover the entire term of the contract.

E. Termination
lf the Agreement is terminated for any reason during the contract period, the
Audit or Review shall cover the entire period of the Agreement for which services
were provided.

F. Submittal and Due Dates for Audits or Reviews
SUBRECIPIENT shall provide to COUNTY a copy of the Audit or Review, as

required in this section, due six months following the end of SUBRECIPIENT'S
fiscal year. Audit or Review shall be:sent to:

Contracts Manager
County of Sacramento

XXXX)(XXX

G. Request for Extension of Due Date
SUBRECIPIENT may request an extensiorr of the:due date for the Audit or
Review in writing. Such request shall:include the ieason for the delay, a specific
date for the extension and be sent to:

cS;ftXX"rt*:fl%"il"
XXXXXXX

H. Past Due:AudiVReview
COUNTY may withhold payments due to SUBRECIPIENT from all past, current

and future contracts when past, current or future audits/reviews are not provided

to COUNTY by due date or approved extended due date'

XXXIV. EQUIPMENT OWNERSHIP
COUrufy shall have and retain ownership and title to all equipment purchased by

CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall furnish, and amend
as necess ?ry, a list of all equipment purchased under this Agreement together
with the bills of sale and any other documents as may be necessary to show
clear title and reasonableness of the purchase price. The equipment list shall
specify the quantity, name, description, purchase price, and date of purchase of
ail equipment. CONTRACTOR shall make all equipment available to COUNTY
during normal business hours for tagging or inventory. CONTRACTOR shall
deliver all equipment to COUNTY upon termination of this Agreement.

Page | 14Page 75

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

XXXV. PRIOR AGREEMENTS

This Agreement constitutes the entire contract between COUNTY and

SUBRECIPIENT regarding the subject matter of this Agreement. Any prior

agreements, whether oral or written, between COUNTY and SUBRECIPIENT
regarding the subject matter of this Agreement are hereby terminated effective
immediately upon full execution of this Agreement.

XXXVI. SEVERABILITY

lf any term or condition of this Agreement or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or

unenforceability shall not affect other terms, conditions, or applications which can

be given effect without the invalid term, condition, or application; to this end the

terms and conditions of this Agreement are declared severable.

XXXVII. FORCE EURE

Neither SUBRECIPIENT nor COUNTY shall be liable or responsible for delays or

failures in performance resulting from events beyond the reasonable control of
such party and without fault or negligence of such party. Such events shall
include but not be limited to acts of God, strikes; lockouts, riots, acts of war,

epidemics, acts of government, fire, power failures, nuclear accidents,
earthquakes, unqsually severe weather, qcls of terrorism, or other disasters,
whether or not similar to the foregoing, and acts or omissions or failure to

cooperate of the other party or third parties (except as othenruise specifically
provided herein).

XXXVIII.W
All services performed and deliverables provided pursuant to this Agreement are

subject to all of the terms, conditions, price discounts and rates set forth herein,

notwithstanding the expiration of the initial term of this Agreement or any
extension thereof. Further, the terms, conditions and warranties contained in this
Agreement that by their sense and context are intended to survive the completion
of the performance, cancellation or termination of this Agreement shall so
survive.

xxxlx. covlD-1 I IREMENTS

CONTRACTOR shall be solely and completely responsible for implementing the

applicable COVID-19 guidelines from the California Division of lndustrial Safety
and the applicable COVID-19 guidance from the Centers for Disease Control and

Prevention (CDC) including staff education, staff training, routine cleaning of staff
and public space, on-site washing facilities, and to the extent applicable Personal

Protective Equipment (PPE) donning and maintenance. CONTRACTOR shall
submit a plan for compliance with these standards to the COUNTY. This safety
plan and/or narrative description shall describe the education, training, routine

Page | 15Page 76

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

cleaning, on-site washing facilities and the PPE to be used or provided by the
CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall make any reasonable corrections that
COUNTY requests to such Plans.

XL. ECONOMIC SANCTIONS

Pursuant to California State Executive Order N-6-22 (Order) imposing economic
sanctions against Russia and declaring support of Ukraine, County shall
terminate any contract with any individual or entity that is in violation of the Order
or that is subject to economic sanctions therein, and shall not enter a contract
with any such individual or entity while the Order is in effect.

xlt. TNGoRPoRATION OF EXHIBITS AND ATTACHI'IFNTS.

The Exhibits and Attachments attached to this Agreement are incorporated
herein and shall be considered a part of this Agreement for all purposes.

XLII. DUPLI CATE C UNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in duplicate counterparts. The Agreement
shall be deemed executed when it has been signed by both parties.

Signatures scanned and transmitted:electronically shall be deemed original
signatures for purposes of this Agreement, r11th sgch scanned signatures having

the same legal effeit as original signatures.'This Agreement may be executed
through the use of an electronic signature and will be binding on each party as if
it were physically executed.

XLIII. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE

Each person executing:this Agreement represents and warrants that he or she is
duly authorized and has legalauthority to execute and deliver this Agreement for
or on behalf of the parties to this Agreement. Each party represents and
warrants to the other that the execution and delivery of the Agreement and the
performance of such party's obligations hereunder have been duly authorized.

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly
executed as of the day and year first written above.

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO, SUBRECIPIENT,

By By

Date

TRACT AN PIENT

Date

Page | 16Page 77

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

REVI N AND APPROVE D RY EOI INTY COUNS trt

By

2356356

Date:

Page | 17Page 78

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

ATTACHMENT A to Agreement between the COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO'
hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY", and (SUBRECIPIENT NAME) hereinafter

referred to as "SUBRECIPIENT"

Federal Funding ldentification and Schedule
uired Pursuant to 2 CFR 200.332

(SUBRECTPTENT NAME)
Subrecipient name (which must match the
name associated with its unique entity
identifier):
Subrecipient's unique entity identifier:

HR 1319, Title lX, Subtitle M, Section
9901

Federal Award ldentification Number (FAIN)

05t1912021
FederalAward Date (date when the Federal
award is signed by the authorized official of
the Federal awarding agency) of award to the
recr ient the Federal

Start: Contract Execution Date
End: Contract End Date

Subaward
End Date:

Pof rmanceerfo StartPe riod

Start: Contract Execution Date
End: Contract End Date

Subaward Budget Period Start and End
Date:

XXXXX
Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this
action by the pass-through entitY
(Sacramento County) to the subrecipient:

XXXXX
TotalAmount of Federal Funds Obligated to
the subrecipient by the pass-through entity
includinq the current financial obligation

XXXXX
Total Amount of the Federal Award
committed to the subrecipient by the pass-
thro hen

For use compliant with Section 603 of
the Social Security Act, as amended
by Section 9901 of the ARP Act of
2021

Federal award project description, as
required to be responsive to the Federal
Funding Accountability and Transparency Act
(FFATA)

U.S. Department of Treasury

Sacramento County, CA
XXXXXXXX

Name of Federal awarding agency, pass-
through entity, and contact information for
awarding official of the Pass-through entity

21.027
Coronavirus Local Fiscal Recovery

Fund (CLFRF)

Assistance Listings number and Title (pass-
through entity must identify the dollar amount
made available under each Federal award
and the Assistance Listings Number at time
of disbursement

Yes or Nols the award for research and development?

10% de minimis indirect cost rate
lndirect cost rate for the Federal award
(including if the de minimis rate is charged)
per S 200.414

Page | 18Page 79

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

EXHIBIT A to Agreement
between the GountY of Sacramento,

hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY," and

hereinafter referred to as "SUBRECIPIENT"

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1 DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

The services to be provided under this Ag ln

Page | 19Page 80

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

EXHIBIT B to Agreement
between the Gounty of Sacramento,

hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY," and
(SUBRECIPIENT NAME),

hereinafter referred to as "SUBRECIPIENT"

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Without limiting SUBRECI Pl ENT'S indemnification, SUBRECI PIENT shall
procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which'may arise from or in
connection with the performance of the Agreement by SUBRECIPIENT, its

agents, representatives, employees, or SUBRECIPIENTs. COUNTY shall retain

the right at any time to review the coverage, form, and amount of the insurance
requiied hereby. lf in the opinion of Co.unty Risk Manager, insurance provisions

in ihese requirements do not provide adequate protection for COUNTY and for
members of the public, COUNTY may require SUBRECIPIENT to obtain
insurance sufficient in coverage, form and amount to provide adequate
protection. COUNffS requirements shall be reasonable but shall be imposed to
assure protection from and against the kind and extent of risks that exist at the
time a change in insurance is required.

II. VERIFIGATI RAGE

SUBRECIPIENT shall furnish COUNTY with certificates evidencing coverage
required below. Copies of required endorsements must be attached to provided

certificates. County Risk Manager may approve self-insurance programs in lieu

of requirgd policies of irtsurance if, in the opinion of the Risk Manager, the
interests of COUNTY and the genbral public are adequately protected. All
ceitificates, evidences of s-elf-insurance, and additional insured endorsements
are to be received and approved by COUNTY before performance commences.
COUNTY reserves the right to require that SUBRECIPIENT provide complete
copies of any policy of insurance including endorsements offered in compliance
with these specifications.

MINIMUM SCOP OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as

GENERAL LlABlLlry: lnsurance Services Office's Commercial General
Liability occurrence coverage form CG 0001. lncluding, but not limited to
Prem ises/Operations, P rod ucts/Comp leted Operations, Contractua l, a nd

Personal & Advertising Injury, without additional exclusions or limitations,
unless approved by County Risk Manager.

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY: lnsurance Services Office's Commercial
Automobile Liability coverage form CA 000.

A.

B

Page | 20Page 81

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



1

Agreement Number:

CommercialAutomobile Liability: auto coverage symbol "1" (any

auto) for corporate/business owned vehicles. lf there are no owned
or leased vehicles, symbols 8 and 9 for non-owned and hired autos
shall apply.

Personal Lines automobile insurance shall apply if vehicles are

individually owned.

$2,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000

2

tv.

D. UMBRELLA: Umbrella or Excess Liability policies are acceptable where

the need for higher liability limits is noted in the Minimum Limits of
lnsurance and shall provide liability coverages that at least follow form
over the underlying insurance requirements where necessary for
Commercial General Liability, Commercial Automobile:'Liability,
Employers' Liability, and any other liability coverage (other than
Professional Liability) designated ulderlhe Minimum Scope of lnsurance.

E. Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions Liability insurance
appropriate to SUBRECIPIENT's profession' 

,,

F. Cyber Liability lncluding ldentity Theft, lnformation Security and Privacy
lnjury. Coverage shall include, but is not limited to: 1. Third party injury or

dimage (including loss or coriuption of data) arising from a negligent act,

error or omission or:a data breach 2. Defense, indemnity and legal costs
associated with regulatory breach (including HIPAA), negligence or breach
of contract. 3. Administrative expenses for,forensic expenses and legal

services''4. Crisis Managerirent expenses for printing, advertising, mailing
of materials and travel costs of crisis management firm, including
notification expenses. 5. ldentity event service expenses for identity theft
education, assistance, credit file monitoring, to mitigate effects of personal

identity event, post event services.

MINIMUM LiMiTS OF INSURANCE

c woRKERS', COMPENSATION: Statutory requirements of the state of
California and Employer's Liability lnsurance. SUBRECIPIENT has no
paid employees. See signed Statement of no Workers'
Com pe nsation/Em ploye r's Liab i I ity coverage.

SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain limits no less than

A. GENERAL LIABILITY

General Liability shall be on an Occurrence basis (as opposed to Claims Made

basis). Minimum limits and structure shall be:

General Aggregate:
Products Comp Ops:
Personal & Adv. lnjury:

Page 121Page 82

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Each Occurrence:

Agreement Number

$2,000,000

B. AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Com mercial Automob i le Liabi lity for Corporate/b usi ness owned veh icles

including non-owned and hired, $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit.

Personal Lines Automobile Liability for lndividually owned vehicles,

$25,000 per person, $50,000 each accident, $50,000 property damage

C. Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions Liability: $1,000,000 per

claim and aggregate.

D. Cyber Liability including ldentity Theft, lnformation Security and Privacy
Injury: $1,000,000 per claim ol,incident and $1'000,000 aggregate.

DEDUCTIBLES AND SELF.INSUREP NCTCruTIOru

-

Any deductibles or self-insured retention that apply to any insurance required by

this Agreement must be declared and apprwed by COUNTY'

VI. CLAIMS

lf professiona! liability coverage is written on a Cla;ms Made form:

A. The "Retro Date" must be shown, and must be on or before the date of the
Agreement or the beginning of Agreement performance by
SUBRECIPTENT.

B. lnsurance must be.maintained and evidence of insurance must be
provided for at least one (1) year after completion of the Agreement.

C. lf coverage is cancelled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another
claims made policv form with a "Retro Date" prior to the contract effective
date, SUBREC|P|ENT must purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a
minimum of one (1) year after completion of the Agreement.

VII. OTHER INSURANCE ISIONS

The insurance policies required in this Agreement are to contain, or be endorsed
to contain, as applicable, the following provisions:

A. ALL POLICIES

ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS: lnsurance is to be placed with insurers
with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A-: Vll. County Risk
Manager may waive or alter this requirement, or accept self-insurance in

lieu of any required policy of insurance if, in the opinion of the Risk
Page | 22

1

2

V

Page 83

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



B

1

Agreement Number:

Manager, the interests of COUNTY and the general public are adequately
protected.

MAINTENANCE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE: ThE SUBRECIPIENT
shall maintain all insurance coverages and limits in place at alltimes and
provide the County with evidence of each policy's renewal ten (10) days in

advance of its anniversary date.

SUBRECIPIENT is required by this Agreement to immediately notify
County if they receive a communication from their insurance carrier or
agent that any required insurance is to be canceled, non-renewed,
reduced in scope or limits or otherwise materially changed.
SUBRECIPIENT shall provide evidence that such cancelled or non-
renewed or othenrvise materially changed insurance has been replaced or
its cancellation notice withdrawn without any interruption in coverage,
scope or limits. Failure to maintain required insurance in force shall be

considered a material breach of the Agreement.

COMMERC lAL G EN ERAL LIABI LIry AN D/OR COMMERC IAL

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY:

ADDITIONAL INSURED STATUS: COUNry, itS OffiCETS, d CCtOTS,

officials, employees, and volunteers are to be endorsed as additional
insureds as respects: liability arising out of activities performed by or on

behalf of SUBRECIPIENT;:products and completed operations of
SUBRECIPIENT; premises owned, occupied or used by SUBRECIPIENT;
or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by SUBRECIPIENT.
The coverage shall contain no endorsed limitations on the scope of
protection afforded to COUNTY, its officers, directors, officials, employees,
or volunteers.

CIVIL CODE PROVISION: Coverage shall not extend to any indemnity
coverage for the active negligence of the additional insured in any case
where an agreement to indemnify the additional insured would be invalid

under Subdivision (b) of Section 2782 of the Civil Code.

PRIMARY INSURANCE: For any claims related to this agreement,
SUBRECIPIENT'S insurance coverage shall be endorsed to be primary

insurance as respects COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees and

volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by COUNTY, its

officers, directors, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of
SUBRECIPIENT'S insurance and shall not contribute with it.

SEVERABILIry OF INTEREST: SUBRECIPIENT'S insurance shall apply

separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought,
except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

SUBCONTRACTORS: SUBRECIPIENT shall be responsible for the acts
and omissions of all its subcontractors and additional insured

Page | 23

3

4

5

Page 84

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



c

Agreement Number:

endorsements as provided by SUBRECIPIENT'S subcontractor

WORKERS' COMPENSATION :

WORKERS' COMPENSATION WAIVER OF SUBROGATION: The
workers' compensation policy required hereunder shall be endorsed to
state that the workers' compensation carrier waives its right of subrogation
against COUNTY, its officers, directors, officials, employees, agents or
volunteers, which might arise by reason of payment under such policy in
connection with performance under this Agreement by SUBRECIPIENT.

D. NOTIFICATION OF CLAIM

lf any claim for damages is filed with SUBRECIPIENT or if any lawsuit is

instituted against SUBRECIPIENT, that arise out of or are in any way
connected with SUBRECIPIENT'S performance under this Agreement and

that in any way, directly or indirectly, contingently or otherwise, affect or
might reasonably affect COUNry, SUBRECIPIENT shall give prompt and

timely notice thereof to COUNTY. Notice shall be prompt and timely if
given within thirty (30) days following the date of receipt of a claim or ten
(10) days following the date of service of process of a lawsuit.

Page 124Page 85

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

EXHIBIT C to Agreement
between the GountY of Sacramento,

hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY," and
(SUBRECIPIENT NAME),

hereinafter referred to as "SUBREGIPIENT"

COMPENSATION

1. MAXIMUM PAYM ENT TO SUB PIENT
The Maximum Total Payment Amount under this Agreement is

2. SUBMISSION OF INVOICES
SUBRECIPIENT shall submit an invoice in accordance with the procedures

lsslon

3

prescribed by COUNTY lnvoices shall be submitted to COUNTY on a quarterly

basis, no later than the fifteenth (15th) day followihg the invoice period, and
COUNry shall pay SUBRECIPIENT within thirty (30) days after receipt of an

appropriate and correct invoice.

SUBREClPlENT,shall irtclude the following information on all invoices

L Grant Agreement Number:
2. Prejeqi
3. Date of
4. Time Period lnvoice Covers
5. Services Provided, Respective Compensation Requested, and certification
from SUBRECIPIENT'S financial officer that invoiced expenses were incurred by

SUBRECIPIENT
6. Any other information deemed necessary by SUBRECIPIENT and/or
COUNTY.

TI
Compensation for services rendered under this Agreement shall be in
with the fee schedules, as summarized above, Services rendered sha

accordance
ll be billed at

the usual customary rates for the services actually rendered. Total compensation,
including fees, expenses, and profits, for services rendered by SUBRECIPIENT
shall not exceed the Maximum Total Payment Amount indicated above.

4. ITEMIZED TASKS AND SUBTASKS
lf SUBRECIPIENT's Proposal contains a schedule of tasks or subtasks with
identified levels of effort such as estimated hours and/or estimated costs, or
identifiable work products, milestones, or other events, then compensation for
these individual tasks or activities shall not exceed the identified estimate or other

Page | 25Page 86

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

limiting factors without the written approval of COUNTY's Project Manager.
SUBRECIPIENT shall promptly notify COUNTY's Project Manager in writing of any
tasks, subtasks, work products, or milestones that need to be re-evaluated and

indicate the reason and/or justification for such reevaluation. COUNTY's Project
Manager is authorized to negotiate adjustments of individualtasks so long as the
work is within the general scope of the project and the total compensation does not

exceed the Maximum Total Payment Amount under this Agreement listed above.

5 WORK NOT IN S PE OF SERVICES
SUBRECIPIENT shall immediately notify the COUNTY's Project Manager in writing

of any work that the COUNry requests to be performed that SUBRECIPIENT
believes is outside of the original scope of work cevered by this Agreement. lf it is
determined that said request is outside of the scope:of work, such work shall not be
performed unless and until the DIRECTOR approves such request in writing and

authorizes the use of any contingency funds, if any, for such work, or an

amendment providing for an adjustment in SUBRECIPIENT's compensation is
approved and executed by both parties.

NOTIFICATION OF 50% AND l$Oo/o EXPENDITURE OF COMP ENSATIONb.
SU BRECIPIENT shall notify COUNffS Project Manager in writing upon
expenditure of fifty percent (5070) of the authorized Agreement amount and upon

one hundred percent (100%) of the authorized Agreement amount.

7. PAYMENTS
ln accordance with the Compensation and Payme nt: of lnvoices Limitations
provision of this Agreement, COUNry shall address and submit payments to
SUBRECIPIENT at address in the Notice provision of this Agreement.

''..'-..
SUBRECIPIENT may ihange the address to which subsequent payments shall be

sent by giving written notice designating'a change of address to COUNTY, which

shall be effective upon receiPt.

8. BUDGET REVISION REQUESTS
A request for line item transfers within budget categories must be made prior to any

expenditure made using requested budget changes. The line item transfers may be

approved, provided such transfers do not exceed the totalAgreement amount and

do not compromise the intent of the program/services.

Page | 26Page 87

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

EXHIBIT D to Agreement
between the Gounty of Sacramento,

hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY," and
(SUBRECIPIENT NAME),

hereinafter referred to as "SUBRECIPIENT"

FEDERAL SUBAWARD AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT 2021
REQUIREMENTS

The terms of this Exhibit shall apply to Subrecipient, and all of its subcontractors,
subrecipients, and any other entities or persons (excluding beneficiaries) receiving or

being reimbursed under the Agreement. Subrecipient shall include this Exhibit in all

agreements executed for performance of this Agreement, as relevant. To the extent there
aie conflicts between this Exhibit and the Agreement, this Exhibit shall prevail unless

stated otherwise. Subrecipients who receive funding under the American Rescue Plan

Act ("ARPA") Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund shall comply with all

ARPA-applicable requirements of federal, State, and lo-cal laws, ordinances, executive

orders, regulations, project and administrative. requirements, policies and any other
requirements and any other requirements including but not limited to current and

subsequent U.S. Treasury rules, .regulations, guidelines, and instructions, executive

orders and other applicable laws. This Exhibit includes key provisions of the ARPA set

forth in 2 CFR Appendix ll to Part 200 (Contract Proviqions for Non-Federal Entity

Contracts Under Feder.alAwalds), and:in no means limits the:Subrecipient's obligation to

comply with all applicable requirements of federal, State, and local laws, ordinances,

execuiive orders, regulations, program and administrative requirements, policies and any

other requirements a as they pertain to the performance of this Agreement.

Subrecipient:Acknowledgement. The Subrecipient acknowledges that it is a
subrecipient as defined in title 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations ("CFR")
200.93.

A

B,

c.

Subrecipient Compliance with Federal Award. At all times during which the
Subrecipient is performing under this Agreement, the Subrecipient shall comply with

the terms of the underlyring Federal Award, as well as with any guidance provided

by the FederalAwarding AgencY.

Gompliance with the Federal Uniform Guidance. The Subrecipient shall comply

wltn ilt applicableprovisions of the Federal Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards as found in 2 CFR Part

200 (the "Uniform Guidance") when meeting its obligations under this Agreement.
The Uniform Guidance can be found at: https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-2/subtitle-
A/ch a pte r -ll I part-200?toc= 1 .

References for Emphasis Only. The parties hereby agree that the specific
provisions of the Uniform Guidance - or any other applicable federal, state, or local

Page | 27

D

Page 88

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



E

Agreement Number

law - that are referenced in this Agreementare referenced for emphasis only. The

exclusion of a specific applicable provision of law from this Agreement does not

alleviate the Subrecipient from its obligation to comply with any such applicable
provisions.

Federal Agency Guidance Obligations. By executing this Agreement, the

Subrecipient hereby certifies that it has reviewed 2 CFR Part 200 and any and all

relevant Federal Awarding Agency guidance and that it understands its obligations
pursuant to such federal regulations and guidance. Subrecipient is required to

comply with the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Federal
Provislons: COVID-19 State and Local Fiscal Guidance for State, Territorial, Local

and Tribal Governments found at: https://home.treasury.qov/policv-
issues/coronaviru s/assista nce-for-state- loca l-a nd-triba l-oovernm d-

local-fiscal funds: U.S. Treasury COVID-19 State and Local Fiscal

Recovery Fun
01-27lodfl202

d - Final Rule fo
2-00292.odf:

u nd at: https : 4www. s ovi nfo. g ov/co nte nUpkg/F R-2 022-
COVID-l9 U.S. Treasury State and Local Fiscal

Recovery Funds: Overview of the Final Rule found at:

me.treasu m/files/1 le-Overview
COVID-19 State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Frequently Asked Questions found

at: https ://home.treasu ry. sov/system/fi les/1 36/5 LFRP FAQ. pdf; COVI D- 1 9 State and

Local Fiscal Recovery Fund Fact Sheet found at:

httns treasrrrv nov/s es/136/3l FRP- tract-She et-FlNAl 1 -6ORA ndf'

U.S. Treasury Assistance Listing 21.027 Coronavirus
Recovery Funds fou

State and Local Fiscal
nd at:

F

//www lian m

1 and any other federal agency guidance

relevant to this Agreement.

Prohibition on Duplicative Funding. The Subrecipient may not accept duplicate
funding for any cost,position, service, or deliverable funded by the Federal Award.

Duplicative funding is defined as more than one-hundred percent (100%) payment

from all funding sourc€s for any cost, position, service, or deliverable. lf duplicate
funding is discovered, this Agreement may be suspended while the extent of the
overpayment is determined, or may be terminated. Such suspension or termination
may be initiated at the sole discretion of the County.

Audits and Records
COUNry or its designee and the United States Department of the Treasury Office

of lnspector General or its designee shall have the right at reasonable times and

intervals to audit, at SUBRECIPIENT premises, Subrecipient's financial and
program records as necessary to determine compliance with legal and grant

agreement requirements and the correctness of claims submitted by Subrecipient.
Subrecipient shall maintain such records for a period of at least five years following
the expenditure of all funds by the County or after December 31,2026, and shall
make them promptly available for copying upon request.

lf Subrecipient expends seven hundred fifty thousand dollars ($750,000) or more in
federal awards during its fiscal year, the SUBRECIPIENT must have a single audit
completed and conducted in accordance with 2 CFR S 200.514, unless

Page | 28

G

Page 89

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



H

Agreement Number

Subrecipient elects to have a program-specific audit in accordance with 2 CFR S

200.501(c); and Subrecipient shall comply with all of the federal auditing
requirements found in 2 CFR Subpart F.

Grant Subaward. The Subrecipient shall enter into a written grant subaward
agreement for each subaward of ARPA funds that the Subrecipient makes to a
subrecipient. The Subrecipient shall ensure that each written grant subaward
agreement for a subaward of ARPA funds imposes on the subrecipient all the
obligations that this agreement imposes on the Subrecipient.

Subcontract. The Subrecipient shall enter into a written contract when it
purchases goods or services using ARPA funds. All procurement contracts using

ARPA fundi shall be consistent with the procurement standards set forth in title
2, CFR, sections 200.317 through 200.327, as applicable. ln addition to other
provisions required by the Federal agency or non-Federal entity, all contracts made

by the non-Federal entity under the Feder:al award must contain 2 CFR Part 200

Appendix ll provisions, listed in Exhibit E of this Agreement, as applicable.

Federal Disallowance(s). lf the Federal Government demands reimbursement from

the County due to a disallowance or finding that an expense or cost for which the

County provided Subaward funding bthe Subrecipient was in any way improper or

not in compliance with the Federal Award, the Subrecipient shall return any

associated funds to the County within a reasonable. time period as mutually agreed

upon by the County and the Subrecipient, or within six (6) months, whichever is the

later of the dates.

Remedies for Noncompliance. Pursuant to 2 CFR S 200.339 ("Remedies for
Noncompliance"), if the Subrecipient fails to comply with the U.S. Constitution,

federal stiatutes, regulations, or the terms and conditions of a Federal Award or any

additional conditions that the FederalAwarding Agency or County may impose, and

the FederalAwarding Agency or County determine that such noncompliance cannot

be remedied by imposing additional conditions, the Federal Awarding Agency or
County may take one or more of the following actions, as appropriate in the

circumstances:

1. Temporarily withhold cash payments pending correction of the deficiency by

the Subrecipientor more severe enforcement action by the FederalAwarding
Agency or County;

2. Disallow (that is, deny both use of funds and any applicable matching credit
for) all or part of the cost of the activity or action not in compliance;

3. Wholly or partly suspend or terminate this Agreement;

4. lnitiate suspension or debarment proceedings as authorized under 2 CFR
part 180 and Federal Awarding Agency regulations, which may be initiated

at the recommendation of the County;

J

K

Page | 29Page 90

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

5. Withhold further FederalAwards for the project or program; or

6. Take other remedies that may be legally available.

L. Non-Obligation by Federal Government. The Federal Government is not a party

to this Agreementand is not subject to any obligations or liabilities to the County, the

Subrecipient, or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting from this
Agreement.

M. Federal Awarding Agency Seal, Logo, and Flags. The Subrecipient shall not use

the seal(s), crest(s), or reproduction of flags or likenesses of the Federal Awarding
Agency without specific pre- approval therefrom.

N. Suspension and Debarment. The Subrecipient acknowledges and understands
that the regulationsat 2 CFR Part 180 ("OMB Guidelines to Agencies on
Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension") specifically prohibit the County
from entering into a "Covered Transaction," as defined in 2 CFR S 180.200, with

a party listed on the System for Award Management ("SAM'r) Exclusions list.

o. Federal Non-Discrimination.

1

2

3.

The Subrecipient shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant
for employment because of race, color, creed, national origin, Sex, age,

English proficiency, or disability

The Subrecipient shall not, on the grounds of race, color, creed, national
origin, Sex, age, English proficiency; or disability, exclude a person from
participation in, d'eny him/her benefits, or subject him/her to discrimination.

P

The Subrecipient shall adhere to any and all federal implementing
regulations and other. requirements that the Funding Agency has with
respect to nondiscrim ination.

4 The Subrecipient shall ensure that any and all of its subcontractors are
bound to the terms ofthis Non-Discrimination provision.

Rights to lnventions Made Under this Agreement. lf the Federal Award or this
Agreement m6et thedefinition of "Funding Agreement" under 37 CFR S 401 .2(a),

and the Subrecipient is a small business firm or nonprofit organization, then the
Subrecipient hereby,acknowledges and understands that the County is obligated to

comply with the requirements of 37 CFR S 401 ("Rights to lnventions Made by
Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government
Grantsn Contractsn and Gooperative Agreements"), and any implementing
regulations issued by the Federal Awarding Agency.

Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts. The

Subrecipient acknowledges that 31 USC Chapter 38 ("Administrative Remedies
for False Claims and Statements") applies to the Subrecipient's actions pertaining

to this Agreement.

o

Page | 30Page 91

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

R. Domestic Preferences for Procurements. As appropriate, and to the extent

consistent with law, the Subrecipient should, to the greatestextent practicable under

this Subaward, provide a preference for the purchase, acquisition, or use of goods,

products, or materials produced in the United States.

S. Prohibition on Gertain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services
or Equipment.
The Subrecipients is prohibited from obligating or expending any portion of the

Subaward funds to:

Procure or obtain;

b. Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or

c. Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain
equipment, services, or systems that uses covered telecommunications
equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system,
or as critical technology as part of any system. As described in Public Law

115-232, section 889, covered. telecQmmunicatiohs equipment is

telecommunications equ ipment produced by: Huawei Technolog ies Company
or ZTE Corporation (o1;any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).

i. For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities,
physicel security surveillahce of critica!, infrastructur.e, and other
national securitlt purposes, video surveillance and

telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications
Gorporation;: Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology companY, or
Dahua TechnologyCompany (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such
entities),

ii. Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such
entities or usingsuch equiPment.

iii. Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services
produced or provided by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in

consultation with the Director of the National lntelligence or the
Director of the Federal Bureau of lnvestigation,reasonably believes to
be an entity owned or controlled by, or othenruise connected to,the
government of a covered foreign country.

Procurement of Recovered Materials. lf the Subrecipient is a state agency, a

political subdivision of a state, or a SUBRECIPIENT of a state agency or political

subdivision of a state, then it must comply with the requirements of 2 CFR S 200.323
(,,Procurement of Recovered Materials"). For the purposes of this provision, the

Subrecipient does not meet the applicable definition of 'SUBRECIPIENT" of a state

or political subdivision of a state. However, if the Subrecipient is a state agency or a
poiiticat subdivision of the state, then it must meet the requirements of this
paragraph.

Page | 31

T

Page 92

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



U

Agreement Number:

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 USC S 1352 (as amended). lf this
Agreement exceeds one- hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) in value, the
Subrecipient shall certify to the County that it shall not use, and has not used,

federally appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or

attempting to influence an officer oremployee of any agency, a member of Congress,
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in

connection with obtaining any federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by

31 USC S 1352; and disclose to the County any lobbying with non-federal funds that
takes place in connection withobtaining any federal award.

Glean Air Act. lf this Agreement exceeds one hundred fifty thousand dollars
($150,000) in value, theSubrecipient shall:

1. Comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant

to the Clean Air Act, as amended,42 USC S 7401 et seq.;

2, Report each violation of the Clean Air Act to the County. Additionally, the
Subrecipient hereby acknowledges that the County shall, in turn, report each
violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Awarding Agency
and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office; and

V

3. lnclude these requirements in each subcontract that exceeds one hundred fifty
thousand dollars ($150,000) financed in whole, or in part, with federal
assistance provided by the Federal Awarding Agency.

W Federal Water Pollution Control Act. lf this Agreement's value exceeds one
hundred fifty thousanddollars ($150,000), the Subrecipient shall:

a. Comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant

to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 USC $ 1251 et
se9.;

b. Report each violation of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act to the
County. Additionally, the Subrecipient hereby acknowledges that the County
shall, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the
Federal Awarding Agency and the appropriate Environmental Protection
Agency Regional Office; and

lnclude these requirements in each subcontract that exceeds one hundred
fifty thousand dollars ($150,000) financed in whole, or in party, with federal
assistance provided by the FederalAwarding Agency.

X. SUBRECIPIENT Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement to lnform
Employees of Whistleblower Rights (Apr 2014). lf this Agreement exceeds the
Simplified Acquisition Threshold, the following applies:

1. This Agreement and employees working on this Agreement shall be subject

Page | 32

c

Page 93

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

to the whistleblower rights and remedies in the pilot program on

SUBRECIPIENT employee whistleblowerprotections established at 41 USC $
4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year
2013 (Pub. L. 112-239) and FAR 3.908.

2. The Subrecipient shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant

language of the workforce, of employee whistleblower rights and protections

under 41 USC S 4712, as described in section 3.908 of the FederalAcquisition
Regulation.

The Subrecipient shall insert the substance,lof this clause, including this
paragraph, in all subcontracts that exceedr the Simplified Acquisition
Threshold

3

Y RSSU n,qNCeS Or COMpLlRl,lci wlrH cvtl' RieHrs neQu I neMe Nrs
The Sub-grantee, cOntraCtOr;.::SUbCOntractor, SuCCeSSor, transferee, and

assignee shall comply with Title Vl of the Civil Rights;Act of 1964, which
protriOits recipients'oi federal firibncial assistance from rexcluding from a
program or activity, Q.enying benefits of,,or:otherwise discriminating against
a person on the basis:Of race, color, or,n.ational origin (42 U.S.C $ 2000d et
seq.), as implemented..',by,,the Department of the Treasury's Title Vl
regulations, 31 CFR ParL22,which are heieih incorporated by reference and

miOe a part of this contracl (or agreepent). Title Vl also includes protection

to persons:with :llimited 
"English ,P-iOficiency" iii any program or activity

receiving:rfederal:financial a.s9is!9nce,_ 42;U S C_ $ 2000d et seq', as
implemented by the:Department'of the Treasury's Title Vl regulations, 31

CFR Part 22, and hgfein incorporated by reference and made a part of this

contract or agreement.

Page | 33Page 94

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

EXHIBIT E to Agreement
between the County of Sacramento,

hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY", and

hereinafter referred to as "SUBRECIPIENT"

FEDERAL CONTRACTING PROVISIONS

Appendix ll to Part 200: Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity Contracts
Under Federal Awards - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARP Al OF 2021

ln addition to other provisions required by the Federal agency or non-Federal entity, all

contracts made by the non-Federal entity under the Federal award must contain
provisions covering the following, as applicable. Subrecipient shall include the terms of
this Exhibit in all contracts executed for performance of services provided pursuant to

this Agreement, as applicable.

(A) Remedy for Breach. Contracts in excess of $250,000 must address administrative,
contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract

terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate.

(B) Termination for Cause. All contracts in excess Of $10,000 must address
termination for cause and for convenience by the non-Federal entity including the
manner by which it will be effected and the basis for settlement.

(C) Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as othenryise provided under 41 CFR Part

60, all contracts that meet the definition of "federally assisted construction contract" in

41 CFR Part 60-1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 CFR

OO-1.4(b), in accordance with Executive Order 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity"
(30 FR 12319,12995,3 CFR Part, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by

Executive Order 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal
Employment Opportunity," and implementing regulations at 41 CFR part 60, "Office of
Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of
Labor."

(D) Davis-Bacon Act, as amended (40 U.S.C.3141-3148). When required by Federal
program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by

non-Federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act
(40 U.S.C.3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor
regulations (29 CFR Part 5, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts
Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction"). ln accordance with the
statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate

not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the
Secretary of Labor. ln addition, contractors must be required to pay wages not less than

once a week. The non-Federal entity must place a copy of the current prevailing wage

determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The decision to

award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage

determination. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to

the Federal awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for
Page | 34Page 95

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

compliance with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (40 U.S.C. 3145), as supplemented
by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3, "Contractors and Subcontractors

oh Pubtic Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from

the United States"). The Act provides that each contractor or subrecipient must be

prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction,
completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he

or she is othenruise entitled. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or

reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.

(E) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C.3701'3708). Where

applicable, all contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that

involve the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for
compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor

regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be

re[uired to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a
standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is
permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and

a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work

week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to construction work and

provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under

working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements

do not-apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on

the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence.

(F) Rights to lnventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. lf the Federal award

meetslne definition of "funding agreement" under 37 CFR S 401 .2 (a) and the recipient

or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit

organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of
experimental, developmental, or research work under that "funding agreement," the

recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights

to lnventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under

Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any implementing

regulations issued by the awarding agency.

(G) Ctean Air Act (42 U.S.C.7401-7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control
Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), as amended - Contracts and subgrants of amounts in
excess of $150,000 must contain a provision that requires the non-Federal award to

agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to

th-e Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C .7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act
as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal

awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA).

(H) Debarment and Suspension (Executive Orders 12549 and 12689) - A contract

award (see 2 CFR 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the governmentwide

exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB

guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986

comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 CFR part 1989 Comp., p. 235), "Debarment and

Suspension." SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or
Page | 35Page 96

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or

regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549.

(l) Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C.13521- Contractors that apply or bid

for ah award exceeding $100,000 must file the required certification. Each tier certifies
to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any
person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an

employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract,
grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier must also disclose any

lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any
Federalaward. Such disclosures are fonruarded from tiel to tier up to the non-Federal
award.

(J) Procurement of recovered materials, $ 200.323 A non-Federal entity that is a

state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its contractors must

compty with section OOOZ of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include
procuring only items designated in guidelines of the Envirgnmental Protection Agency
(EPA) at 40 CFR part 247 thal contain the highest percentage of recovered materials
practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the
purchase price of the item exceeds:$10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during

the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring solid waste management
services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing an

affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in

the EPA guidelines

(K) Prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance seruices or
equipment, $ 200.216:

(a) Recipients and subrecipients are prohibited from obligating or expending loan

or grant funds to:

(1) Procure or obtain;

(2) Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or

(3) Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain
equipment, services, or systems that uses covered telecommunications
equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or

as critical technology as part of any system. As described in Public Law 115-232,
section 889, covered telecommunications equipment is telecommunications
equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or

any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).

(i) For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities,
physical security surveillance of critical infrastructure, and other national
secu rity pu rposes, video surveillance and telecomm un ications eq uipment
produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision

Page | 36Page 97

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number

Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any
subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).

(ii) Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such
entities or using such equipment.

(iii) Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services
produced or provided by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in

consultation with the Director of the National lntelligence or the Director of
the Federal Bureau of lnvestigation, reasonably believes to be an entity
owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the government of a
covered foreign country.

(b) ln implementing the prohibition under Public Law 1 15-232, section 889,

subsection (f), paragraph (1), heads of executive agencies administering loan,

grant, or subsidy programs shall prior:itize available funding and technical support
to assist affected businesses, institutions and organizations as is reasonably
necessary for those affected entities to transition from covered communications
equipment and services, to procure replacement equipment and services, and to

ensure that communications service to users and customers is sustained.

(c) See Public Law 115-232, section 889 for additional information

(d) See also $ 2001471

(L) Domestic preferences for procurements, $ 200.322:

(a) As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the non-Federal entity
shguld, to the greatest:€xtent practicable under a Federal award, provide a

preference for the purchase, acquisition, or use of goods, products, or materials
produced in the United States (including but not limited to iron, aluminum, steel,

cqrnent, and other manufactured products). The requirements of this section
must be included in all subawards including all contracts and purchase orders for

work or products under this award.

(b) For purposes of this section:

(1) "Produced in the United States" means, for iron and steel products,

that all manufacturing processes, from the initial melting stage through the
application of coatings, occurred in the United States.

(2) "Manufactured products" means items and construction materials
composed in whole or in part of non-ferrous metals such as aluminum;
plastics and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe;

aggregates such as concrete; glass, including opticalfiber; and lumber.

(M) Assurance of Gompliance with Givil Rights Requirements

Page | 37Page 98

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

The sub-grantee, contractor, subcontractor, successor, transferee, and assignee
shall comply with Title Vl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits
recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or
activity, denying benefits of, or othenryise discriminating against a person on the
basis of race, color, or national origin (42 U.S.C. S 2000d et seq.), as
implemented by the Department of the Treasury's Title Vl regulations, 31 CFR
Parl22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this
contract (or agreement). Title Vl also includes protection to persons with "Limited

English Proficiency" in any program or activity receiving federal financial
assistance, 42 U.S.C. S 2000d et seq., as implemented by the Department of the
Treasury's Title Vl regulations, 31 CFR Par122, and herein incorporated by

reference and made a part of this contract or agreement.

(N) Access to Records

a. The Contractor agrees to provide the County of Sacramento, the primary

subrecipient of the federal funding, if any, the FederalAwarding Agency, the
Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized
representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the
Contractor which are direclly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making
audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.

b. The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by
any means whatsoever or to copy exceipts and transcriptions as reasonably
needed.

c. The Contractor agrees to provide thb FederalAwarding Agency or his

authorized representatives' access to construction or other work sites pertaining

to the work being completed under the contract.

(O) Federal Awarding Agency Seal, Logo, and Flags.

The Contractor shall not use the FederalAwarding Agency seal(s), logos, crests,

or reproductions of flags or likenesses of Federal Awarding Agency officials
without specific pre-aPProval.

(P) Compliance with Federal Law, Regulations, and Executive Orders.

This is an acknowledgement that Federal financial assistance will be used to
fund the contract only. The Contractor will comply will all applicable federal law,

regulations, executive orders, FederalAwarding Agency policies, procedures,

and directives.

(Q) No Obligation by the Federal Government.

The Federal Government is not a party to this contract and is not subject to any
obligations or liabilities to the non-Federal entity, Contractor, or any other party
pertaining to any matter resulting from the contract.

Page | 38Page 99

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

(R) Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts.
The Contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies
for False Claims and Statements) applies to the Contractor's actions pertaining to
this contract.

Page | 39Page 100

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

EXHIBIT F to Agreement
between the County of Sacramento,

hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY," and
(SUBRECIPIENT NAME),

hereinafter referred to as "SUBRECIPIENT"

SUBRECIPIENT CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE FORM

WHEREAS it is in the best interest of Sacramento County that those entities with whom

the County does business demonstrate financial responsibility, integrity and lawfulness,
it is inequitable for those entities with whom the County does business to receive
County funds while failing to pay court-ordered child, fiimily and spousal support which

shifts the support of their dependents onto the public treasury.

Therefore, in order to assist the Sacramento County Department of Child Support
Services in its efforts to collect unpaid court-ordered child, family and spousal support

orders, the following certification must be provided by all entities with whom the County
does business: \

SUBRECIPIENT hereby certifies that either:

(a) the SUBRECIPIENT is a government,or non-profit entity (exempt), or

(b) the SUBRECIPIENT has no Principal Owners (25o/oior more) (exempt), or

(c) each Principal Ownei (25%o or more), does not have any existing child support
orders, or

(d):SUgnEGIPIENT'S Principal Owners are currently in substantial compliance
with any court-ordered child, famfly and spousal suppoi-t order, including orders to
provide 6yrrent residencd:: addres-S, employment information, and whether dependent
health insurance coverage is available. lf not in compliance, Principal Owner has

become current or has arranged a payment schedule with the Department of Child

Support Services or the court.

New SUBRECIPIENT shall certify that each of the following statements is true

a. SUBRECIPIENT has fully complied with all applicable state and federal reporting
requirements relating to employment reporting for its employees; and

b. SUBRECIPIENT has fully complied with all lawfully served wage and earnings
assignment orders and notices of assignment and will continue to maintain compliance.

NOTE: Failure to comply with state and federal reporting requirements regarding a

contractor's employees or failure to implement lawfully served wage and earnings
assignment orders or notices of assignment constitutes a default under the contract;
and failure to cure the default within 90 days of notice by the County shall be grounds

for termination of the contract. Principal Owners can contact the Sacramento
Page | 40Page 101

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

Department of Child Support Services at 1-866-901-3212, by writing to P.O. Box
269112, Sacramento, 95826-9112, or via the Customer Connect website at
www.childsupport.ca.qov.

GONTRACTOR NAME Date

Printed Name of person authorized to sign

Signature

Page | 41Page 102

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

EXHIBIT G to Agreement
between the COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO,

hereinafter referred to as "COUNTY",
and (SUBRECIPIENT NAME),

hereinafter referred to as "SUBRECIPIENT"

CERTIFICA REGARDING DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

SUBRECIPIENT agrees to comply with 5 U.S.C. 1501.1508, 31 U.S.C. S1352 and 45

CFR Part 76.100 (Code of Federal Regulations), which provides that federal funds may
not be used for any contracted services, if SUBRECIPIENT is debarred, suspended,
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered
transactions by any federal department or agency.

I (We) certify to the best of my (our) knowledge and belief, that SUBRECIPIENT named
below and its principals:

1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered:.transactions by any federal
department or agency;

2. Have not Within a three,(3)-year periodlpreceding,this proposal been convicted
of or had a civil judgment rendered,:against them for commission of fraud or a
criminal offense in conneclio.n with oblaining, attempting to obtain, or performing
a pub.lig, (federal;:,;slate, or::::lgcal) transaction or contract under a public
transaction; violation:of federal or.state antitrust statutes or commission of

'embezzlemeht, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

Are not: presently indicted or othenryise criminally or civilly charged by a
governmental entity (federal, state, or local) with commission of any of the
offenses enumerated in paragraph (2) of this certification; and

4. Have not within a three (3)-year period preceding this
application/proposal/agreement had one or more public transactions (Federal,
State, or local) terminated for cause or default.

5. Shall notify COUNTY within ten (10) days of receipt of notification that
SUBRECIPIENT is subject to any proposed or pending debarment, suspension,
indictments or termination of a public transaction.

6. Shall obtain a certification regarding debarment and suspension from all its
subcontractors that will be funded through this Agreement.

3

Page | 42Page 103

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

7. Hereby agree to terminate immediately, any subcontractor's services that will
be/are funded through this Agreement, upon discovery that the subcontractor
is ineligible or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal
department or agency.

SUBRECIPIENT

DATEBY

Page | 43Page 104

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Agreement Number:

EXHIBIT H to Agreement
between the GOUNTY OF SACRAMENTO,

hereinafter referred to as "GOUNTY",
and (SUBRECIPIENT NAME)

hereinafter referred to as "SUBRECIPIENT"

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements

The undersigned SUBRECIPIENT certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge,
that:
1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid gr will be paid, by or on behalf

of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an
officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment,
or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

2. lf any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be
paid to any person for influencihg or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract,:grant,:loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall
complete and submit Standard Form- LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included
in the award documents for. all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts,
subgl^ants; and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements)
and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this
certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by
31, U.S.C. S 1352 (as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any
person who fails to file the iequired certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of
not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

The SUBRECIPIENT, 

-, 

certifies or affirms the
truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its certification and disclosure, if
any. ln addition, the SUBRECIPIENT understands and agrees that the provisions of
3'1 U.S.C. S 3801, ef seg., apply to this certification and disclosure, if any.

Signature of SUBRECIPIENT's Authorized Official

Date

Page | 44Page 105

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 3

Proj ect Demo graphic Distribution and Expenditure Cate gories

6
Page 106

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Project Demographic Distribution

Licabl,e to Pubtic Heatth and Ne ive Economic lmpact ECs: EC 1.1-2.37

Disproportionately lmpactedCategory lmpacted

N/APublic Health General Public

Low-income households and populations
Low- or-moderate income households or
populations

Households and populations residing in Qualified Census

TractsHouseholds that experienced unemployment

Households that qualifv for certain federal programs
Households that experienced increased food or

housing insecurity
Households receiving services provided by Tribal
governments

Households that qualify for certain federal
programsl

Households residing in the U.S. territories or receiving
services from these governments

For services to address lost instructional time in K-

12 schools: any students that lost access to in
person instruction for a significant period of time

For services to address educational disparities, Title I

eligible schools
Other households or populailons that experienced a

negative

Other households or populations that experienced a
disproportionate negative economic impact of the

n those listed above (please soecifu)

Small businesses operating in Qualified Census Tracts

pandemic other tha

Assistance to
Households

Assistance to
Small

Businesses

Assistance to
Non-Profits

Aid to
lmpacted
I nd ustries

economic impact of the pandemic other than those

Small businesses that experienced a negative

economic impact of the pandemic

listed above (please speci fv)

Small businesses operated by Tribal governments or on

Tribal lands

Classes of small businesses designated as negatively

economically impacted by the pandemic (please

specifv)

Small businesses operating in the U.S. territories
Other small businesses disproportionately impacted by

Non-profits operating in Qualified Census Tracts

the pandemic (please specify)

Non-Profits that experienced a negative economic
impact of the pandemic (please specify)

Non-profits operated by Tribal governments or on Tribal

lands

Classes of non-profits designated as negatively

economically impacted by the pandemic (please

specifv)
Non-profits operating in the U.S. territories
Other non-profits disproportionately impacted by the
pandemic (please specifv)

N/A
Travel, tourism, or hospitality sectors (including

Tribal development districts)

lndustry outside the travel, tourism, or hospitality

sectors that experienced a negative economic
impact of the pandemic (please specify)

Continued on next page

Page 107

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



n

covtD{s

Bafrravloral Heslth

Other

t Prcwndon

Vlolsnoe lnteruunttrons

Expenditure Categories

1.1COVID-1S Vaccinqtion^
t.2COVID-IS Testinq^
1.3C0VID-'! g Contact Tracingn

1.4Frevention in Cong,regata Setttings (ftlllrsing Home*, Prlsons/Jails,
De'nse Work Sites, Schootrs, Child care facilitie*, atc")*n

1.5Fersonal Frotective Equ ipmentn
1.6Med ical Expen sea ( incl urd ing Alte rn ative Care F' atil ities IA

1.7Other COVID-1 S Pub'lic l-lealth Expenses {inoluding Comnrunications,
Enf,orcement, lsslation/Qua rantlne)*

1.8COVID-'Ig Assistence to Small Businesees^
1"9COVID 1,$ Assietance to l{an-Frofitsn

1"10

1.'tl

1.12

COVID-'!S Aid to I Industriesn

Violence I ntenventions*^

Mental l-{ealth Servicesnn

Com

1"13

r.'!4Otl'ler Pr.rblic Heelthr ServinasA

Substanae {Jse Servicesnfr

Capital lnvestmen{s or Physical Plant Cl"langes to Fubtic Faciiltties that
r,esnond to [he COHF'I9 pub,l$c l"laalt]'tt ernergency

Expenditure Catognry EC15

Continued on next page.

Page 108

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



lu

Hsusehsld AssistantrE: and Aid"^

traid Sic[r and

House Senrioes fcr UnjUnbanked"fr
Surt rivor's'Ben,efi ts^

Benefits or Gash Warkers'A
Assistance tro or U,nderernployed Workers {e"9,-, job
traini suhsidized or innentives

ChildFrood Envdmnments: Horne Vti

F{ealthy ChildFrood En:uiirnnments: $eruioes to Fusten Ynuth or Farnilies 2.13
llnuolued in Child Welfare

14

t{ousing Sr.rppont: Hnusing Vouchers and Relocation Assistanoe fur
ilrn C,srnrmLrni!ies"fr

Housi Assisliance*i
Social Determinants of Health: Commun,ity Health Wsrkers or Benefits

r Jll

' Medical Facrilities for Di f;ommunitiesn

nrg Educatfurm,el Disparities: iG, ,,,and Ernrotinnal
$eruiuesnm
rhdclressti Educatlonel
Addnessd Irn Lost il nshuctioin,al Ti nreA

Contrdhutions to U'l trr

Lnans CIr Gnants to al
, Techmica.l

H.ehahi I itation of ff omrlnercial nr Other l n

Enhanped
A*rirtencs t6

2

ts

!:
Acririlenr
Ficusehpld Assistan,ce: Focd 2.1

2.
2"3Household Assistan'ce: Cash Tnan'#ers"n
2"4l'{ousehpld Assi stance: llnrternet Accsss Fr,oqrams*n
2.5

Househnld Assistance: l'{e.alth Ifl,su ran,s€*i : 2.fi
2.7
2.8
2.9

2.10

2.11l'il eqlthrr Chdldhood Enrvinnnments :, Chdld *ane*^
2.ra

2_15Lsnq-terffil l''ilnusinE $ecunity: Affnndable Hnusi ng*n
2.1fi-unu-term l'':lousinq Secunitv: $ervioes fon U'nhoused Fersgns"ft

2"18

2"'.Nr

'1fi

2"zfrSocial Determina.nts uf Heallh: Lesd Remediation"n'
2.21

Strong Healtl'ry C,om,munities: f*ledg;hbnrhood Festures that Frumote 2.22
Health and Safehfl

2"23Stromg He,altl'ry Commr"lnr ities: Dennol ilinn and Flehabilitat{on of
Frupertiesn

2.24Addressdmg Edusatbmal Distrarities: A{d to F{ig:l'1-psverly Ddstrictsfr

2,25

n"2fiDisparities: Mental Healtfi SenricesnilI
3"27

2_29
:e" fioun.selinq. or Business Flan,ninq'ft 2-3CI

2-31
2"32Business lncuhators and Start-Up on Expansion A,ssistancg'fr
2.33

2"34Assistantre ts llmpacted l{onprofit frrganizalions {ln',npasted or

Expendittrne Category EC1:'

Continued on next page.

Page 109

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



Aid to lndurtsirt
Aid to Touri Travel ffr

tlthm
Ecnno'nrilc I Assistance: Other'n
l'ilousehnld Assistance: Evdctinn Freventi

Social Determinants of Healtlh: CIthefn
$: Fuhlls Economlc Fubllc Secior

Publfc Workforce: Fublic Sector

Fubldc Seston Effsdive $ervice
Puhlic Sestan Admilnristrativ,e
{: htamlum

i:
end 8eurer

C le"an Water: Ce ntra| ia€d tJtJqsts# ater Tneatr'nent
Clean ater: fi*ntralfzed astewater Collention amd

C lean Water: Decenbaliizeri
Clean Water:
Clesn \ilf,ater: 0ther .Sel',ven

f lean Water: $tsrmv'rater

Clean ffater: Water Csmseruation
Cle.an ffiater: nt.Souroe
Drinki rryater: Trsabnent
Drinki Hrater: T & Distribution

, Drinki rnrater: lt-ead Remedriation in 5,cfrroods and
Drinki udater: Sosr'ce
Drinki u{ater: Sto
Drinkin rrrr,ater: f,rther waten f nfrasffLlchJ re

, Wa.ter and Setuer: Pnir'rate lddells

Water an:d Serruer: lilJA Eureau of Rec{arnstian hdatcltl

Water and $ewer: Stlh'er

Broacilhand: "Last Mile"
Bruadhand: tl-lA MatcFr,
Brosdharnd: Other

2"35

3-S

5,1
5.4
5"3
5"4
5"5
5_s

5"1CI

5.1
5"12
5"13

5.n7
5"nB

5. rs

ilndusbies^Aid to 0ther I

2"S?

Education nce: Othen"n
Ern,v,irionments : Other*e

Public Sector Wou'kfsr'ce: and Eenefits for Fubldc Healffi. Ft"rhlic
or H,uman Services Workers 3.1

3.2
Pub{dc Secton Work Other

3"4

Fubldc Secton 1

Pnivate $ectror: Grants fts 4-3

5.7Cle.an Water: En Coflseruati,sn
5_s
5"9

5."14
5.fl5
5"16

Jt [il E;L s.2l

fi"1Fmv{sion nf Government Seruices

Expenditure CateEory ECli

5.2t1

Page 110

05/14/2024 Item No.11.



jr r;:f :j r t j . :: ::

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RE TION / CITY COUN ACTION

Staff recommends the City Council approve Resolution No. I 1196 - A Resolution

Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Purchase Agreement with BSN Sports for
Replacement Bleachers at Lembi Softball Complex, and the Sports Fields at Mann and

Rodeo Parks, and Appropriation of Contingency Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The city was recently notified that we currently have bleachers that are not within safety

standards. Park Maintenancs staff evaluated the condition of all bleachers located in parks

throughout the City of Folsom. During this inspection and evaluation, it was determined that

a total of 14 bleachers were not compliant.

POLICY / RI]I,E

In accordance with Chapter 2.36.080, contracts for supplies, equipment, services, and

construction with a value of $73,209 or greater shall be awarded by the City Council.

Additionally, in accordance with Chapter 2.36.150 of the Folsom Municipal Code,

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter, the city manager shall make, or authorize

others to make, emergency procurement of supplies, equipment, services, or construction items

when there exists a threat to public health, welfare, or safety; provided, that such emergency

I

MEETING DATE: 51r412024

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. I 1196 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Purchase Agreement with BSN Sports for
Replacement Bleachers at Lembi Softball Complex, and the

Sports Fields at Mann and Rodeo Parks, and Appropriation of
Contingency Funds

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department

Page 111

05/14/2024 Item No.12.



procurement shall be made with sufficient competition as is practicable under the

circumstances. The requesting department shall complete a waiver of bid format and submit it
to the purchasing agent for filing with the city clerk. (Otd.723 $ 3 (part), I99l)

ANALYSIS

Measurements all fell beyond the code requirements identified in the Consumer Product

Safety Commission (CPSC) for the American National Standard for Bleachers, Seating and

Grandstands ICC 300 -2017 .

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The cost of replacing the Lembi Park Softball Complex, Mann Park, and Rodeo Park

bleachers is proposed to be financed from the General Fund's (Fund 010) contingency

budget. Sufficient funds for this emergency procurement are available in the General Fund's

(Fund 010) contingency budget. Staff requested quotes from the following three companies:

o BSN Sports
. Trigon Sports
o ULINE

$63,145.66
$90,670.44
$101,312.85

The request includes a I\Yo construction contingency in the event there are conditions that

are not known at this time. Staff is recommending purchasing the 14 bleachers for
replacement from BSN Sports as the lowest and most qualified vendor for this equipment.

The total project with contingency would be in the amount of $69,460.22.

Project Costs:
Total Cost of Bleachers $63,145.66

$ 6,314.56Proi ect Contingency
Total project Cost $69,460.22

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

In accordance with the Califomia Environmental Quality Act, the proposed project is

Categorically Exempt per Article 19, 15300.1 - Relation to Ministerial Projects.

ATT NTS
1. Resolution No. 1 1196 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute a

Purchase Agreement with BSN Sports for Replacement Bleacher's at Lembi Park Softball

Complex, and the Sports Fields at Mann and Rodeo Parks, and Appropriation of
Contingency Funds.

2Page 112

05/14/2024 Item No.12.



Submitted,

Kelly Gonzalez, Parks & Recreation Director

a
J Page 113

05/14/2024 Item No.12.



RESOLUTION NO. 11196

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH BSN SPORTS FOR REPLACEMENT BLEACHERS

AT LEMBI SOF'TBALL COMPLEXO AND THE SPORTS FIELDS AT MANN AND
RODEO PARKS, AND APPROPRIATION OF CONTINGENCY FUNDS

WHEREAS' the park maintenance staff inspected all of the City of Folsom park bleachers;

and

WHEREAS, the inspections revealed thatatotal of 14 bleachers were out of compliance

with current codes; and

WHEREAS, it is in the city's best interest to replace atotal of 14 non-compliant bleachers

for valid safety reasons; and

WHEREAS' sufficient funds for this emergency procurement are available in the General

Fund's (Fund 010) contingency budget; and

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

approves the purchase of fourteen (14) sets of bleachers at a cost of $69,460.22 and

authorizes the City Manager to execute a purchase agreement with BSN Sports for

replacement bleachers at Lembi Park Softball Complex, and the sports fields at Mann and

Rodeo Parks, and the Finance Director is authorized to appropriate an amount not to exceed

$69,460.22 from the General Fund contingency budget for the bleacher replacement

procurement..

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14 day of May 2024, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 11196

Page I of I Page 114

05/14/2024 Item No.12.



Folsom City Council
Staff rt

MEETING DATE: 51t412024

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. I I 197 - A Resolution Authori zing the City
Manager to Execute a Construction Agreement with All-American
Construction, Inc. for the Blue Ravine Road Pavement
Rehabilitation Phase II Fiscal Year 2023-24Project 8017 and

Appropriation of Funds

FROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTIQI{

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution No.
11197 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Construction Agreement with
All-American Construction, Inc. for the Blue Ravine Road Pavement Rehabilitation Phase II Fiscal

Year 2023-24Prcject 8017 and Appropriation of Funds.

BACKGROI IND / ISSIIE

The Public Works Department manages the City of Folsom's Pavement Management Program,

which includes funding for the repair, resurfacing, and maintenance of roadways in the city.

This project will rehabilitate and resurface the pavement on Blue Ravine Road between School

Street and Oak Avenue Parkway, as well as the following residential streets:

o Flower Drive (Blue Ravine Road to Willow Creek Drive)
o Remington Drive
o Stanton Court
. Corral Court
o Carson Court
o Burnham Court
o Pennock Court

I
Page 115

05/14/2024 Item No.13.



Components of the project include localized asphalt repairs, installation of an asphalt interlayer

paving mat for increased structural section strength and reflective crack mitigation, rubberized and

traditional asphalt overlays, upgrades to pedestrian facilities with the installation of Americans

with Disabilities Act (ADA) compliant ramps, a relocated trail connection with enlarged pedestrian

gathering areas at the Folsom Middle School signal, enhanced wet-night visibility traffic striping,

buffered bike lanes and the installation of new school zone flashing beacons and warning signs.

Most of this work will occur during daytime houts, with lane closures allowed between 8:30 a.m.

and 3:30 p.m. There may be items of work that will be performed at night if deemed appropriate

to reduce traffic congestion. Proper notification will be given to the traveling public and

surrounding properties that may be affected'

In February 2022,the City of Folsom (City) contracted with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., to

conduct a pavement evaluation of Blue Ravine Road, which consisted of visual observations,

asphalt core testing, pavement deflection testing, testing results analysis, and preparation of the

project plans, specifications, and estimate. The report recommended that the distressed pavement

6e repaired ba either the traditional method of "mill & fill" or by utilizing a Cold ki-Place

Recycling (CIR) process. Based on a cost analysis performed by Kimley-Horn and Associates,

Inc., the "mill & fill" option was chosen due to the limited number of areas that require pavement

repair.

This project is expected to begin in June 2024 and be completed by August 2024.

POLICY / RULE

Section 2.36.120 of the Folsom Municipal Code states,inpart,that contracts for supplies, equipment,

services, and construction with an estimated value of $73,209 or greater shall be awarded by the City

Council.

ANALYSIS

Public Works staff prepared the bid package, and the project was publicly advertised on March 28,

2024. On April 18,2024, the Public Works Department received the following bids:

o All-AmericanConstruction,Inc.
o McGuire & Hester
o B&M Builders, Inc.
o Lamon Construction Co.,Inc.
o All Phase Construction & Engineering, Inc.
o Central Valley Engineering & Asphalt,Inc'
o Teichert Construction
o JV Lucas Paving, Inc.
o United Pavement Maintenance, Inc.

$ 1,979,189.00

$ 2,048,337.00

$ 2,079,562.00

$ 2,096,030.65

$ 2,104,032.00

$ 2,131,169.00

$ 2,176,026.50

$ 2,229,276.50

$ 2,273,621.00

The Engineer's Estimate for this project was initially advertised as $1,500,000. After opening the

bids, the discrepancy between the engineer's estimate and the bids received revealed that the item

2 Page 116

05/14/2024 Item No.13.



for the Paving Mat was not included in the engineer's estimate. Including this item resulted in an

engineer's estimate of $1,640,000. The remaining discrepancy between the revised engineer's

estimate and the close range of bids was due to cost increases in multiple bid items over recent bid
prices from similar projects. The nine bids received are within l4Yo of each other, which indicates

that the scope of work was clear to all bidders. The Public Works Department has evaluated the

bids received and recommends that the contract be awarded to the low-bidder, All-American
Construction, Inc.

Staff will use the City's standard Construction Agreement in a form acceptable to the City
Attorney.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The contract with All-American Construction, Inc. would be authorized for $1,979,189, with a

contingency amount of $197,919 for a total amount not to exceed $2,177,108.

Funds in the amount of $1,569,113 are budgeted and available in the Street Overlay/Pavement

Management Project 8017, utilizing SBI Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Fund (Fund 235)

and Measure A (Fund 276). Staff is requesting an appropriation of $547,995 in the Measure A
Fund (Fund276) where funds are currently available.

ENVIRO AI, RE,VIEW

All items of work are categorically exempt from environmental review

ATTACHMENT

Resolution No. 1 ll97 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Construction

Agreement with All-American Construction, Inc. for the Blue Ravine Road Pavement

Rehabilitation Phase II Fiscal Year 2023-24Prcject 8017 and Appropriation of Funds

Submitted,

Mark Rackovan, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

a
J Page 117

05/14/2024 Item No.13.



RESOLUTION NO. III97

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A
CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT WITH ALL.AMERICAN CONSTRUCTION,

INC. FOR THE BLUE RAVINE ROAD PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PHASE
II F''ISCAL YEAR 2023.24 PROJECT 8017 AND APPROPRIATION OF F'UNDS

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom desires to rehabilitate the existing pavement and

overlay the asphalt on Blue Ravine Road between School Street and Oak Avenue Parkway,

Flower Drive, Remington Drive, Stanton Court, Corral Court, Carson Court, Burnham Court

and Pennock Court; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom desires to upgrade pedestrian facilities to meet the

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements, and in consultation with the Folsom

Cordova Unified School District will be modiffing the pedestrian crossing on Blue Ravine

Road at Folsom Middle School to accommodate a larger student gathering area and the

crosswalk is being relocated to provide a direct path to the sidewalk onto school property; and

WHEREAS, the project was publicly advertised, and the bids were received on April
I8,2024,with All-American Construction, Inc. being the lowest responsible bidder; and

WHEREAS, funds in the amount of $1,569,113 are budgeted and available in the

Street Overlay/Pavement Management Project 8017; and

WHEREAS, an appropriation in the amount of $547,995 will be needed; and

WHEREAS' additional funds inthe amount of $547,995 are available inthe Measure

A Fund (Fund 276); and

WHEREAS, the contract will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Folsom authorizes the City Manager to execute a Construction Agreement with All-American
Construction, Inc. for the Blue Ravine Road Pavement Rehabilitation Phase II Fiscal Year

2023-24 Project 8017 in the amount of $1,979,189, withthe budgeted amountto include a

contingency amount of $ 1 97,91 9 for a total not-to-exceed amount of $2,177 ,108.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chief Financial Officer is authorized to
appropriate $547,995 for this project in the Measure A Fund (Fund276).

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 14ft day of May 2024, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:

Resolution No. 11197
Page I of2

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Page 118

05/14/2024 Item No.13.



ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 11197
Page2 of2 Page 119

05/14/2024 Item No.13.



This page is intentionally Ieft blank
to facilitqt e double- side d printing

qnd minimize paper ttse.

CITY OF

FOLSON{

Page 120

05/14/2024 Item No.13.



:i j ,l i ,i- -: i r: r\'i
J, \,.t.!!,r 1.1 !.1: i:

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends the City Council approve Resolution No. 1 1 198 - A Resolution Authorizing

the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. I to the Agreement with Capra Environmental

Services Corp for Managed Grazing Services Within the City of Folsom.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

Over the past seven years, the Parks and Recreation Department has been incorporating goat

grazingas part of our annual weed abatement program. This year staff is proposing to expand

the grazingareas to replace mechanical removal (crews with weed eaters). In having these

areas grazed as opposed to traditional methods, the city will save on labor and fuel costs,

which are atan all-time high. Beyond the cost savings, grazingproduces a better end-product

by completely removing combustible materials rather than just cutting the weeds and leaving

debris.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36.090 (AXl) and 2.36.120 of the Folsom Municipal Code,

professional services are not subject to competitive sealed bidding requirements, and those

costing $73,209 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

I

MEETING DATE: 5n412024

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 11198 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement with
Capra Environmental Services Corp for Managed Grazing
Services Within the City of Folsom

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department

ANALYSIS

Page 121

05/14/2024 Item No.14.



On December 20, 2021, the Parks and Recreation Department advertised a Request for
Proposal for managed grazing services. The RFP was posted on ClPlist.com as well as the

City of Folsom website with responses due back to the crty by 4:00 pm January 28,2022. An
internal review team was assembled of Parks and Recreation Staff. The criteria for ranking

the qualifications were based on the following areas: relevant experience and staff resources,

project understanding, and ability to complete work in allocated time frame. In total three

responses were received (Capra, lnlergrazers, and Blue Tent Farms LLC) and after reviewing

their responses, and compiling scores, staff concluded that Capra Environmental Services Corp

demonstrated they were the most qualified based on their ability to complete the scope of work
in the allotted timeframe and expertise.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The cost of this contract will be funded through several different funding sources shown in the

table below. The contractperiod spans two fiscal years, funds were budgeted and are currently

available in the Fiscal Year 2023-24 budget and remaining funds will be budgeted for Fiscal

Year 2024-25. This is the final one-year extension available on this contract and future years

willbe bid on throughthe RFP process. The Fiscal Year2023-24 contract amount is estimated

to be approximately $130,300 and Fiscal Year 2024-25 is $141,500 for atotal contract price

of 7t 00

FY 2412s Total Cost

LO%

Contingency for
re-graze FY 23124Acres

s 20,296.58s 20,296.584L.84 S1,845.i.4
American River
Canyon North

5 2,8L9.43 $ 2,818.435.81 5256.22Briggs Ranch

$ t,ozs.tt 5 7,525.77s693.2s15.72Folsom Heights

5 stz.az5 stz.qz1.18 ss2.04Natoma Station

$ 25,981.96 $ 25,981.9653.56 52,362.OOPrairie Oaks Ranch

$ 2s2.2s 5 2s2.25522.e3Los Cerros o.s2

s 10,550.93s 10,550.932L.75 s9se.18Willow Springs

S to,9q8.zts L0,948.7t22.57 s99s.34Broadstone 124

S u,oqo.qt 5 tt,oq6.qt35.1,4 5L,s49.67Broadstone 3

s L9,239.07 S 76,9s6.26S6,g96.oz 5 s7,7r7.zo158.64CFD 18

2 Page 122

05/14/2024 Item No.14.



General Fund 203.s6 s8,977.00 5 24,686.74 s 74,060.22 S 98,2c6.95

TOTAT 560.29 s24,708.79 s 130,297.86 5 14r,498.82 S ztt,zgg.og

ATTACHMENTS
Resolution No. 1 1 198 - A Resolution Authorizinglhe City Manager to Execute Amendment

No. I to the Agreement with Capra Environmental Services Corp for Managed Grazing

Services Within the City of Folsom

Submitted,

Kelly Gor:.z:alez, Parks & Recreation Director

J Page 123

05/14/2024 Item No.14.



RI,SOLUTION NO. 11198

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AMENDMENT

NO. 1 TO THE AGREEMENT WITH CAPRA ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES CORP FOR
MAI\AGED GRAZING SERVICES WITHIN THE CITY OF FOLSOM

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom desires to enter into an agreement with Capra Environmental

Services Corp. with an effective June 1 ,2024 through May 31,2025, for managed gtazing services;

and

WHEREAS, the existing contract (173-21 22-020) between Capta Environmental Services

Corp. and the City of Folsom allows for amendments for additional services; and

WHEREAS, this amendment will be an extension of the existing agreement (I73-2I22-020);

and

WHEREAS, this amendment will incorporate additional grazing sites in the newly accepted

areas ofCFD 18; and

WHEREAS' sufficient funds are available in the General Fund, Landscaping and Lighting

Districts, and Community Facilities Districts Fiscal Year 2023-24 budgets; and

WHEREAS' the remaining funding will be budgeted for work taking place in the Fiscal Year

2024-25; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attomey; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the City Manager to execute amendment No. 1 to the agreement (Contract 173-21 22-020)

with Capra Environmental Services Corp for Manage d Grazing Services within the City of Folsom.

PASSED At[D ADOPTED this 14th day of May 2024,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Mike D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 11198
Page 1 of I Page 124

05/14/2024 Item No.14.



ir i1;rr.t:it :: ir:ri j:

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: slt4l2024

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 11199 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute the Purchase of a Chimney Exhaust Fan

with Knorr Systems Inc for the Instructional Pool Heater at the

Steve Miklos Aquatics Center and Appropriation of Contingency
Funds

FROM: Parks and Recreation Department

RECOMMENDATION / qITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff recommends the City Council approve ResolutionNo. 11199 - A Resolution

Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Purchase of a Chimney Exhaust Fan with Knorr
Systems Inc for the Instructional Pool Heater at the Steve Miklos Aquatics Center and

Appropriation of Contingency Funds.

BACKGRO / ISSUE

The Instruction Pool is the center body of water that is 25 yards long and three lanes wide.

This location provides over 1,000 swim lessons annually. The ability to offer programs year-

round is predicated on the factthatwe can heat the Instructional Pool when the pool

temperatures fall below the acceptable range of 78-82 degrees Fahrenheit. If we are not able

to heat the pool to acceptable levels, program cancellations will occur. The cancelation of
programs could result in a potential loss of approximately $100,000 annually in program fees

and rental fees.

The pool heater equipment is currently failing. Industry professionals are recommending the

installation of the chimney exhaust fan as the most cost-effective solution to ensure the

equipment does not continue to fail or shut down.

I

POLICY / RIII,E,

Page 125

05/14/2024 Item No.15.



In accordance with Chapter 2.36.150 of the Folsom Municipal Code, notwithstanding any other

provisions of this chapter, the city manager shall make, or authorize others to make, emergency
'pror*"*.nt 

of supplies, equipment, services, or construction items when there exists atlneat

io public health, *"lfur", oi ruf"ty; provided, that such emergency procurement shall be made

wiih suffrcient competition as is practicable under the circumstances. The requesting

department shall complete a waiver of bid format and submit it to the purchasing agent for

filing withthe city clerk. (Ord.723 $ 3 (part), 1991)

ANALYSIS

Failure to adequately maintain water temperature between 78-82 degrees Fahrenheit will
cause cancellaiion of pool programming and reduced services that can limit the ability to

provide the life skill oilearning to swim for the swim lesson program. Installing this fan will
provide efficient operations of the swimming pool heater and prevent interruption in

delivering essential services.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The cost of replacing the Instructional Swimming Pool Heater is proposed to be financed

from the General Fund's (Fund 010) contingency budget. Sufficient funds for this emergency

procurement are available in the General Fund's (Fund 010) contingency budget. Staff

ieceived an estimate from Knorr Systems Inc and would be the Sole Vendor for this purchase

and installation as they are the only company in this region certified to work on these heaters.

Proiect Costs:
Chimney Exhaust Fan
Estimate from: Knorr Systems Inc (KSI)

s23,726.25

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

In accordance with the Califomia Environmental Quality Act, the proposed project is

Categorically Exempt per Article 19, 15300.1 - Relation to Ministerial Projects.

ATTACHMENTS

l. ResolutionNo. 1 l$g - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the
purchase of a Chimney Exhaust Fan with Knorr Systems Inc for the Instructional
pool Heater at the Steve Miklos Aquatics Center and Appropriation of Contingency

Funds.

Submitted,

Kelly Gorualez,Parks & Recreation Director

2Page 126

05/14/2024 Item No.15.



RESOLUTION NO. III99

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE
PURCHASE OF A CHIMNEY EXHAUST FAN WITH KNORR SYSTEMS INC FOR

THE INSTRUCTIONAL POOL HEATER AT THE STEVE MIKLOS AQUATICS
CENTER AND APPROPRIATION OF CONTINGENCY FUNDS

WHEREAS, the Steve Miklos Aquatics Center has three bodies of water with one called

the Instructional Swimming Pool; and

WHEREAS, the Instructional Swimming Pool has programing scheduled for 10 months

including swim lessons, recreation swim, and other aquatics classes; and

WHEREAS, the Instructional Swimming Pool has a heater that shall maintain the pool

temperature between 78-82 degree Fahrenheit; and

WHEREAS, the purchase of swimming pool heater chimney exhaust fan is needed in
order to efficiently and properly maintain the water temperature to safely provide
programs; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds for this emergency procurement are available in the General

Fund's (Fund 010) contingency budget; and

NOW' THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the City Manager to execute the purchase of the swimming pool heater chimney

exhaust fan for the Instructional Pool at the Steve Miklos Aquatics Center and the Finance

Director is authorized to appropriate an amount not to exceed 523,726.25 from the General

Fund contingency budget..

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14 day of May 2024, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 11199
Page I of 1 Page 127

05/14/2024 Item No.15.



This page is intentiono"Ily Ieft blqnk
to focilitat e double - side d printing

snd minimize paper ttse.

CIT Y OF

OISTINCTIVE tsY NATURE
FOLSON{

Page 128

05/14/2024 Item No.15.



Folsom City Council
Staff rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNEIL ASTIQN

The Parks and Recreation Department recommends that the City Council Pass and adopt

Resolution No. 1 1200 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute an Agreement

with Site One Landscape Supply for the Purchase and Installation of Centralized Irrigation
Controllers in Lighting and Landscaping Districts and Community Facilities Districts.

BACKG / ISSTIE

The Municipal Landscapes Division (MLS) oversees the irrigation, maintenance, and

management of over 195 acres of linear landscapes along major roadways in the Lighting and

Landscaping and Community Facilities Districts. With irrigation being a crucial component of a
thriving landscape and over 250 inigation controllers to program, maintain, and repair, the MLS
department relies on centralizedirrigation controllers that have flow sensing capabilities, this

enables us to identi& and mitigate any water waste found or detected. Many of the current

irrigation controllers are obsolete and have reached their end of life. These controllers have been

discontinued by the manufacturer and replacement parts are becoming scarce.

It is the intention of MLS to continually upgrade and replace controllers as funds are available to

ensure that the system is functioning as designed. The MLS division has received a proposal

from Site One Landscape Supply to receive a promotional discount where one of every three

controllers is provided for no cost. Due to the multiple funds being used, we have applied the

discount over each fund proportionally.

1

MEETING DATE: slt412024

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 1 1200 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Site One Landscape

Supply for the Purchase and Installation of Centralized Irrigation
Controllers in Lighting and Landscaping Districts and Community
Facilities Districts

F'ROM: Parks and Recreation Department

Page 129

05/14/2024 Item No.16.



POLICY / RIII,E

In accordance with Chapter 2.36.080 of the Folsom Municipal Code, contracts for supplies,

equipment, services, and construction with a value of $73,209 or greater shall be awarded by the

City Council.

ANALYSIS

The Municipal Landscapes Division has over 250 inigation controllers to irrigate nearly 200

acres of linear landscapes and mini parks within Landscaping and Lighting Districts and

Community Facilities Districts. Many of these aging assets have reached their end of life and

parts are becoming scarce due to the manufacturer discontinuing the models in use as well as the

parts used for repair.

This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with the sole source

provider to replace the six most needed controllers.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The Parks and Recreation Department recommends the approval of this agreement with funding

coming from the following special district sources:

District Fund number
Number of
Controllers TotaI cost

Broadstone 3 (CFD) 266 3 $ 36,565.98

Prairie Oaks Ranch No.2 275 7 $ 14,577.79

Wittow Creek Estates East 284 t $ r4,s7rJ9
Wittow Creek Estates South 252 T $ 10,997.09

Totats 6 $ 76,706.65

Sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the aforementioned funds.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act, (CEQA) the proposed project is

Categorically Exempt per Article 19, 15300.1 - Relation to Ministerial Projects.

ATTACHMENTS
L Resolution No. 1 1200 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with Site One Landscape Supply for the Purchase and Installation of
Centrahzedlnigation Controllers in Lighting and Landscaping Districts and Community
Facilities Districts.

2. Proposal for purchase and installation of six irrigation controllers from Site One

Landscape Supply.
3. Sole Source Waiver-Centralized irrigation controller upgrades

2 Page 130

05/14/2024 Item No.16.



Submitted,

Kelly Gonzalez, Parks & Recreation Director

J Page 131

05/14/2024 Item No.16.



ATTACHMENT 1

Resolution No. I 1200 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with Site One Landscape Supply for the Purchase and Installation of
Cerrtralizedlnigation Controllers in Lighting and Landscaping Districts and Community

Facilities Districts.

4 Page 132

05/14/2024 Item No.16.



RESOLUTION NO. 11200

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AII
AGREEMENT WITH SITE ONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY FOR THE PURCHASE AND

INSTALLATION OF CENTRALIZED IRRIGATION CONTROLLERS IN LANDSCAPING
AND LIGHTING DISTRICTS AND COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICTS

WHEREAS, the Landscaping and Lighting Districts and Community Facilities Districts have

vast areas ofirrigated landscape; and

WHEREAS, for the health and longevity of the landscape, appropriate amounts of irigation
water are necessary; and

WHEREAS, centralized irrigation systems are the preferred controller type to ensure

appropriate water use and minimize water waste; and

WHEREAS, Site One Landscape Supply is the sole source vendor for Rain Master DX3
centralized irrigation controllers in the Northern California Region; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the following Landscaping and

Lighting District and Community Facilities District funds:
o Broadstone 3 CFD (Fund 266)

. Prairie Oaks Ranch No. 2 (Fund 215)

o Witlow Creek Estates East (Fund 284)

o Wittow Creek Estates South (Fund 252); and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with Site One Landscape Supply for purchase

and installation of six Rain Master DX3 inigation controllers for an amount not to exceed 576,707.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of May,2024, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

ResolutionNo. 11200

Page 1 of I

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 133

05/14/2024 Item No.16.



ATTACHMENT 2

Proposal for purchase and installation of six irrigation controllers from Site One Landscape

Supply.

5 Page 134

05/14/2024 Item No.16.



Quotation

& SlteEnF
r^t{oSclpl autFt{

tllr.ohg.F! Tothihft

BillTo:

Of Folsom l\tunicipal

(#586eee)

Natoma $t
cA95630-2614

; (916)355-7207

ShipTo:

City Of Folsom ltlLnicipal

Landscape (#586999)

50 Natoma St

Folsom, CA95630-2614

W: (916)355-7207

Rancho Cordova CA #304

1 '1309 Folsom Blvd $to A

Rancho Cordova, CA 95742-6320

W: (S16)635-1200

created lOuote* Ou" Out" lExpeaed A^,ard Date Explration Dde

1 O/1 9i20231658346? 11t1st2}2sl 11t1st2123 1U15t2023

l,*Printed Nane
Job

Descrlptlon
Job Start Date

1012012023

12:53:24

lox upgrades

leroro

- 3for 2
11t19t2023

Combines - &'61 17 4,654892,& 658291 5

RM DX.64 22SS SAt

& Freeze Sensor WEnc for DX

01034- $pec Valve Box Round '10 in. Green Bo/Green Lld Overlapping ICV

l!{scellaneous Parts

Drive on Broadstone

2,515.DX3 i DX Cell ttlodem & Antenna Assembly

Tech Ground Rod Kit

lnstall - Carl Coupe

RMDX-561688 $atAssY

Raln & Freeze Sensor W/Ene for DX

034- Spec Valve Box Round 10 in. Green Box/Green Lld Overlapping ICV

GT Mscellaneous Parts

ii:: 
.

Page 135

05/14/2024 Item No.16.



2S 3for2 Promo 1
r+,2+s.sJr+,2+s,oe

Total Price: $ 40,560.12
TotalTax $ 3,155.26

Total: $ 43,715.38

Slbqre Landucape$pplyi6 ndrsponsiblebrhs aoqJmcyoftre ltems conblnod lnthl6 quobton, Hesee t€Voworetully. Pleose add appropdcbsalo6bx

Rloee on tris quoto arqgood bt 30 dals aftor tle ontered bid dab.

Localb(maydlfur baeed on localions and loaal oodes.

Page 136

05/14/2024 Item No.16.



Quotation

,& titetlnE"
t.Ailo$sAFu SrrFptY

6tr{*tar?*{Ftha.

BillTo:

0ity Of Folsom tVtunicipal Landscape (#586999)

50 Natoma St

Folsom, CA95630-2614

W: (916)355-7207

Ship To:

Rancho Cordova CA #304

1'1309 Folsom Blvd Ste A

Rancho Cordova, CA 95742-6320

W: (916)635-1200
Of Folsom Municipal Landscape

Natoma St

, cA95830-2614

(e1 6)3ss-7207

Printed l.tou ttanr lJob Doacrlptlon Job Start Date

101301202312:06:3313 for 2 Promo Phase 3l 10t3112023

Total Price: $ 30,594.24
TotalTax $ 2,403.03

Total: $ 32,991.27

Sitec[te Landscape Supplyis not responsible forthe accuracyof the items conlained in this quotatron. Hoase reVew carefully. Hoase add approprlab sales lax
Prices on lhis quote are good for 30 dayt after the entered bld datre.

Local taxmaydifferbased on locations and local mdes.

Crcated lOuot* loui Date lExpected Aamrd Expiration Date

1 o/30/2023165s8344h o/31 /20231 1013112023 I 1013112023

1 1,035.01 111 sA6-R[/648 RM DX-48 1 655 Sat AssY

1Tech Ground Rod Kit

1 1,875.I5 lnstall - Carl Coupe

7

2,515,1 2,51DX3 / DX Cell tr4odem & Antenna AssemblyI

IGT ltrTscellaneous Parts11

13

2,511 2,5115 DXICA DX3 / DX Cell tt4odem & Artenna Assembly

117 Mscellaneous Parts

Page 137

05/14/2024 Item No.16.



ATTACHMENT 3

Sole Source Waiver-Centralized inigation controller upgrades

6
Page 138

05/14/2024 Item No.16.



Memo

N
tr() t,H () ll

CITY OF FOLSOM _ OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER

TO STACEY TAMAGNI, FINANCE DIRECTOR

STEVEN WANG, CITY ATTORNEY

ELAINE ANDERSEN, CIry MANAGER

FROM: KELLY GONZALEZ, PARKS & RECREATION DIRECTOR

DATE: MAY 14'2024

RE: SOLE SOURCE WAIVER. CENTRALIZED IRRIGATION CONTROLLER

UPGRADES

ln accordance with Folsom Municipal Code, Section 2.36.140, Sole Source
Procurement, the Parks and Recreation Department is requesting the installation of 6
Rain Master DX3 centralized irrigation controllers by SiteOne Landscape Supply for a
cost of $76,706.65. The existing irrigation controllers are discontinued from the
manufacturer and replacement parts are no longer being manufactured. Due to the
nature of landscaping, the need for serviceable controllers with flow sensing capabilities
is necessary to preserve water and ensure plants receive water during the summer
months. The justification to purchase via sole source procurement is as follows:

1. SiteOne is the only Rain Master approved vendor in the Northern California
region and has completed similar work for the City in the past. ln order to keep the
system manageable, we need to install DX3 controllers that run on the same centralized
system as the new construction in the Folsom Plan Area. Attempting to run parallel
systems with different manufactures leads to a loss of productivity and additional
troubleshooting resulting in an inefficient irrigation program and potential plant loss, or
unacceptable water loss.

Page 139

05/14/2024 Item No.16.



Approved By:

Stacey Tamagni, Finance Director Date

Steven Wang, City Attorney Date

Elaine Andersen, City Manager Date

Page 140

05/14/2024 Item No.16.



ffi
.f.-{}*,Ft{B.ns.
a,i 9:! l*{att tt t.At{r.{!

Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

MEETING DATE: slt4l2024

AGENDA SECTION: Public Hearing

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 11186 - A Resolution to Adopt an Amended User
Fee Schedule for Community Development Engineering and

Building Services (Continued from 04 123 12024)

FROM: Community Development Department

BACKGROUND
Public Hearing item Resolution No. l l 186 to adopt an amended user fee schedule for Community
Development Engineering and Building services was noticed in the Folsom Telegraph on April
12th,2024. At the Aprili3'd,2024 CW Council meeting, the item was continued to the May 14th

City Council meeting.

RECOMMENDATION / COUNCIL ACTION
Staff recommends that the City Council continue Resolution No. 1 1186 to theMay 2 Bth,zo24 city
Council meeting

Submitted,

PAM JOHNS
Community Development Director

I
Page 141

05/14/2024 Item No.17.



This page is intentionally Ieft blank
to facilitate double - side d printing

qnd minimize poper trse.

CITY OF

DISTINCTIVE BY NATURE
FOLSON{

Page 142

05/14/2024 Item No.17.



.: ,:''!'l

Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

MEETING DATE: 5n412024

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 1344 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom
Amending Sections 3.50.020, 3.50.040 and 3.50.050 and

Repealing Section 3.50.060 of the Folsom Municipal Code

(Introduction and First Reading Continued from 0412312024) and

Determination that the Project is Exempt from CEQA

FROM: Community Development Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION
Conduct the first reading of Ordinance No. 1344 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending

Sections 3.50.020,3.50.040 and 3.50.050 and repealing Section 3.50.060 ofthe Folsom Municipal

Code.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE
-hapter 3.50 "Fee and Service Charge Revenue/Cost Comparison System" of the Folsom

Municipal Code (FMC) mandates a specific percentage of costs that are required to be recovered

by fees and service charges for development, public safety, recreation, maintenance, administrative

and financial services. This list was created based on a cost control system study performed in
1987. The list includes several services that either no longer exist or have been modified

substantially since 1987 and does not include several newer services that the City has performed

since that time. Chapter 3.50 also currently lists the schedule for the review of each fee.

While Council regularly reviews and approves updated fee schedules for individual departments,

these fee schedules may include services that are not specifically listed in FMC Chapter 3.50. In
addition to the frequency of fee reviews, the Chapter also includes the percentage of cost recovery

required for each fee. However, Council may wish to modiff the percentage of cost recovery for

certain fees and service charges based on considerations such as community benefit or in support

of economic development. Under FMC Chapter 3.50, the Council cannot do this since the chapter

lists specific percentages of cost recovery that have to be met.

1

Page 143

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



POLICY / RULE
tfnaet S""tion2.I2of the City Charter, amendments to the Folsom Municipal Code require review

and approval by the City Council.

ANALYSIS
Staff has provided proposed modifications to FMC Chapter 3.50 (provided in Attachment 1) to

remove the schedule of fees and service charges table that lists specific regulations, products or

services provided by the City and the percentages of costs reasonably borne by the City to be

,."orrered by those fees. Staff recommends that instead of listing each of these specific facilities,

products and services, that the chapter be amended to provide general guidance about fees and the

appropriate cost recovery percentage. This provides greater discretion to the Council if, for

."i-pl", it chooses to set a lower cost recovery percentage for a service due to community benefit

o, 
""oro-ic 

development reasons. In addition, each department already maintains a Council-

approved fee schedule that is publicly available, and these schedules capture each department's

aitual fee-based regulations, products, facilities, and services. Removing the "percentage of costs

reasonably borne to be resolved" section allows Council to review each department's fee schedule

as needed to modifr the percentage of cost recovery desired for each fee (up to 100 percent cost

recovery).

In general, staff recommends that Council seek 100 percent cost recovery, but Council may adjust

fees to a lower rate altheir discretion. Grounds for reducing fee rates are wide-ranging and could

include reasons such as economic development, community benefit, public safety, to encourage

the public to obtain permits, and to avoid overburdening the general public with large fees. It would

also allow departments to charge flat fees or other fee methods rather than deposit-based fees.

While deposit-based fees ensure full cost recovery for every service, they require additional

administrative resources for invoicing, tracking, and collection that many departments, such as

Community Development currently lack.

Staff is also recommending removing the language regarding the frequency of fee reviews by

Council. The code currently prescribes either annual, quarterly or seasonal reviews. Given the

costs and time involved in producing fee studies, these targets have not been achieved. Fee

schedules for individual departments often get updated after the department finds that the fees no

longer reflect the type or level of work that goes into specific tasks. While it is often best practice

to adjust fee levels annually based on the Consumer Price Index (CPD or the Construction Cost

Index (CCI) depending on the type of fee, service or facility provided, it is not necessary to require

this as part of the ordinance as there may be times where staff and/or the Council do not wish to

make an annual adjustment. Removing the timing mechanism would formally allow Council and

the City Manager to decide when fee updates are necessary'

In researching other jurisdictions with similar code chapters addressing fee and service charge

revenue and cost comparison system, none that staff found dictated specific cost recoveries for

individual services and only one listed out each individual service provided as Folsom's code

currently does. These codes by and large gave Council the discretion to determine specific fee

rates to be collected (not exceeding 100% cost recovery) and did not prescribe the frequency with

2

Page 144

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



which fees need to be reviewed. As such, staff found that the proposed code modifications would
be consistent with the current practices of several other jurisdictions.

FINANCIAL IMPACT
Since the changes to Chapter 3.50 of the FMC still stipulate that the City Council shall generally

seek 100 percent cost recovery for City services and this ordinance does not change any specific

fee amounts, there is no impact to the General Fund. The proposed modifications to Chapter 3.50

of the FMC would let Council establish new fee and service charge types for any additional
services the City provides. It would also allow Council to regularly modiff the percentage of cost

recovery of each fee and service charge type on a frequency oftheir choice based on updated

economic conditions rather than relying on cost recovery and review targets from 1987.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
The change to this chapter of the Folsom Municipal Code is not a project under the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and is therefore exempt from environmental review in
accordance with Section 15061(b)(3) - Review for Exemption of the CEQA Guidelines.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1344 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Sections 3.50.020,

3.50.040 and 3.50.050 and repealing Section 3.50.060 of the Folsom Municioal Code

2. Proposed Updated Version of Chapter 3.50 "Fee and Service Charge Revenue/Cost

Comparison System" of the Folsom Municipal Corle

3. Public Comments Received

Submitted,

PAM JOHNS

Community Development Director

J

Page 145

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



ATTACHMENT 1

ORDINANCE NO. 1344 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF
FOLSOM AMENDING SECTIONS 3.50.020,3.50.040 AND 3.50.050

AND REPEALING SECTION 3.50.060 OF THE FOLSOM
MUNICIPAL CODE

Page 146

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



ORDINANCE NO. 1344

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM AMENDING SECTIONS 3.50.020,

3.50.040 AND 3.50.050 AND REPEALING SECTION 3.50.060 OF THE FOLSOM
MUNICIPAL CODE

The City Council of the City of Folsom does hereby ordain as follows:

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Folsom Municipal Code to remove the

specific list of services and percentage of costs reasonably bome to be resolved from fees for those

services and instead give City Council the discretion to determine specific services and associated

cost recovery goals.

SECTION 2 AMENDMENT TO SECTION 3.50.020 OF THE FOLSOM MUNICIPAL
CODE

Section 3.50.020 of the Folsom Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

3.50.020 Direction to eiff-m*nager recover costs.

fhe eity manaser is he amount of
fees and charges established under this Chapter shall be sufficient to recover 3 the percentage

of!hecostsreasonab1yborneinprovidingthe@servicesforwhichthe
fees and charges are imposed

' Costs reasonably bome shall be as are

defined in Section 3.50.030.
bv the fee shall be at the sole discretion of council but shall not exceed 100 nercent. as

set forth bv Section 3.50.040 below.

SECTION 3 AMENDMENT TO SECTION 3.50.040 OF THE F'OLSOM MUNICIPAL
CODE

Section 3.50.040 of the Folsom Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

3.50.040 Schedule of fees and service charges.

The city council eitt- manager, and e*eh eitt' department head; under the direetien ef the

of for +he

Ordinance No. 1344

Page I of l0 Page 147

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



p+egue*-or-sen+ees'

iee
R*ie*

Sehedule

Beveiepmen+Senriees

+@iew
+@ins
+@ien
a@ien
+ Resate+nspe*ie*

6@ien
+@ie*
&@ie*
* Yarianee Review

1+ Si+e-Design-Re{Fie{#

++ Uts€+fevi€{tr

#1" PUlDrRe+i€w

f+Miew
+4Wie*
++ Speeif,e+l*n+eliie*

rc iw
++@iet+
+&@ie*
+q i€w

?e@ie*
?t iew

2+ iew

?+ ien
R++i€w

?4 S+ree+NameRe+iew

?+ Fin*+A4ap€heek

Ordinance No. 1344

Page 2 of l0

+O0e/t

IW
+0Qe/o

+00e/t

l$0e/o

+$ge/o

lW
+00e/o

+$ge/t

|M%
lSge/o

+gOe/t

+00ryo

+00e/t

l{0eh

+00e/D

t$g%

+0Qe/D

+g0e/t

w%
+00e/o

+00e/t

+00e/o

+00e/t

+O0e/o

Annual

Annrral

A*n*aI

Annu*l

A,nn**l

Ann*al

Anru*I
A,nn**l

An*u*l

Ann**I

Ann*al

Annu*t

Annu*l

Ann*al

Annu*l

Ann**l

Annr*I

Annu*l

A,nnl*C

Annu*l

A,nn*al

Ann*d

,4n*u*l

,{nrual

Annu*l

Page 148

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



26M
2+@ie*
2& Sign-Design-R#i€{#

2+ GeneralPlan-Rwie*

3e ie*

3tMiew
S+@is"ien

Ilevi€{nr

-
PrveUing

S+@i€{v
-

PrYeUinS

3a
R€vi€{#

3+
Mie*

36

3+@ie*
3& iew

3q
a&@ien
at@ien
a+ S*ee+€u+Inspee+ien

++ ie*
aa

+nspe*ien

++ ins

PuUlieSa*eqrSewiees

a6ffi
a+@
4&ffi

Ordinance No. 1344
Page 3 of 10

+g0e/D

n0e/t

+00%

+$ge/o

$Qqo

100%

+0Qe/0

+gelt

W
lM

+e0%

l4ge/0

14Se/E

50e/o

100e/o

s0e/o

+00%

}e/o

lAQe/E

1e0%

+00e/t

t$Qe4

+g0e

nee/o

+gge/t

1+0e/o

Annu*l

A,nnu*l

Annu*I

Annual

A,nrual

Annu*l

Anru*l

An*utl

Annu*t

Annu*l

ACIrual

Ann*al

Annual

A,nnual

Ann**l

,{nn**l
A,nmral

*nn*al
Annucl

Annu*t

Ann*al

Annr*l

Ann**l

Anrual

Annu*l

Anmrd

Page 149

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



a+

5e@ien
5+ Bingo+€gula+ien

5+ Blas+i*g*e+i€{#

5+@ie*
5a
5+

S+a+e*a*

56@ien
5+@
5&

sq
60.

6t Vehieie+nspe*ien

6+@
6+@
6a ien

6+@ien
66Miew
6+@ien*

*6& Fire+eper+Snles

6+ FireS*Ivagesen.iee

7e k+€leanine

Tt iee

-.A*.ethers

++@
7+

7a@
7+

Reerea+ie*Senriees

+6

- Non-Residen+

Ordinance No. 1344
Page 4 of 10

t#%
+gge/r

l$$e/E

+$Ee/E

+O$e/o

100%

+$Qe/t

A*n*C
Annu*l

A,nnlr*l

Arnual

Ann**t

Annu*l

Ans&el

Annud

Annlr*l

Aarnual

Annucl

Annu*l

A,nnlr*l

Annu*l

Annral

A.nn*al

Ann**l

Annu*l

A,nn**l

.{nrrral

Ann*al

Annu*I

A,nruC

Ann*al

Ann*al

Annu*l

Ann**l

Annu*t

aua*erty

a***eey

14$ryo

LM%

l00e/o

+0ge/0

tM%
100%

1e0%

+g0e/o

+$seh

M
+00e/t

+AQe/o

IggV"

140-4

+e094

14ge/E

15 lo

lg0e/t

2%
14Qe/E

lM

90e/0

+g0e/t

Page 150

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



++

- Nsn-Residen+

7&

- Nen-Residen+

++@
- Nsn-Residen+

8e@
- Nsn-Residen+

s+
- Nen-Residen+

8;l=

- Nen-Reside*+

s8+@
*8a@
8+@
86 +rips-an++eurs

- Ne+Residen+

*8+@ien
*S& ien

t8+ Ju*a€ekb+*+ien
s9e@ien
9* Flea+a*rket

9+
gper*ien

- Nen-Residen+

9+

- Nsn-Residen+

qa@ioas

M*in+enanee-Sendees

9tM
+c

Ordinance No. 1344

Page 5 of 10

75q/"

+00e/o

75V"

+$Qe/o

5ee/0

+0ge/o

Sgeh

+g0e/t

sge/t

$0q/o

m
+g0e4

A%
50e/t

+Oge/D

9Qe/0

lM
ge/,

509D

ffi
25%

M
25e/o

71q/o

2#
+g0e/o

5Q%

aua*erlf
aua*egy

au*++erly

au**erty
Sease**Uy

Seasen*lty

Secsen*lly

Seasen*ty

Se*sen*lly

Seasen*lty

Seasenally

Seasen*lty

A,nnlrd

Annrd
A.nnrrsl

Se*senalty

Seasen*l+y

Annu*l

Ann*al

,4nnu*l

A,nnr*l

Annuat

A,nnual

Annrd
Annrrcl

Annu*l

A,nnu*t

+$Qek A,nnual

Page 151

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



- +ueus#lJ988

- A,ugustlr+g89

- A.ugus.tls+99e

- +ugus++-+99+

- +ueus#l;lg9?

9+ ien

- A.ugus+l+988

- A.ugus++r{989

- A,ugusl$gg0
- +ueus+l,-1g++

- ,+ttgus#1-,+999

9e

Dis+rie+)

- +ugus+H988

- +ueu$+1-,1989

- 
^rrgus+++990

- +ueus++,+g9+

- +ueus+L'+99?

9* S*ee+S+veeping

- May-1r+988

- A4*y-lr+989

rae

- +ueus++r+988

- +ueus+H989

- +ngus++r+gae

- Augus+-1r+99+

- Augus++r+gg?

+0+

@

Ordinance No. 1344

Page 6 of 10

Uelt

ffi
M
7sYo

140e4'

Oek

2%
Seek

7svo

+00e/t

M
ffi
50e/D

15e/p

+$$e/E

s0e/o

+Age/t

gelo

M
M
7svo

ilO%
+00%

Annual

Ann*al

Annu*l

Annlr*l

Ann*al

A,nnU*l

Ann*al

Annual

Annual

A.nnu*l

Arnnud

A,nnual

Annud

A,nn*al

Annu*l

A,nn**l

Ann*d

Annuat

Annu*I

Annuei

Ann*al

Annu*l

Ann*al

Page 152

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



+g+ ie+

Bis*ie+9

103. Water Serviee

- Peeemfer1-,+q88

- Peeemter+r+q8g

- Peeemlert-,+990

+++ ins

+0+ffiiee
+gc

107. Ser+erSewiee

- A.erillr+g88

-,+p+it++q8g

- A.eril++gge

- +p#il-l'{g9+

- A,eri+15+99?

10& Refuse-Sewiee

- +une+,++98

- lune+r$89
- +une-l-,++q0

+0q@
*+++ Tr*nsit Serviee

t+4+ffi
+1;t.

+nspee+ien

+++ffiiee
+++

iees

++* ien

r+6@
++%Mie*
11&ffiien

Ordinance No. 1344

Page 7 of 10

1e096

7gV"

w
+00qt

l00e/o

+O0e/o

+g0e/o

50ryo

M
754/"

qge/E

140q4

750/o

gAelo

+$Qe/t

+00elo

gge/o

7svo

+e0e/t

+ege/t

+00%

+00e/o

140*4-

+g0e/o

Annrr*I

,An*u*I

Anr**l
Annucl

Ann**l

Ann**l

A,nnu*I

AnnuC

,{nnu*l

,4nnual

Annu*l

Anr*d

Anarral

Annu*l

Annu*l

A.nnu*l

An*ual

A,nn**l

Anr*al

Ann**l

A,nnucl

A,nnUAl

Annud

Annual

Ann*al

Page 153

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



11* A,ren*Ren+al

+gU iee

t+Z+ lne

€aMiee
#l+ iee

#la {Jnspeeifie+Seryiee

#l+ Nerv$€ffi€€

*ge/.

+00e/t

+e096

+O0e/o

+e0%

+00e/D

t#%

Anntr*l

A,nnUAl

A,n*ual

.{nn*al

Annu*t

Annucl

Ann*al

* A Mininrum fee ef $10.00 shall be eharged in all instanees exeept in the eases ef
numUers 0Sr S3r S

The hereinabeve serviees as listed in this seetien tre defined in that eertain deer*rnent

The sehedule ef frequeney ef review ef fee adjustments rnay be varied by the eity mlnager
te adjust revenues suffieient te nreet debt sen'iee eeveragerequirements ef any bend;

tes

The sehedule ef frequeney ef fee adjnstments may be varied by the eitt manageri if; in his

All new or increased fees and charges set pursuant to this section shall take effect ten days after

adoption by the city council" except that new or increased development impact fee or charge

for processing applications for develonment proiects shall take effect sixtv davs after
adoption.
ef this seetien have been eenrplied with; and ne written appeal hns been {iled.

The sehednle ef freqneney ef rate adjnstrnents may be vnried by the eity rnanager te adinst

that ef the requesting department head; a gress inequity weuld be perpetrated by the

existing rate sehednle en a nervi tnd uncntieipated event, (erd. 627; $ 2; 1988: Ord, 609 $ 1;

+988)

SECTION 4 MENT TO SECTION 3.s0.0s0 0F THE FOLSO MIINICIPAL
CODE

Ordinance No. 1344
Page 8 of 10

Section 3.50.050 of the Folsom Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows:

Page 154

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



3.50.050 Statutory public meeting.

Pursuant to California Govemment Code Sections 549n.54994+ a;ftd 549942 66016 et seq..

the city clerk shall cause notice to be provided as set out in said Government Code

Sections 5499?,t+99++ 66016 and 6062a

p+es€n+efioas conceming the fees and charges proposed to be increased or added. Such pb!!g
meetine notice, ernl and written shall be provided $e{he
€lq,-€oun€tt prior to citv council taking any action on any new or increased fees or charges. At

@
SECTION 5IIEPEAL OF SECTION 3.50.060 OF THE FOLSOM MUNICIPAL CODE

Section 3.50.060 of the Folsom Municipal Code is hereby deleted in its entirety.

SECTION 6 SCOPE

Except as set forth in this ordinance, all other provisions of the Folsom Municipal Code

shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 7 SEVERABILITY

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase in this Ordinance or any part thereof

is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective by any court of competent

jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remaining portions

of this Ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council declares that it would have passed each

section irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase

be declared unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective.

SECTION 8 DATE

This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its passage and

adoption, provided it is published in full or in summary within twenty (20) days after its adoption

in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.

This ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the City

Council on May 14,2024 and the second reading occurred at the regular meeting of the City

Council on May 28,2024.

On a motion by Council Member seconded by Council Member
and adopted by the City Council of
2024,by the following roll-call vote:

the foregoing ordinance was passed

the City of Folsom, State of California, this 28th day of May,

AYES: Councilmember(s):

Ordinance No. 1344
Page 9 of l0 Page 155

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmembe(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. 1344

Page 10 of l0 Page 156

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



ATTACHMENT 2

PROPOSED UPDATED VERSION OF CHAPTER 3.50 OOFEB AND
SERVICE CHARGE REVENUE/COST COMPARISON SYSTEMO' OF

THE F LSOM IPAL CO

Page 157

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



Sections:
3.50.010
3.50.020
3.50.030
3.s0.040
3.s0.050

Chapter 3.50
FEE AND SERVICE CHARGE REVENUE/COST

COMPARISON SYSTEM

lntent.
Direction to recover costs.
Costs reasonably borne defined.
Schedule of fees and service charges.
Statutory public meeting.

3.50.0101ntent.

Pursuant to Article XlllB of the California Constitution, it is the intent of the city council to
require the ascertainment and recovery of costs reasonably borne from fees and charges levied

therefor in providing the regulation, products or services hereinafter enumerated in this

chapter. lt is the further intent of the city council that the fees and charges provided for in this

chapter shall not be deemed special taxes under Article XlllA of the California Constitution, nor

levied forgeneral revenue purposes. (Ord.609 S 1,1988)

3.50.020 Direction to recover costs.

The amount of fees and charges established under this Chapter shall be sufficient to recover a

percentage of the costs reasonably borne in providing the services for which the fees and

charges are imposed. Costs reasonably borne shall be as are defined in Section 3.50.030. The

percentage of the cost to be recovered by the fee shall be at the sole discretion of the council

but shall not exceed 100 percent, as set forth by Section 3.50.040 below.

3.50.030 Gosts reasonabty borne defined.

Costs reasonably borne, as used and ordered to be applied in this chapter are to consist of the

following elements:

A. All applicable direct costs including, but not limited to salaries, wages, overtime, employee

fringe benefits, services and supplies, maintenance and operation expenses, contracted

services, special supplies, and any other direct expense incurred.

B. All applicable indirect costs including, but not restricted to, building maintenance and

operations, equipment maintenance and operations, communication expenses, computer

Page 158

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



costs, printing and reproduction, and like expenses when distributed on an accounted and

documented rational proration system.

c. Fixed assets recovery expenses, consisting of depreciation of fixed assets, and additional

fixed asset expense recovery charges, calculated on the current estimated cost of replacement,

divided by the approximate life expectancy of the fixed asset. A further additional charge to

make up the difference between book value depreciation not previously recovered and

reserved in cash and the full cost of replacement, shall also be calculated and considered a cost

so as to recover such unrecovered costs between book value and cost of replacement over the

remaining life of the asset.

D. General overhead, expressed as a percentage, distributing and charging the expenses of
the city council, city manager, city clerk, elections, city treasurer, finance department, city

attorney, unallocated nondepartmental expenses, and all other staff and support service

provided to the entire city organization as now organized and as it may be reorganized at any

time in the future.

Overhead shall be prorated between tax-financed services and fee-financed services on the

basis of said percentage so that each of taxes and fees and charges shall proportionately defray

such overhead costs.

E. Departmental overhead, expressed as a percentage, distributing and charging the cost of
each department head and his or her supporting expenses as enumerated in subsections A, B,

and C of this section.

F. Debt services costs, consisting of repayment of principal, payment of interest, and trustee

fees and administrative expenses for all applicable bond, certificate, or securities issues or

loans, Any required coverage factors of added reserves beyond basic debt service costs also

shall be considered a cost, if required by covenant within any securities ordinance, resolution,

indenture or general law applicable to the city. (Ord. 609 S 1, 1988)

3.50.040 Schedute of fees and service charges.

The city council shall periodically review and make adjustments to all services provided bythe

various city departments to all users and the fees and charges associated with those services.

The city council shall generally seek 100 percent cost recovery for these services but may, at its

sole discretion, adjust fees and charges to a level below full cost recovery for reasons of
economic development, community benefit, or for any other lawful purpose.

All new or increased fees and charges set pursuant to this section shall take effect ten days

after adoption by the city council, except that new or increased development impact fee or

charge for processing applications for development projects shalltake effect sixty days after

adoption.

Page 159

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



3.50.050 Statutory pubtic meeting.

Pursuant to California Government Code Sections 66016 et seq., the city clerk shall cause notice

to be provided as set out in said Government Code Sections 66016 and 6062a concerningthe

fees and charges proposed to be increased or added. Such public meeting notice shall be

provided prior to city council taking any action on any new or increased fees or charges.

Page 160

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



ATTACHMENT 3

PUBLIC COMMENTS RECEIVED

Page 161

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



Desmond Parrinqton

From:
Sent:
lo:

Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Bob Delp <bdelp@live.com>

Tuesday, April 23, 2024 11:20 AM

Mike Kozlowski; Sarah Aquino; YK Chalamcherla; Anna Rohrbough; Rosario Rodriguez;

City Clerk Dept
Elaine Andersen; Pam Johns; Steven Wang; Desmond Parrington; Christa Freemantle

Comments to Council re 4-23-24 Agenda ltems 9 and 10

Planning Fees CC 3-08-1 1.Pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the

sender and know the content is safe.

On April 19, the City distributed an email newsletter with a headline "FOLSOM FACES FISCAL CROSSROADS:

clw couNctl DtREcTs BUDGET EDUCATTON PROGRAM", followed by an article warning that, 'The city is

facing a financial shortfall that could impact public safety, public services, and the quality of life in Folsom.

... Amidst the projected structural deficit, the city faces compounding infrastructure and building

maintenance needs that require a dedicated funding source. There is an estimated S20 million annual

shortfall in funding for infrastructure improvements, park and facility repairs, equipment maintenance and

replacements, trail maintenance and repairs, and staffing needs."

yet, in the midst of this dire financial reality, City staff is recommending the continued and expanded use of

the General Fund to subsidize the cost for the City's processing of private applications for permits and other

entitlements. For ltem 9 on your 4/23/2024 agenda, I urge the Council to direct staff to revise and return with

a full fee schedule for Development Services funding that achieves fee recovery for all services at the

percentages specified in the existing FMC section 3.50. For agenda ltem 10, I urge the Council to reject staffs'

recommended amendments to FMC 3.50 and leave FMC 3.50's sound fiscal policy directives in place. Staffs'

recommendations would increase use of the General Fund to subsidize private development proposals,

diverting those funds from important public safety, public services, and quality of life programs that are

hallmarks of the City of Folsom.

At its March 12 meeting, the Council heard a presentation from staff and its consultant regarding fee

schedules for Community Development services. Although some questions were asked and concerns

expressed regarding certain fees, I heard no one suggest that the City should not strive to comply with the

existing FMC 3.50 provisions that direct the City Manager to recover costs at the percentages outlined in the

FMC 3.50.040 Schedule of Fees and Service Charges and I heard no one suggest that the existing FMC 3.50'040

fee percentages should be eliminated. Further, documentation for and discussion during the March 12

meeting acknowledged that the City's fee structure has not been achieving the required cost recovery and

that increasing the fees to be at least more in-line with FMC 3.50 requirements is necessary to minimize

impacts on the City's General Fund'

Now, just a few weeks later, staff has modified the proposed fee schedule (Agenda ltem 9) recommending

that the Council adopt a fee schedule revision limited to certain engineering and building permits while leaving

all other fees unadjusted, including those known to be clearly insufficient for funding the City's costs and

complying with FMC 3.50. Moreover, staff now also recommends (Agenda ltem 10)that FMC 3.50 be revised

to eliminate the existing requirement to achieve specific cost recovery percentages'

1

Page 162

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



ls this what the Council wants; to continue insufficient recovery of costs for development application

processing and building permits and to continue to shift that burden onto Folsom's citizenry by robbing the

General Fund?

I hope staff has read the Council wrong on this one and that the Council will reject staff's proposals and direct

staff to return with a fee schedule that fully recovers development/permit application processing and one that

includes provisions to implement the full cost recovery program requested by staff and approved by the

Council in 20LL (attached) that after 13 years is still sitting on the sidelines waiting to be implemented'

Thank you for considering mY inPut

Bob Detp
916-812-8122
-b-detg@tive.cam

From: Bob Delp <bdelp@live.com>
Sent: Tuesday, March 12,2024 9:56 AM

To: Mike Kozlowski <mkozlowski@folsom,ca.us>; Rosario Rodriguez <rrodriguez@folsom.ca.us>; Sarah Aquino

<saquino@folsom.ca.us>; YK Chalamcherla <ykchalamcherla@folsom.ca.us>; Anna Rohrbough <annar@folsom.ca.us>;

Christa Freemantle <cfreemantle@folsom.ca,us>

Cc: Elaine Andersen <eandersen@folsom.ca.us>; Steven Wang <swang@folsom.ca.us>; Sari Dierking

<sdierking@folsom.ca.us>; Pam Johns <pjohns@folsom.ca.us>; Desmond Parrington <dparrington@folsom.ca.us>

Subject: Comments to Council re 3-12-24 Agenda ltem 5 - Planning Fees

For distribution to City Council

Dear Council

Regarding agenda item 5 of tonight's City Council meeting, this message is to urge the City Council to direct

staff to implement a full cost recovery program for processing development applications consistent with the

process described in the attached March 2,}OLL, staff report and adopted by the Folsom City Council in

2011 through Resolution 8801 (attached). Through such a process, individual applicants would pay for the

actual and full cost for processing their individual applications - neither subsidizing nor being subsidized by

other applicants and without being subsidized by the City's General Fund'

ln 201!, the Community Development Department and City Council wisely determined that through

implementation of a full cost recovery system for application processing, the Cily "would protect its Generol

Fund monies from subsidizing private development applications."

Staff's 201L analysis of the financial impact of the full cost recovery program found that, "Ihe cost recovery

progrqm would ollow the City to more accurotely cover the actual costs for development permits from the

appliconts. Atthough the octuol savings to the General Fund are cannot be quontified, this fee recovery

progrom will result in o positive impact to the Generol Fund and provide direct costs charges to contribute to

the Generol Fund to more occurately fund development processing costs.

Staff's basis for its 2011 recommendation concisely described the situation that existed then and that still

persists today, noting, "the ronge of complexity in development applications can vdry widely and some proiects

can remain "octive" or "in process" for yeors becouse proiects ore substontiolly revised and resubmitted

(sometimes with years passing in between) in an qttempt by applicants to obtain City approval.
2

Page 163

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



Staff sometimes must effectively begin processing all over with each resubmittal but is unable to request new

project fees becouse the project is stilt technicolly active. tt is these types of proiects that staff seeks to target

to ensure thot staff costs qre fully recovered." These persisting circumstances beg for a system based on

actual costs, not flat fees.

yet, the system requested by CDD and approved bythe Council in20tt still has not been implemented and

CDD's current 3/IL/Z4staff report to the Council for agenda item 5 of tonight's meeting provides a

recommendation predominated by "flat fees" which are inherently inequitable and a drain on the City's

resources. The current staff report makes no mention of the 20L1 Resolution and provides, no compelling

rationale for abandoning the sound approach that the Council directed be implemented in 20LL'

please direct staff to fulfill the directives of Resolution 8801 and implement the full cost recovery system for

development application processing that requires individual applicants to fully fund the costs of processing

their applications.

Thank you for considering mY inPut

Bob Delp
915-812-8t22
bdelp@live.com

From: Bob Delp <bdelp@live.com>

Sent: Monday, November 15,202111:1"2 AM

To: Pam Johns <pjohns@folsom.ca.us>

Cc: Elaine Andersen <eandersen@folsom,ca.us>; Steven Wang <swang@folsom.ca'us>; Scott Johnson

<sjohnson@folsom.ca.us>; Sari Dierking <sdierking@folsom.ca.us>; Mike Kozlowski <mkozlowski@folsom'ca'us>; Sarah

Aquino <saquino@folsom.ca.us>; Rosario Rodriguez <rrodriguez@folsom.ca.us>; YK Chalamcherla

<ykchalamcherla@folsom.ca.us>; kerri@atlanticcorrosionengineers.com <kerri@atlanticcorrosionengineers.com>

Subject: Re: Funding for Development Application Processing

Thanks, pam. I appreciate the response, but what you describe doesn't strike me as being consistent with the

direction of the 20lL resolution. You state that staff doesn't have the discretion to charge more than the fees

set by the counsel even if a project exceeds that cost, however, my read of the 2011 resolution is that if a full

cost recovery project was being implemented as directed by that resolution, staff would not just have the

authority but would also have the obligation to charge an applicant for the actual cost, including City Attorney

fees, instead of subsidizing the private project's costs.

I know you'll have your hands full with other things this week, but I (and others) would like more clarity on

this. Maybe in the next few weeks you could provide an example of how you track staff time/costs for

application projects - perhaps Folsom Prison Brews/Barley Barn since it's a good example of the type of

project described in the 201i. staff report requesting the full cost recovery program (l previously submitted a

public records request for that project, but I don't recallthat any of the documents I received had any records

of staff time or of applicant payments).

Thanks,
-Bob

5

Page 164

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



Bob Detp
916-812-8122
bdetp@l,ive.com

From: Pam Johns <pjohns@folsom,ca.us>

Sent: Monday, November t5,202110:05 AM

To: Bob Delp <bdelp@live.com>

Cc: Elaine Andersen <eandersen@folsom,ca.us>; Steven Wang <swang@folsom.ca.us>; Scott Johnson

<sjohnson @folsom.ca.us>
Subject: RE: Funding for Development Application Processing

Hi Bob,

l'm just back from unexpected leave and wanted to follow up on your email.

Development processing fees are set by the City Council in an amount that cannot exceed the reasonable cost of

providing the service. Accordingly, and generally speaking, staff does not have discretion to charge more than the fees

set by the Council even if a particular application takes more time to process than others. Overall, planners and

engineers in Community Development track their time working on development applications and also to properly

account for deposit-based fees. When it appears that the fees set by the City Council no longer reflect the reasonable

cost of providing the service, staff would recommend that the fees be re-evaluated and adjusted.

Pam

Pam Johns
Community Development Director

From: Bob Delp <bdelp@live.com>

Sent: Friday, October 22,20215:01 PM

To: Elaine Andersen <eandersen@folsom.ca.us>

Cc: Pam Johns <pjohns@folsom.ca.us>; Scott Johnson <sjohnson@folsom.ca,us>; Rosario Rodriguez

<rrodriguez@folsom.ca.us>; kerri@atlanticcorrosionengineers,com; Sarah Aquino <saquino@folsom.ca'us>; Mike

Kozlowski <mkozlowski@folsom.ca.us>; YK Chalamcherla <ykchalamcherla@folsom.ca.us>; Christa Freemantle

<cf reemantle@folsom.ca, us>

Subject: Fw: Funding for Development Application Processing

Ms. Andersen

City Council Resolution 8801of 2Ottis attached with the associated March 2,zOLt staff report, as provided to

me by Scott Johnson on October 6,202!. Mr. Johnson was responding to my Oct 1 request (in string below)

for information regarding funding for development applications. Neither Mr. Johnson nor Ms. Johns have yet

been able to tell me if or how the Community Development Department has implemented the full cost

recovery program for staff time as directed by the Council in Reso 8801.

lf such a program is not in place, then taxpaying members of this community have been subsidizing what I

expect would amount to hundreds of thousands of dollars of staff time and expenses associated with

processing private development applications over the past 10 years when, instead, as directed by the City

Council in201.1., those costs should have been directly paid for by applicants.

4

Page 165

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



I am asking that you investigate, provide an explanation to the community, and address this matter as a top

priority and that you direct staff to immediately suspend any further processing of current and future

applications until a reimbursement agreement for full cost recover is in place.

Thank you,
-Bob Delp

Bob Delp
916-8t2-8t22
bdelp@live.com

From: Bob Delp <bdelp@live.com>

Sent: Sunday, October 17,202'J- 7:34 PM

To: Scott Johnson <siohnson@folsom.ca.us>; Pam Johns <piohns@folsom.ca.us>

Cc: Elaine Andersen <eandersen@folsom.ca,us>

Subject: Re: Funding for Development Application Processing

Hi, pam and Scott (Elaine now cc'd). l'm concerned that you haven't yet been able to confirm that the full cost recovery

system is in place and being implemented. This is likely a matter of tens of thousands of dollars each year for staff costs

that - based on city council 2011 direction - should be covered by applicant reimbursements. Please confirm ASAP that

the system is in place,

-Bob

916-812-8722
bdelp@live,com

On Oct 6,2O2!, at 8:59 PM, Bob Delp <bdelp@live'com> wrote:

Thanks, Scott. The key thing I see from the 2011 staff report and resolution is the council's direction for

staff to implement a full cost recovery fee system. The staff report describes precisely the type of

situation I was asking about and seems to provide a clear remedy - full cost recovery. Was that full cost

recovery system implemented and where would I find a description of how it's implemented?

-Bob
916-812-8122
bdelp@live.com

On Oct 6,2021,, at 9:36 PM, Scott Johnson <siohnson@folsom'ca.up wrote:

Mr. Delp,

Attached is the staff report and resolution adopted by the City Council on 3-08-L1

relative to Planning Fees. Approvalof this resolution changed our fee structure for
planning services to be deposit based for the majority of entitlements.

Scott A. Johnson, AICP

Planning Manager

From: Pam Johns <piohns@folsom.ca.us>

Sent: Tuesday, October 5,2O2I 1:L7 PM

To: Bob Delp <bdelp@live.com>

5

Page 166

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



Cc: Scott Johnson <siohnson@folsom.ca'us>

Subject: RE: Funding for Development Application Processing

Hi Bob.

l've copied Scott Johnson here so he can respond or call you about our planning

entitlement fee structure. Thank you.

Pam

From: Bob Delp <bdelp@live.com>

Sent: Tuesday, October 5,2021' 11:50 AM

To: Pam Johns <piohns@folsom.ca.us>

Subject: Re: Funding for Development Application Processing

Thanks, Pam. That's good to know and answers part of my question. But I'm

also interested in knowing if staff time/costs are tracked and reimbursed by

applicants. ln particular, projects like 603 Sutter Street and 608 1/2 Sutter Street
(Cotchy-Name-Here Brews) have been submitted with substantial staff time
invested in reviews, preparing staff reports, preparing for hearings, etc., but then

the applicants have decided to pull back the projects and make substantial

revisions. I'm sure that even a once-through application requires substantial

staff time, and layering in multiple rounds obviously then takes that much more

time. So I'm interested in knowing if applicants are funding staff costs for their
projects or if I and other taxpayers are paying for staff time to review private

projects.

Bob Delp
916-812-8122
bdelp@live,com

From: Pam Johns <piohns@folsom.ca.us>

Sent: Tuesday, October 5,2021L1:22 AM

To: Bob Delp <bdelp@LIVE.COM>

Subject: RE: Funding for Development Application Processing

Hi Bob

Consultant costs are covered entirely by applicant. Contracts are run through the City

because we manage the consultant work consistent with approved scopes of work. Just

like any city-run project, any cost overages by a consultant for work that is out of scope

must be approved by the city in advance of the work and additional costs are the

responsibility of the developer. Does that answer your question?

Pam

From: Bob Delp <bdelp@LIVE,COM>

Sent: Friday, October 1,2021" 10:46 AM

6

Page 167

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



To: Pam Johns <piohns@folsom.ca.us>

Subject: Funding for Development Application Processing

Pam:

I'm interested in understanding the source of funding for City and any City-

retained consultant costs associated with your Department's review of
development projects. I know there are established fees for certain project

types, but I also know that the actual time/cost can be much higher than those

fees would cover. Does the City absorb that cost or do you require

reimbursement agreements with applicants for them to cover the actual cost?

Thanks,
-Bob

Bob Delp

9L6-8r2-8L22
bdelp@live.com
<Planning Fees CC 3-08-11.Pdf>

7

Page 168

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



DATE:

TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

PUBLIC HEARING
Agenda ltem No.: 8a

GG Mtg.:03/08/2011

March 2,2011

Mayor and City Council Members

David E. Miller, AICP, Community Development Director

RESOLUTION NO. 8801 - A RESOLUTION MODIFYING RESOLUTION

NO. 8301 TO CONVERT NOTED PLANNING FEES TO DEPOSITS AND

DIRECTING STAFF TO IMPLEMENT A PROGRAM FOR FULL COST

PLANNING SERVICE FEES

BACKGROUND /ISSUE
The plannirrg oepurtmGt service Fees were last updated in october 2008- The fees generally

reflect the average cost to provide development application processing services- However, the

range of compleiity in devllopment appliiations can vary widely and some projects can remain
.,aJve,, or ,tn process" for years because projects are substantially revised and resubmitted

(sometimes with years passing in between) in an attempt by applicants to obtain City approval'

Staff sometimes must eifectiu"ty begin processing all over with each resubmittal but is unable to

request new project fees becauri tit"proirct is still technically active. It is these types ofprojects

that staff seeks to target to ensure tirat staff costs are fully recovered. As the Council is well

aware, in our crrrrrni fiscal climate the General Fund is unable to cover any unnecessary

development service related costs.

Another major issue associated with development applicatio_n fees is the continuing reduction in

General Fund revenues. Over the past three years, the City's General Fund expenses have

exceeded the General Fund revenue by approximately $13 million. The City's General Fund

cannot subsidize development applications. Given significant increases in productivity and

expediting development permits,-ihe expense to process development permi.tl has dropped in

*uny "urir. 
Nevirtheless, the General Fund continues to significantly subsidize development

permit activity.

Therefore, staff is proposing to implement a program where staff would track time spent.on each

planning application and begin charging applicants monthly if and when the _application 
fees

were exceeded. In addition,-a fee would be implemented to cover planning staff time to review

building permits. In this manner, the City would protect its General Fund monies from

subsidizing private development applications.

POLICY / RULE
F6i6ilT6i-c-IT coa" Section 3.50.020 directs the city Manager to recommend to the council

@andchargestorecoverthepercentageofcostsreasonablybomein
providing the regulation, products or services enumerated in Chapter 3.50.

000001Page 169

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



Folsom Municipal Code Section 3.50.030 provides direction on calculating "costs reasonably

Uot*. to include the following elements: direct costs (wages, overtime, benefits, overhead, etc),

indirect costs (building maint-nance, computers, printing, etc.), fixed assets, general overhead,

department overhead, and any debt service costs.

Folsom Municipal Code Section 3.50.040 requires fee adjustments be approved by the City

C*""illt .t* ,p""ifi6 the percentage of City service costs to be recovered through fees. The

majority of planning Service Fees are directed to be 100% cost recoverable through its fee

structuie. Building Permit fees are also directed to be 100% cost recovered.

ANALYSIS
St"ff t"*-*ends that the City Council direct staff to implanent a full cost recovery program

modeled after one that's been used by the City of Roseville Planning and Redevelopment

Department since 2003. The following is the proposed program outline:

Base Cost
ftt" t* 

"ost 
for processing a full cost application represents the minimum amount of

stafftime investedby City staff. This base cost is determined by an analysis of actual

costs and is non-refundable. Staff recommends that Folsom's existing fee structure

adopted October 1, 2008 be used as this base cost so that no new costly analysis process

is required.

Project-l.nitiation
Cott"rro"ttt with the start-up of a project, the applicant enters into an agreement for full
cost billing. Per this agreement, the applicant would pay the base costs associated with

the individual entitlernents associated with the project.

Full Cost Billine
Following project initiation and payment of the base cost fee, staff will record time spent

working on the project against the base cost. If staff time exceeds that covered under the

base cost, the applicant shall be billed an hourly rate thereafter on a monthly basis'

The hourly billing rate charged to projects would be a factor of the staff salary to cover

costs as enumerated in Folsom Municipal Code Section 3.50.030, including: direct costs

(wages, overtime, benefits, overhead, etc), indirect costs (building maintenance,

computers, printing, etc.), fixed assets, general overhead, department overhead, and any

debt service costs. The Finance Department has completed a full analysis of overhead

charges and has submitted rates for all Community Development staff.

These charges are based on the current staff costs per adopted City labor contracts, plus a

factor for direct and indirect costs. Ineluded in the monthly billing would be any costs

incurred by other departments such as the City Attorney's Offtce, Public Works, Utilities,
Housing and Redevelopment, Parks and Recreation, etc'

2
000002 Page 170

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



Consultants
A, *"y b" required for project evaluation or environmental review, all consultant work

shall be paid for by the project applicant and would be included in the payment

ugr""*.r,i. The Citywould charge an administrative cost equal to 10% of the contract

airount, which is a typical markup rate industry wide'

Non-Residential Plan Check Fee

@view.eve,rybui1dingpermitforcompliancewithconditionsofany
project approval (such as a Design Review or Planned Development Permit) to ensure all

it"-ptun rlng Commission and City Council conditions have been complied with. In

addition, permits must be reviewed for compliance with the Zoning Code and any other

applicable ordinance. Staff recommends that an additional planning review fee equal to

t S% of ttre permit fee (same as City of Roseville fee) be charged to cover planning staff

review time for ,ron-..rid"ntial proJects because currently this cost is not being covered

and is a drain on the General Fund.

Residential LandscaPe Review Fee

Due to ,"."rrt ,tuG@ution 1AB 1S81) all landscape plans are required to be reviewed

for water conservatioi standards. While commercial landscape plan review is covered by

the existing fee structure, residential landscaping plans are not. Staff proposes to require a

residential fee for each residential landscape plan review and inspection based on the

hourly rate of the CitY Arborist.

As shown in the table below, the proposed fee deposits for typical entitlernents are similar to

other jurisdictions in the region.

Entitlement Folsom Roseville Sacramento Elk Grove Rancho
Cordova

General Plan
Amendment

$3,651-
$7,300

s4,934-
s13,074

$20,000 $12,377 $ 15,000

Rezone 92,502-
s4,997

$5,1 54-
$13,338

$8,000-
$20,000

$ 10,176 s 15,000

Specific Plan
Amendment

$5,892
$5, I 39-
$ 13,075

$10,000 $3,443 $5,000

Tentative Parcel
Map

$4,754 $1,698 $500 per lot $4,854 $10,000

Tentative
Subdivision MaP

$5,721+$30
per lot

$3,338-
$4,832

$500 per lot $7,533
$i0,000-
$20,000

Planned
Development

Permit

$7,640+$38
2 per acre

s4,627 $6,200 $5,281 $10,000

Conditional Use
Permit

94,954 $4,085
$4,000-
s9,000

s5,223 s10,000

Variance $1,405 s2,430 s3,000 s3.228 $10,000

5 000003Page 171

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



Staff recommends the Planning Serryice Fees convert to this deposit/cost recovery system in

accordance with those services specifically identified in Section 3.50.040 to be full cost

recovery. Exceptions to full cost recovery identified in this section include appeals (identified

costs to be l07o recovered) and tree removal permits/special events permits (by omission from

the schedule of Development Services to recover costs reasonably bome).

F'INANCIAL IMPACT
The cost re"""eryprogram would allow the City to more accurately cover the actual costs for

development permits from the applicants. Although the actual savings to the General Fund are

cannot be quantified, this fee recovery program will result in a positive impact to the General

Fund and piovide direct costs charges to contribute to the General Fund to more accurately fund

development processing costs.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
@l1yexemptfromtheCa1iforniaEnvironmentalQualityActunder
public Resources Code $21080, sub. (bX8) and CEQA Guidelines 915273, establishment,

modification, structuring or approval of rates, tolls fares, or other charges by public agencies

which the public agency finds are for the purpose of meeting operating expenses. The

modification of permit fees has not potential environmental impact upon the environment so

does not constitute a project under CEQA.

ATL\CIIMENTS

1. Resolution No. 8801 - A Resolution Modifying Resolution No. 8301 to Convert Noted

Planning Fees to Deposits and Directing Staff to Implement a Program for Full Cost

Planning Service Fees

2. City of Roseville Planning Fee Schedule - Effective July l, 2010 (which includes

procedures for Full Cost Fees)

3. City of Roseville Planning Department Sample Agreement for Full Cost Billing.

RECOMMENpATION/CrrY coUNcIL AcrroN

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 8801 - A Resolution Modiffing
Resolution No. 8301 to Convert Noted Planning Fees to Deposits and Directing Staff to
Implement a Program for Full Cost Planning Fees'

Submitted,

h;re >tub
David E. Miller, AICP
Community Development Director

4
000004

Page 172

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



Attachment#L
City Council Resolution

00000s
Page 173

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



RESOLUTION NO. 8801

ARESOLUTIoNMODIFYINGRESOLUTIoNNo.S30IASSHowNINTHE
ATTACHED FEE SCHEDULE AND DIRECTING STAFF TO IMPLEMENT A

PRoGRAMFoRFULLcoSTPLANNINGSERVICEFEES

WHEREAS' Folsom Municipal Code Section 3.50.020 directs the City Manager to

recommend to the Cou*it ttt" uO3ustment of fees and charges to recover the percentage of costs

ieasonably borne in providing the regulation, products or services as enumerated in Chapter

3.50; and

WIIEREAS, Folsom Municipal Code Section 3.50.030 provides direction on calculating

costs reasonably d*" t" ir"lrde 
-the-following 

elements: direct costs (wages, overtime,

benefits, overhead, etc.), indirect costs (building maintenance, computers, printing' etc')' fixed

urr"tr, general overhead, department overhead, and any debt service costs; and

WIIEREAS' Folsom Municipal Code Section 3.50.040 requires fee adjustments be

approved by the CitY Council; and

WHEREAS, Folsom Municipal Code Section 3.50.040 also directs that the majority of
planning Service n"". una guildi"g r"tmit r"es shall be 100% cost recoverable through its fee

structure; and

WHEREAS, the range of complexity in Planning Department development applications

can vary widely; and

WHEREAS, in our current fiscal climate the General Fund is unable to cover any

unnecessary development service related costs; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Folsom

that Resolution No. g30l be modified as shown in the attached fee schedule, effective 60 days

from the date of adoption of this Resolution on May 8,2011 and directs City staff to implement a

progru- for full cosi planning service fees as attached and described in the staff report'

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 8th day of March 2011, by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN

ATTEST:

Council Member(s):

Council Member(s):

Council Member(s):

Council Member(s):

Andrew J. Morin, MAYOR

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 8801

Page 1 of2

000006
Page 174

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



# Department Service Base Fee
(Non-Refundable D ePosit)

Review $ 545PE-I
PE-2 Tentatrve Review

Review
Amendment Review

$ 4,'754

$5,751 + $30/LotPE-3
$ 7,923

PE-4
s 2,599

PE-5 Final Map Amend/Cert of Correction
Extension Review

Site Review - Comm.
revlew
Mod. Review

3
PE-6

$
+

$ 7

PE.7
PE-8
PE-9

$ ?fi}PE-IO Planned Development Ext. Review t deoosit)

PE-II Plan Review $ 5

PE-12 Specific Plan Amend. Review $ 5,892

Initial Environmental study/Assmnt (deposit) $ 5423PE-I3
Review & $ 7,285PE-l5

$
r{1

PE-I6 Notice of CEQA determination

PE.l8 '*

Dist SFD Rvw
5,369$

$ 54PE-20
l,!41$PE-2I H.D. MultFam/Comm Design Rt* (d.Posit)

PE.22 Arch Review - SFD (dePosit) $

PE.23 Review - Mult-Fam/Comm. $ 1,84

P8.24 Dist S Review $ 54

$ 107PE.25 Sien Permit - Staff
PF.26 PD Permit Sign OnlY (aeP"sit) .

1 I

PE-27 Zonins Verification Review (dePosit) 8

Review- < 5 acres 2,502$PE-28
$ 4,997PE-29 Review- 5+ acres

Line ./Parcel $ 844PE-20
PE.31

1,405$PE-32 Variance Review- SFD (deoosit)

PE.33 Variance Review- Other (deposit) $ I

P8.35 Appeal - Admin $ 214

Appeal - by other (d"PosL $ 429PE-36
PE-37 Amendment $ I I

PE-38 General Plan Amendment <5 acres (deoosit) $ 3,651

$ 7,300PE.39 General Plan Amendment >5 acres (dePosit)

PE-40 Temporary Use Permit Review $ 54

Conditional Use Permit Review $ 4,954PE-41
PE-43 Name $ I I

PE-44 Devl. Agreement Processing (deposit)* 4

PE-45 Non-residential Plan Check Fee lSYo

PE-46 Residential LandscaPe Review Fee Hourly rate of City Arborist

Resolution No. 8801

Page2 of2

000007
Page 175

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



Attachment #2

City of Roseville Planning Fee Schedule

Effective July I,2010

000008
Page 176

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



Appendix A
Fee Estimate Work Sheet

PLANNING and REDEVELOPMENT

31 1 VERNON STREET - ROSEVILLE, CA 95678

'*T.

E
il r\ L ! | fi lit lal i i\ 

Planning Fee schedule - Effective July 1, 2010

Adopted by Resolution No. 96-239 - Amended by Resolution No. 97-2g7 - Amended by Resolution No. 99-507 - Amended by Resolution No. 02-02 - Amended by Resolution No'02-224

Amended by Resolution No. 04-485 - Amended by Resolution No. 05-1 76, Amended by resolution 09-124

ENflTLEMENT (APPLIGAIoN rYPE): FEE J*L?:""l

1. Planning Director's Decision $+S+

2. PCTDC Decision to City Council $425

ANNEXATIONS

ENTITLEMENT (APPLICATION TYPE): FEE

STGNS:,,:,'rr-.,$ffi;;'.','''' ,': : ;igi..,lli4lffi'': l'''l 'ii '' r q;r'i

1. Standard Sign Permit $117

,rFtr*n€).
ROSEYILL

1 . Annex! PZlDetach/SO l/( FU LL COST/D9p"9sit) 
1

oeVgfleu-erlT:ncnEgilenrs,'. ;.,,:,iiffi: ii,,r''' ",'ti:'t.ji'i 
:l'ij

$1,2M
$2,474

:.. .-: :1lf :,i: :

$176
$425
$630

$1,288

5. EtR Deposit (FULL COST/Deposit)l
GENERAL'PLAN AMENEMFNT : , .,:.:: i.::' , ";

FullGost
Base Cost

$11,786
'..:ill-;i",: .'-1r : ..

$o,aaz

$6,837

2. Planned Sign Permit Program $512

3. Sign PermiUProgram - Public Hearing Req. $1 '010
4. Administrative Permit for Sign Exceptionz $717

5. PSP Minor Modification3 $58

, ireci*lG"-*$,aU-glouf N.r.,' itiiii.l,': -tx*., r$ffi:ii,' .', i'

1. SPA Adoption, Map/Text (FULL CoST/Deposit)1

2. SPA 10 Acres or LESS, Map or Text $5,139

3. SPA 11+ Acres, Map/Text (FULL COST/Deposii)l

4. SPA TexvPolicy

.::i:.:-: :.:::

iii*lii.l ,::,,

1. Adoption of Specific Plan (FULL COST/Deposit)1

2. Amendment of SPA (FULL COST/Deposit)l

3. Associated with Affordable Housing

4. Associated with Single Topic ltem
ENVIRONMENTALREVIEW : ,r 1': '1: , '

1. Exemption WITHOUT lnitialStudy
2. Exemption WITH lnitial StudY

3. Negative Declaration with NO Mitigation

4. Tiered Negative Declaration WITH Mitigation

1. Entilement Fee - GPA 10 Acres of LESS, Mapffext

2. GPA 11+ Acres, Mapffext (FULL COST/Deposit)l

3. GPA - Text Policy Amend (FULL COST/Deposit)]

PUBLICI.I'TILITV EASEII/iENT ABANDONMENT

1. Summary Vacation

2. General Vacation

.. i..:,

$1,201
$2,489
$1,201

$1,201
$1,201
$1,698

$1,201

$2,796
$1,698
$3,338

$4,832

,786

$13,075
$13,075

:.. j, ' .i .:.:ii, j,:
',: ..: :jitli,,

$12,2U

$4,s34

$11,786
't,: .., 4-

$13,074
$13,074

.. 1.f\ti" tt.\.
.. .. . .,1._r .

1. Grading Plan / Minor
2. Grading Plan / Major
3. Lot Line Adjustment

4. Extension to a Tentative MaP

5. Voluntary Merger
6. Reversion to Acreage

7. Minor Modification to a Tentative Map

8. Major Modification to a Tentative Map

9. Tentative Parcel Map with 4 or fewer Lots

10. Tentative Map, 5 through 99 Lots

11. Tentative Map, 100 through 499 Lots

12. Tentative Map, 500+ Lots (FULL COST/Deposit)l

$1,259

$1,772

(=eooe\o

"Condominium subdivision category has been added to assist in the processing and tracking of condominium units

2 Previously processed as Sign Variance

Page 2'l

asZCC

July 2O7O - June 2ot{ (reu. 7'1O)
Page 177

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



oO
Oe

Appendix A

ENTITLEMENT (APPLICATION TYPE

1. Administrative Permit
2. Conditional Use Permit

3. CUP Extension or Modification
4. Design Review Permit
5. DRP/Minor Approved at Public Counter

6. DRPiResidential Subdivision w/other Permit

7. DRP Extension or Modification

8. CUP/DRP Process with another Permit
9. Flood Encroachment Permit
10. MPP Stage 1 or stages 1 & 2 (FULL COST/Deposit)l

11. MPP Stage 2, Mod/Exten of Stage 1 &lor 2
12. MPP Administrative Modification
13. Planned DeveloPment Permit

14. TP Admin - Approved at Public Counter

15. TP - Req. Public Hearfor SFD or 10 trees/Less

16. TP - Req. Public Hear for DRPffM or 11+ trees

1 7. Administrative Variance

18. Variance to Develop Standards Req. Public Hearing

19. Variance to Parking Standards

20. Zoning Clearance Approved Public Counter

21-Zaning lnterpretation - Hearing Required

22.Zoning lnterpretation - Non Hearing ltem
. ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS. .

1 . Zoning Text Amend (Zoning, Subd, Sign) (FULL COST/Deposit)1

2. Zoning Map Change (RZ) 10 Acres or LESS

. 3. Zonins Map change (RZ) 
] 

t + ncrel (FyL! *c.9sr1D:tgsilll
lOfnE*' , ':' ',' ,' i.i r rt';' ',:.- ; ;;", :'

1. New Non-Residential Plan Check 2

2. Commercial Plan Check - Tl2

2. Planning Dept. Plot Plan Review (Bundlesof 10)

3. Radius List Prep-Previously Developed Area
4. Preparation Undeveloped Area/Mailing
5. Farmer's Market Permit

Fee Estimate Work Sheat

FEE

$717
$4,085
$2,6s0
$4,627

$102
$2,870

$2,650

$2,225
$3,719

Full Gost
Base Cost

$14,846

PROCEDURES FOR FULL COST FEES

l. Base Cost
The base costs for processing a full cost application repres€nts the minimum amount of staff time

inu""tuO nV tn" Planning andhedevelopment Department in processing a certain entitlemenl. This

Oise fe" nu" U"en genirated based on a time-motion analysis that is available upon request from

ttre planning anO Rldevelopment Department. This base cost is non-refundable.

ll. Proiect lnitiation

concurrent with the start-up of a Full cost proiect, the applicant shall enter into an agreement for

Full cost billing. This agreement shall be p'rovided to the applicant from the Planning and

Redevelopmeit Departinent. Per lhe provisions of thisagreem€nt, the applicant shall pay the base

;sts associated wiih the individual entitlements associated with the project'

lll. Full cost Billing
Following project initiation and payrnent of the base co6t fee, Planning and R€development stafi will

i""oJ tii.1i si,"nt working on the prolec-t against the base cost. Once staff time exceeds that

coverea unOer tne base Jost, tt'e'ip6ri""nist,all be billed on a monthly basis. These charges will be

based on current staff costs per adopled city labor contracts, plus a factor for direct and indirect

*"G. rn" phnning and Redevelopment Department can be contacted for cunent rates.

tncluded in the monthly billing will be the costs incuned by the following city departme.nts: city

Attomey, Housing, Community Development' Plks 3td Recreation and Planning and

Redevelopment. Tiese costs are outside ot what is reflected in the Base Cost'

lV. Gonsultants
As may be required by the Planning Department for pfoiect evaluation or environmental review all

ton"ufuni"oif, 
"haitLe 

paid for bithe proiect applicant and shall be included in the payment

i!r""r"nt. TheC1yshall cnargei0%oft-heconiractamountforC1yaction.Thecostfor
consultant fees will be paid as a one time cost.

V. Plan Check Fee

This fee shall be 15% of the building Plan check Fee for New Non-Residenlial construction

(commercial and Multi-family;. ree to be collected with Euilding's Plan check Fee.

REFUND POLICY

Application fees are not refundable except as follows:
1. 

'llefund 
of 1 00o/o shall be made if a determination is made by the Pla.nning Director that the

plrmit anU associated fee are not required by the City of Roseville Municipal Code or

adopted City Resolution.
Z. li an appiicant requests withdrawal of a permit prior to the PEM, refund of 50% of the

applicable fee shall also be refunded.
il'ruo r"r,rno of application fees shall be made after a Project Evaluation Meeting has been

held, unless a feewaiver is approved by the Roseville City Councit'

KEYiirtt co.Uo"oo=it to be collected at submittal. Applicant lo pay 100% of Actual Cost to process

r"q"ested Entittement. -Se€ FULL COST Discussion
iirl-n--ie=ia.nti.r - ri.i C*uiruin" cou". this includes commercial and Multi-family developments.
plan c6ck Fees to be€siessed as part of Building Department Plan check Fee.
iprrrsin"in r-i"u r"" is an optional fee that non-residential uses in the Downtown Specific Plan

Area can utilize instead 
"f 

p19;;ir1g ;;;ired parking on-site. Fees for the 1"r stall will be $800

iio1i z;ri"liSi,Ooo tZSi"), r- siat (boy"), c" stail $6,000(7s%) and s or more stalls $8,000

(100%) of the in lieu fee.

$2,650
$776

$4,627
$88

$1,772
$2,723

$6oo
$2,035
$2,430

$sa
$1,537

! ll'r i"

' : ... .;;::i:

$7,965

$13,338

15% ol Building Plan Chsck Fe

$58
$sa
$58

$146

Page 22

10 Schedu

JuIy2OTO - June 2Or, (reu' 7'1O)
Page 178

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



Attachment#3
City of Roseville Planning Department
Sample Agreement for Full Cost Billing

0000011
Page 179

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



(Date Stamp)

E:\forms\FLILLCOSTBILLINGAGREEMENT.doc

Received By:

Receipt #:

JOB n"UMBER:

For Staff Use Only

PROJECT ADDRESS:

Tolal DeDosit Fee: S

crIYoF -.q-
ROSEYILLE

PLANNING DEPARTMENT
3ll Vernon Slreet, Roseville, CA 95678 1916l. 774-5276

CALIFORNIA
Agreement for Full Cost Billing

I understand that charges for staff time spent processing this application will be based on the current staff costs per adopted City labor

contracts plus a factor ior direct and indirect costs. Please contact the Planning Division for a handout of current billing rates.

I understand that my initial fee is considered to be a base cost for processing. This initial fee will set up an account that shall be charged

at the current rate for all staff processing time. I understand that should the final costs be more than the initial fee, I will be billed quarterly

for the additional charges. I aiso underitand that payments received after the due date will be assessed a late fee equal to ten percent

(10%) of the amount Past due.

I understand that statf processing time may include, but is not limited to: Planning and Other City Departments: City Attorney, Housing,

Community Development, and plrks & Recreation. This also lncludes but is not limited to; Pre-application review of plans; reviewing

plans / suOmittat packages; routing plans to, and communicating with inter-office departments and outside agencies; researching

documents relative to sit;. history; siie visits; consulting with applicant andior other interested parties either in person by phone; preparing

environmental documents; draftihg of staff reports and resolutions; preparing pertinent maps, graphs and exhibits; and attending meetings

/ public hearings before the Design Committee/Planning Commission/City Council.

t also understand that receipt of all discretionary approvals does not constitute an entitlement to begin work. Non-discretionary approvals

may be required from City devetopment departments and outside agencies. I understand additional fees will be assessed for these

approvals. ilease refer to the City s Residential or Commercial Fee Schedule for other fees to be assessed prior to the issuance of
pr6ject permits. These fees may include, but are not limited to: Building Permit fees; lmprovement plan fees; Traffic lmpact fees:

brainagi fees; Parkland Dedication fees; Park Construction fees; Utility fees; Filing fees; and Mapping fees.

As applicant,- I assume full responsibitity for all costs leflding to discretionar! qpprovals (as listed

ahove. incuned hv the Citv in nrocessins this annlicutionkl-

PROJECTNAME: -
PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

BILLING CONTACT INFORMATION:

NAME:. - -
COMPANY:

ADDRESS:

BILLING ADDRESS, IF DIFFERENT FROM CONTACT:

NAME

COMPANY

ADDRESS:

ZlP:-CITY, STATE:

PHONE #: FAX #:

ztP'._ clTY, sTATE:

PHONE #:

CELL #:

FAX #:

CELL #:

troWNER
OENGINEER

EMAIL:

IARcHITECT

EMAIL:

f,IOWNER OARCHITECT

DENGINEER trOTHEN:EoTHER:

PROPERTY OWNER OR AGENT AUTHORIZATION:

NAME:

COMPANY:

ADDRESS:

CITY, STATE: ZIP;

PHONE #:

EMAIL:

FAX#:

CHOOSE ONE:
fl I am the property owner and hereby authorize the filling of this

agreement.
B I am the applicant and am authorized by the owner to file this

agreement.

SIGNATURE:

DATE:

0
Page 180

05/14/2024 Item No.18.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RE,CO ATION / CITY ACTION

Staff recommends that the City Council introduce and conduct first reading of Ordinance No.

1345 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Sections 3.20.020,3.20.063, and

8.32.140(a)(2) of the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Billing for Municipal Utility
Services (Introduction and First Reading).

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Section 3.20.040 and 8.32.140 of the Folsom

Municipal Code to remove vacancy exceptions and to clari$ start dates for municipal utility
services.

Folsom Mgnicipal Code 3.20.020 Exceptions, allows for municipal service charges to be

discontinued upon written request for a period of no less than two months when a dwelling,

house, or residence will be unoccupied. This vacancy exception is only applicable to Solid

Waste services.

Folsom Municipal Code 8.32.140 Charges for collection and compliance administration Item

1 states that each dwelling, house or residence shall pay a fixed minimum solid waste fee,

which applies and is payable without consideration of whether there is any gubage,

recyclables, or organic waste to remove from the premises. However, Item 2. references

Folsom Municipal Code 3.20.020 Exceptions allowing for vacancy exceptions.

1

MEETING DATE: 51r412024

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 1345 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom
Amending Sections 3 .20 .020, 3 .20.063, and 8.32.1 40(a)(2) of the

Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Billing for Municipal
Utility Services (Introduction and First Reading)

FROM: Finance Department

Page 181

05/14/2024 Item No.19.



Proposition 218 mandates that utility rates must be fair and equitable amongst rate payers.

Charging certain customers more than their proportional share of the cost of service to reduce

the cost for other customers is strictly prohibited. Solid Waste is still required to provide service

to a route, street, or house, regardless of vacancy status. The minimum rate set forth in the

Council approved rate schedules covers the minimum cost to provide the service, regardless of
how much waste is removed from the premises.

Folsom Municipal Code 3.20.040 Collection methods states that the owner of real property to

which one or more municipal services are rendered shall be responsible and liable for the

payment of all municipal service charges, and the city may utihze all procedures available

under this code or state law to collect payment. Folsom Municipal Code 3.20.063 Municipal

service charges-Establishment of rates states there is levied and assessed a monthly service

charge against the municipal service customer (user), for municipal services as defined in
Secti,on 3.20.010(A). The amount of these municipal service charges shall be set by resolution

of the city council and may be adjusted from time to time by resolution so as to reflect the cost

of the services provided.

Existing policies and procedures establish the start date of billing the legal owner of new utility
accounts as the date of the recorded deed of the property for existing accounts. New

construction accounts also bill the legal owner as of the date ameter is installed at the property,

the date the parcel receives a Certificate of Occupancy or final permit, whichever occurs first.

Staff recommend codiffing our policy to provide clarity to customers.

POLICY / RULE

Amendments and revisions to the Folsom Municipal Code must be reviewed and approved

by the City Council.

Proposition 218 mandates that utility rates must be fair and equitable amongst rate payers.

Charging certain customers more than their proportional share of the cost of service to reduce

the cost for other customers is strictly prohibited'

Folsom Municipal Code 8.32.140 Charges for collection and compliance administration Item

1 states that each dwelling, house or residence shall pay a fixed minimum solid waste fee,

which applies and is payable without consideration of whether there is any gwbage,

recyclables, or organic waste to remove from the premises'

3.20.063 Municipal service charges-Establishment of rates. There is levied and assessed a

monthly service charge against the municipal service customer (user), for municipal services

as defined in Section 3.20.010(A). The amount of these municipal service charges shall be set

by resolution of the city council and may be adjusted from time to time by resolution so as to

reflect the cost of the services provided.

2 Page 182

05/14/2024 Item No.19.



,YSTS

An amendment of this ordinance would ctarifu that all municipal service charges are applicable

and payable, whether or not a property is vacant. It would also codiff existing policies and

practices for start dates of billing new municipal utility accounts.

This is in accordance with Folsom Municipal Code 8.32.140 Charges for collection and

compliance administration, Item 1, which identifies a minimum solid waste fee, which is

applicable regardless of whether there is any garbage, recyclables, or organic waste to remove

from the premises. Additionally, it is in compliance with 3 .20 .063 Municipal service charges-
Establishment of rates. There is levied and assessed a monthly service charge against the

municipal service customer (user), for municipal services as defined in Section 3.20.010(A).

The amount of these municipal service charges shall be set by resolution of the city council

and may be adjusted from time to time by resolution so as to reflect the cost of the services

provided.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

This item has no impact on the City's General Fund. It has an estimated increase of Solid Waste

revenues of $8,000 annually.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

The Califomia Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) does not apply to activities that will not

result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment

(CEQA Guidelines 915061(cX3)) or are otherwise not considered a project as defined by

Public Resources Code g21065 and CEQA Guidelines $15060(c)(3) and $15378. This

Council action meets the above criteria and is not subject to CEQA. No environmental

review is required.

ATTACHMENT

l. Ordinance No. 1345 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Sections

3.20.020,3.20.063, and8.32.140(a)(2) of the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to

Billing for Municipal Utility Services (Introduction and First Reading)

-t

amagni, Finance Director

Page 183

05/14/2024 Item No.19.



ORDINANCE NO. 1345

AN ORDINANCE OF'THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM AMENDING
sEcrIoNS 3.20.020,3.20.063, AND 8.32.140(AX2) OF THE F'OLSOM CIPAI,

CODE PERTAINING TO BILLING FOR MUNICIPAL UTILITY SERVICES

The City Council of the City of Folsom does hereby ordain as follows:

SECTION 1 PURPOSE

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Sections 3.20.020,3.20.063, and 8.32.140 of
the Folsom Municipal Code to remove' 'Exceptions", add "Billing Start Date", and affirm City
Council approved rate schedules regardless of occupancy status of the property pertaining to

payment for municipal utility services.

SECTION 2 AMENDMENT TO CODE

Section 3.20.020 of the Folsom Municipal Code is hereby replaced and amended in its
entirety as follows:

3.20.020 Billing start date.

A. New construction. Billing for municipal services for a new construction on any parcel of
real property shall commence on the date that usage of utility services begins, the date a meter is

installed, the date the property is first occupied, or the date the property is given a certificate of
occupancy or final approval by city offrcials in accordance with applicable provisions of this code,

whichever occurs first. The director may adopt written guidelines to implement the provisions of
this section and specifu criteria for determining when billing for utility services starts in other

situations.

B. Transfer of ownership of existing structures. Billing for utility services for new owners of
existing structures will begin on the date of the recorded ownership transfer deed for that property

as identified by the Sacramento County clerk/recorder's office.

SECTION 3 AMENDMENT TO CODE

Section 3.20.063 of the Folsom Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows:

3.20.063 Municipal service charges - Establishment of rates.

There is levied and assessed a monthly service charge against the municipal service customer

(user), for municipal services as defined in Section 3.20.010 (A). The amount of these municipal
service charges shall be set by resolution of the city council and may be adjusted from time to time

by resolution so as to reflect the cost of the services provided. Monthly municipal service charges

are applicable and payable in accordance with the city council approved rate schedules regardless

of occupancy status of the property.

Ordinance No. 1345

Page I of3
Page 184

05/14/2024 Item No.19.



SECTION 4 AMENDMENT TO CODE

Section 8.32.140(4)(2) of the Folsom Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows

8.32.140 Charges for collection and compliance administration.

A. Residential

2. Reserved.

SECTION 5 SCOPE

Except as set forth in this Ordinance, all other provisions of the Folsom Municipal Code
shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 6 SEYERABILITY

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase in this Ordinance or any part thereof
is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective by any court of competent
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the remaining portions
of this Ordinance or any part thereof. The City Council declares that it would have passed each
section irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase

be declared unconstitutional, invalid, or ineffective.

SECTION 7 EFFECTIVE DATE

This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after its passage and
adoption, provided it is published in full or in summary within twenty (20) days after its adoption
in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.

This Ordinance was introduced and the title thereof read at the regular meeting of the City
Council on May 14,2024, and the second reading occurred at the regular meeting of the City
Council on May 28,2024.

On a motion by Council Member seconded by Council Member
the foregoing ordinance was passed and adopted by the City Council of the

City of Folsom, State of California, this 28th day of May, 2024by the following roll-call vote:

AYES Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):NOES:

Ordinance No. 1345
Page2 of3

Page 185

05/14/2024 Item No.19.



ABSENT:

ABSTAIN

Councilmember(s):

Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Ordinance No. 1345
Page 3 of3

Page 186

05/14/2024 Item No.19.


	Top
	05/14/2024 Item No.1.	Proclamation of the Mayor of the City of Folsom Proclaiming May 2024 as National Water Safety and Drowning Prevention Month
	05-14-24 Staff Report - Proclamation National Water Safety and Drowning Prevention Month

	05/14/2024 Item No.2.	Folsom Plan Area Semi-Annual Report
	05-14-24 Staff Report - Presentation Folsom Plan Area Semi-Annual Report

	05/14/2024 Item No.3.	Central Business District Master Plan Citizens Advisory Committee Report Out
	05-14-24 Staff Report - Presentation - Central Business District Citizens Advisory Committee Report Out

	05/14/2024 Item No.4.	Report-Back on April 11, 2024 Community Listening Session on Homelessness and Direction to Staff
	05-14-24 Staff Report - Presentation Report-Back on April 11, 2024 Community Listening Session

	05/14/2024 Item No.5.	Resolution No. 11189 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with NV5 Consultants, Inc. for Owner’s Representative Services for the Development of an Energy Savings Conservation Project and Performance Contract and Appropriation of Funds
	05-14-24 Staff Report RES 11189 - NV5 Consultants Energy Services

	05/14/2024 Item No.6.	Resolution No. 11190 - A Resolution Accepting a Grant from the Sacramento Area Council of Governments and Appropriation of Funds for the Roundabout Policy and Feasibility Study, Project No. PW2403, Federal Project No. 5288(054)
	05-14-24 Staff Report RES 11190 - SACOG Grant Roundabout Policy

	05/14/2024 Item No.7.	Resolution No. 11191 – A Resolution Adopting a List of Projects for Fiscal Year 2024-25 to be Funded by Senate Bill 1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act
	05-14-24 Staff Report RES 11191 - SB 1 Road Repaiir and Accountability Act

	05/14/2024 Item No.8.	Resolution No. 11192– A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Grant Deed Transfer of a Portion of Lot 16 Located in Russell Ranch Phase 1 from the City of Folsom to the Russell Ranch Community Association
	05-14-24 Staff Report RES 11192 - Grant Deed Transfer Portion of Lot 16 Russell Ranch Phase 1

	05/14/2024 Item No.9.	Resolution No. 11193 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Appropriate Funds for the Local Early Action Planning Grant for Additional Permit Center Expenditures
	05-14-24 Staff Report RES 11193 - Local Early Action Planning Grant Additional Permit Center

	05/14/2024 Item No.10.	Resolution No. 11194 – A Resolution Accepting the California Automated Permit Processing Grant and Appropriation of Funds
	05-14-24 Staff Report RES 11194 - California Automated Permit Processing Grant

	05/14/2024 Item No.11.	Resolution No. 11195 – A Resolution Accepting the Award of American Rescue Plan Act Funds from the County of Sacramento for the HVAC Replacement and Upgrade Projects at the Folsom Community Center and the Folsom Senior and Arts Center and Appropriation of Funds
	05-14-24 Staff Report RES 11195 - HVAC Replacement and Upgrade Projects

	05/14/2024 Item No.12.	Resolution No. 11196 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Purchase Agreement with BSN Sports for Replacement Bleachers at Lembi Softball Complex, and the Sports Fields at Mann and Rodeo Parks, and the Appropriation of Contingency Funds
	05-14-24 Staff Report RES 11196 - BSN Sports for Replacement Bleachers

	05/14/2024 Item No.13.	Resolution No. 11197 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Construction Agreement with All-American Construction, Inc. for the Blue Ravine Road Pavement Rehabilitation Phase II Fiscal Year 2023-24 Project 8017 and Appropriation of Funds
	05-14-24 Staff Report RES 11197 - Blue Ravine Road Pavement Rehab Phase II

	05/14/2024 Item No.14.	Resolution No. 11198 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement with Capra Environmental Services Corp for Managed Grazing Services within the City of Folsom
	05-14-24 Staff Report RES 11198 - Capra Environmental Amendment No 1 Grazing Services

	05/14/2024 Item No.15.	Resolution No. 11199 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Purchase of a Chimney Exhaust Fan with Knorr Systems Inc for the Instructional Pool Heater at the Steve Miklos Aquatics Center and Appropriation of Contingency Funds
	05-14-24 Staff Report RES 11199 - Chimney Exhaust Fan for the Pool Heater at Steve Miklos Aquatics Center

	05/14/2024 Item No.16.	Resolution No. 11200 – A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Site One Landscape Supply for the Purchase and Installation of Centralized Irrigation Controllers in Lighting and Landscaping Districts and Community Facilities Districts
	05-14-24 Staff Report RES 11200 - Site One Landscape Purchase and Installation of Irrigation Controllers

	05/14/2024 Item No.17.	Resolution No. 11186 – A Resolution to Adopt an Amended User Fee Schedule for Community Development Engineering and Building Services (Continued from 04/23/2024; to be Continued to 05/28/2024)
	05-14-24 Staff Report RES 11186 - Amended User Fee Schedule

	05/14/2024 Item No.18.	Ordinance No. 1344 - An Ordinance of the City of Folsom Amending Sections 3.50.020, 3.50.040 and 3.50.050 and Repealing Section 3.50.060 of the Folsom Municipal Code (Introduction and First Reading Continued from 04/23/2024) and Determination that the Project is Exempt from CEQA
	05-14-24 Staff Report ORD 1344 - Amending Sections of the FMC Introduction and First Reading

	05/14/2024 Item No.19.	Ordinance No. 1345 - An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Folsom Amending Sections 3.20.020, 3.20.063, and 8.32.140(A)(2) of the Folsom Municipal Code Pertaining to Billing for Municipal Utility Services (Introduction and First Reading)
	05-14-24 Staff Report ORD 1345 - Amending Sections of the FMC Utility Services Introduction and FIrst Reading

	Bottom



